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Our heritage

16777

The famuly and the land

The Grosvenor famly history stretches
back atmost a thousand years, to

the time of Wilhiam the Conqueror
However, the origins of the property
business lie in the land in London that
came mto the farmuly in 1677 wath the
marriage of Mary Davies and Sir
Thomas Grosvenor — 500 acres of
swamp, pasture and orchards to the
west of the City, of which 300 acres
remain with the family today as
Grosvenor's Londan estate

1720s

Mayfair, London

‘Mayfair’, the northern part of this
land, took its name from the fair held
here in May until well into the 19th
century In 1720, the family began
developing the land into a fashionable
residential area, centred on Grosvenor
Square

The area's character continued

10 evolve through subsequent
redevelopment In the 19th century,
shops and, (ater, embasstes and
diplomatic residences moved in,
duning the 20th century, it saw the
westerly migration of office users
from the war-damaged City of
London Today, almost the whole

of Mayfair, which now contains a
cosmopolitan mix of commercial
and residential property, i1s included
N a statutory Conservation Area

1820s

Belgravia, London

‘Belgravia’, which hes south west

of Mayfair was onigrally part of

the ‘Five Fields’ — open land between
Hyde Park and the Thames The end
of the Napoleonic Wars and the
conversion of nearby Buckingham
House intoa palace for George IV
prompted the Grosvenors to develop
it Inthe 18205, the family's surveyor,
together with master bwlder Thomas
Cubntt, oversaw the creation of an
elegant estate in the classic Regency
style of squares, streets and crescents
overlooking private gardens The vast
majonty of Cubitt’s work survives
and almost the whole of Belgravia 1s
included i a statutory Conservatron
Area, now encempassing housing,
commercial and institutional
headquarters, retail and, on the
periphery modern offices

1950s

International expansion

puring the secand half of the 20th
century, Grosvenor began to apply

1ts estate management skils of
investment, development and asset
management elsewhere n the UK

Our business expanded, successively,
nte the Americas (from the 1950s),
Austraha (from the 1960s), Asia Pacific
(from the early 1990s) and continental
Europe {later thas decade) Many
projects were undertaken in
partnership with other investors,
leading us graduaily inta fund
management
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Corporate structure
Grosvenor's corporate governance
has evolved with the maturing of

the Group In April 2000, we adopted

a corporate structure as a Group of
regional businesses and published
our first full Annual Repart and
Accounts In 2005 our international
fund management busingss was
formalised as a discrete entity In
2012, we brought alk our indirect
investments i property together,
creating the present tripartite
structure of direct proprietary
activitres, tndtrect proprietary
activities, and fund management
Today, we bhave 19 offices in 12
countries and assets In a total of

17 countries

Further infermation on Grosvener

1S available ar www grosvenor com

2013

ownership

Grosvenor remains privately owned
Our Shareholders — the Trustees

of the Grosvenor Estate — hold the
shares and assets for the benefit of
current and future members of the

Grosvenor family The family is headed

by the Sixth Duke of westminster,
who is Chairman of the Trustees

Further information on the
Grosvenor family and the rest of
the Grosvenor Estate 1s avallable
at www grosvenorestate com

Frequently asked
questions about

Grosvenor

Q&A

Frequently Asked Questions
(see also the Glossary on the
back cover flap)

Q What s the difference
between ‘The Grosvenor Estate’,
‘Grosvener Group Limited’, and
‘Grosvenor’s London estate’?

“The Grosvenor Estate’ 13 the
term used to represent all
the interests of the Grosvenor
famuly headed by the Sixth
Duke of Westminster There
are three principal elements
to these activittes Grosvenor
Group, Wheatsheaf Group
and The Family Investment
Office Further information
can be found at

WwWw grosvenorestate com

‘Groavenor Group Limited’,
the subject of this Annual
Report and Accounts, 15 the
urban property group, which
18 the largest business 1n

the portfolio of The Grosvenor
Estate

‘Grosvenor’s London estate’
18 the land 1n Mayfair and
Belgravia managed, and 1n
part owned, by Grosvenor
Group Limited

Q Grosvenor s not ahsted
company and 15 not required

to produce a full Annual Report
and Accounts of this sort, so
why do it?

We have been shanng financial
information with gur partners
for many decades, in line with
our behief1n & straightforward,
transparent approach to
business relationships

‘We believe that the right
question 18 not “Why disclose?”
but “Why not disclose®” So, n
April 1999, we introduced our
first formal Annual Report and
Accounts and 1t has continued
to evalve ever since In April
2011 we published our first
Environment Review, which

18 also an annual pubhcation
Both are available online at

WWW grosvenor com

@ what do you mean by
‘LIVINg cities’?

‘Living eities” 18 our straphne —
a shorthand for conveying
what the Grosvenor name
stands for 1n the context

of urban property

‘Lang cities’ has a dual
meanng [t suggests successful
urban envircnments — places
which are healthy, full of
vitality, sustainable, such as
those which Grosvenor hopes
to help create It also suggests
our approach — that we aim
to live, eat and breathe cities,
having our fingers on their
pulse These two meanings
guide what we do and how
wedot
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Living

cities

Grosvenor has been involved in the evolution of one
particular city ~ London — since first acquiring 300
acres of land, 1n what is now Mayfair and Belgravia,
in 1677. Over the last 60 years, we have also owned
or managed assets in cities around the globe; our
current portfolio covers more than 70 urban centres.

In our decision-making about real estate, we draw

on our long institutional memory of what makes for
success or failure in urban environments, as well as
on the know-how of property specialists currently in
businesses around the Group. We use this knowledge
to create value for ourselves and for the investors who
entrust us with their capital.

Creating value 1s not only about profitability; it can
also be about legacy. Financial success allows us, and
our investor partners, to fund activities whose social,
environmental and other benefits may only become
evident over the long term.



At Grosvenor, we are always trying to improve our
understanding of cities and to pinpoint the factors
that make them successful.

We use this understanding to determine the
allocation of our capital, bearing in mind the
financial and business objectives of the Group.

We draw on our history as well as our creativity to
find better ways of fostering vitality — and enduring
real estate value — in the cities of today and of the
future. We want to ensure that our contribution
includes architecture, streetscapes and public spaces
that future generations will value — places in which
people can live happily, work productively and enjoy
their leisure time.

In this Annual Report we showease some of the
places with which Grosvenor is associated around
the world. We hope you will recognise them as
having the qualities we seek to capture with our
strapline: ‘Living cities’.

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor cam 0l




Grosvenar Group Lim:ted

Group structure

Trustees of the Grosvenor Estate
{Shareholders)

WWW.grosvenorestate com

Grosvenor Is privately owned

The Shareholders are the Trustees of

the Grosvenor Estate who hold the shares
and assets for the benefit of current and
future members of the Grosvenor family

There are six Trustees the Charrman
(the 6th Duke of Westminster),

the Executive Trustee and four
other Trustees

B Grosvenor Group Limited

wp Read more starting on page 8

Grosvenor Group Limited 1s the Company
established by The Grosvenor Trusts as
the holding vehicle for the Grosvenor
Estate’s urban real estate interests

The seven Non-Executive Directors on the
Group Board include the Executive Trustee
and two other Trustees, one of whom 1s
the Charrman

B Proprietary activities — direct
mp Read more starting on page 20

By this we mean direct investment in
real estate, as a result of allocating cur
own capital to our regional Operating
Companies

The Non-Executive Directors on the
Operating Company boards include the
Group Chief Executive and the Group
Finance Director

B Proprietary activities — indirect
'mp Read more starting on page 56

This sigmifies indirect nvestment in real
estate, as a result of allocating our own
capital to third-party managers, including
Grosvenor Fund Management, and to other
indirect investments

These investments are the responsibility
of the Holdmg Company

B Fund management
\mp Read more startmg on page 66

Our fund management Operating
Company, Grosvenor Fund Management,
manages tapital through various
investment vehucles on behalf of a number
of investors, of which Grosvenaor 1s one

The Non-Executive Directors on the
Grosvenor Fund Management board are
the Group Chief Executive and the Group
Finance Diector

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www ErOSYEROr Com
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Grosvenor Group Limited

Why is a devolved management structure right for Grosvenor?
Mark Preston and Andrew Bibby give their views.

The Group Chief Executive’s perspective
Mark Preston

There are two reasons, one general and one specific to the
property sector

All orgamisations have to decide who 1s accountable for what
and to whom, and all benefit from clanty about the devolution
of authority Our governance structure 1s straightforward the
Trustees of the Grosvenor Estate delegate responsibility for
certawn areas of activity to the Group, which 15 accountabie
accordingly, and the Group does the same with its Operating
Companies, who are likewise accountable to it

Grosvenor’s focus 1s urban property and we believe that
decisions about real estate are best made on the ground, by
local people who know therr markets — not by a head office
in London or indeed anywhere else So we aim to let our
Gperating Companies get on with the job of making property
investment, development and asset management decisions
In ltne with the strategies they have agreed with us At Group
level we concentrate on allocating our capital between them
and our indirect investments portfolio, In line with Group
strategy, and on providing any shared services that are best
run from the centre

We are careful to nurture a common understanding of our

values, our approach to business and the importance of
relationships in achieving our objectives

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com

An Operating Company Chief Executive’s perspective
Andrew Bibby, Grosvenor Americas

Devolution s about empowering the right people The Group’s
delegation of decision-making authonty to the Operating
Companies, within explicit documented boundaries, 1s iberating
but 1t also creates a real sense of responsibility on the ground
On most matters, we are our own masters, where we are not,
we know precisely where our authonty begins and ends

We have the freedom, within agreed parameters, to make
decisions at the local level, which in the world of property —
and I include property fund management — 1s where 1t counts
This means immersing ourselves In urban planning 1ssues,

City gavernance, socio-economic development, demographics,
culture and markets — and talking with clients and partners

to identify and respond to challenges and opportunities

Qur governance structure gives us the best of both worlds

we have our areas of independence, but we also belong to
something bigger Each Operating Company has its own
character, but we have a lot In common we share the same
values, we all have the benefit of the Group’s 300-year history
In property, we can all draw on a very practical understandmg
of how Cities work acquired through the generations, and we
can share insights from around the Group That combination

15 powerful It gives us credibility in the outstde world and

it 15 really important to our staff

03




Grosvenor Group Limited

Group financial highlights

Group

To report the total value of the Sharehalders wvestment
in the Group

Comment
Shareholgers funds have contirued to rse and now stand
at their highest ever level

To wentty undertying performance excludng markel movements

Comment
Revenue profit has increased for the fourth successive year Prolif
before ax was £354 4m (2021 £315 Om}

Shareholders’ funds Revenue profit Total returns
{Including currenty movement)

£3.1bn £87.4m 1.2%

2011 £2 $bn 2011 £30 8m 011 9 0%

why we measure ‘Why we measure Why we measore

To show how cur property portfoho has perfsemed including
both income andcapital returns

Comment

A strong performance in each of our proprietary eperating
companies was balanced by challenging condiions n
wdirect Investments.

By Operating Company

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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Grosvenor Group Limited

Group operational highlights

See Glossary on back cover flap for
definittons

WwWW Brosvenor com

The environment highlights are

taken from the Grosvenor Environment
Review 2012 which can be downloaded
from our website

Group

To monitor the scale of the portfolio of property assets
that the Group s management teams are responsibile for

Comment

Increased assets under management in the propnatary
Dperating Compahtes were offset by a reducton within
Grosvenor Fund Management

To quantify the Group $ financial investment in property assets

Comment

Properiy assets have remained stable with valuation gams
being offset by currency movements ansing from the relanve
strengthening of Sterling

Assets under management Property assets Development exposure
£12.2bn £5.8bn 16.7%

2011 £12 5bn 201t £5 8bn 2011 15 7%

wWhy we measure we measure Why we measure

Toindicate the level of development activity expressed
asa proportion of total property comrmitments

Comment
We centinued to increase our develgpment activity (0 1ake
advantage of new pportunilies

To help us increase revenue profit maximising accupancy
1nour bulldings 15 a key drver

ment

Despite challenging lettng markets gur occupancy levels
continued ko nise

To manitor cur carbon footpnint o we can ientify ways
10 improve our emnronmental performance

Comment
We have reduced carbon emissions across tha directly
managed porttalio through improved energy ethiciency

QOccupancy Carbon emissions Water consumption
Like-tor-ilxe tons of carbon dioxide emitted (1C0,e} Uke-for-like partfollo (m')
95.1% 39,592 tCO 647,28 Tm?
A70 , tCO,e , m
2011 95 0% 2011 40,78%1C0e 01 680 931m*
why we measure Why we measure why we measure

To assess our waler CONSUMPtion o we can identify ways
1o imprave our environmental performance

Comment

We have reduced water Consumplion across our directly-
managed porttolio through measures such as using low-flow
antary ware and mipeoving coaservation in landscaped areas.

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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Grosvenor Group Limited

Group strategy

Our ‘Big Six’ priorities

1 Optimising capital
planning

We will allocate our Shareholders’
capital in three ways first, to each of
the three regional businesses which
invest directly 1n property, secondly,
10 co-Investment in Grosvenor Fund
Management funds, and thirdly, to
wwvestments i other property-related
businesses, following a strategy

to Increase our diversification by
geography and sector We will
manage our exposure through the
cycle and give more capital to Asia,
to henefit from its long-term growth
prospects

What we said we would do in 2012

m Allocate additional capital to Asia

B Emphasise importance of the
China market

W Maintam a cautious stance with
respect to financing and financial
capacity

What we did in 2012

W Increased capital allocation to Asia
by £20m

® Made our first investment in
Beijng, a Grade A office building in
Chaoyang

® Increased financial capacity to
£865m (2011 £855m)

Creating value from
=l proprietary capital

Our aim 15 to generate total returns
from our proprietary capitat that are
above our weighted average cost of
capital and are attractive relative to
industry benchmarks The revenue
profit component of these returns

15 particularly important and we aim
to ensure that sustainable income

1N each Operating Company grows
year-on-year

3 Sustaming our core
portfolio in London

Qur aim s to ensure that our London
estate in Mayfair and Belgravia — the
core of our portfolio — 15 financially
sustainable long-term and maintains
Its pre-eminence as an urban estate
We will achieve this by remnvesting in
its fabric so that it has the right mix
of properties, community retaif and
public spaces, and by serving the
needs of occupiers and the people
who visit for work or pleasure

what we satd we would do in 2012

M Increase revenue profit further
W Make further acquisitions

W Implement our Indirect investment
siraiegy

what we said we would do in 2012
B Continue reinvestment in our London
estate

B Make further improvements to the
public realm

W Grow incomne from new rental
properties on the London estate

What we did 1n 2012

M Increased revenue profit by 8 2%
to £874m (2011 £80 8m)

M Acquired assets in Canada, China,
England, Hong Kong, Japan and the
USA

m Completed two new third-party
managed mvestments o
Investment LLP and High Street
Realty Fund IV

What wedid in 2012

B Reinvested £94 6m in the
Londan estate

B Improved the public realm
around North Audley Street and
50 Grosvenor Hill and began work
at Brown Hart Gardens

W Successfully launched new
residential apartments in Mayfair
including Carlos Place and Green
Street

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 Www grosvenar com
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Grosvenor Group Limited

4 Creating value from
fund management

Our aim 1s to deliver attractive risk-
adjusted returns (relative to agreed
benchmarks) and excellent service

to clients seeking to invest in property,

thus creating value for them through
the management cf their capital
This activity will generate revenue
from fees paw for our services In
managing investment vehicles on
behalf of those clients

g Investing in
our people

Qur aim is to recruit the best talent,
to ensure that our people understand
our brand, 1ts values and ethos,

and to invest in developing their
skills, experience and careers

In doing so. we not only develop
them professionally, personally and
financially but also eguip them to
achieve Grosvenor’s business and
financial objectives

E ‘Laving aities’

Our understanding of cities and urban
design and development 15 at the
heart of Grosvenor We aim continually
to improve this understanding for the
benefit of occupiers, investors and
other stakeholders Increasingly, our
business strategies and investment
and development practices wilf

also respond to Grosvenor's long-
term ambition in the creation and
management of vibrant, sustainable
cities which operate within the world's
annually renewable resources

What we said we would do in 2012
@ Build on the momentum in
Grosvenor Fund management

® Focus on creating value for
our clients

B Win new mandates

what we said we would do n 2012

® Enhance the skills of our people

@ Promote from within wherever
possible

@ Invest in career development

what we said we would do in 2012

B Improve further the quality and
coverage of our environmental data

B Develop wider sustainability vision
and integrate into Operating
Company strategic plans

B Research macro-economic trends
which make cites vulnerable

What we did in 2012

8 Launched an office in Stockhoim and
combined our UK and Continental
Eurppean operations into one

B Created HREJ, a Jjoint venture for real
estate investrment in Greater China

W Won major mandates in Sweden
and France

what we did in 2012

@ Developed a core curniculum for
skills training for managers in
Grosvenor Britain & Ireland

@ Appointed two of the individuals
who attended the Grosvenor senior
leadership course in 2010 to senior
leadership positions

W Hosted a debate for our young
business [eaders with two other
property organisations

What we did In 2012

® Increased like-for-like portiolio
coverage for carbon by 150% and
estimated only 5%, mainly for
December 2012°s energy Invoices

 Held workshops throughout
the Group and developed a
sustamability vision reflected
in all 2013 strategic plans

W Reported on the vulnerability of
30 cities to cimate change, scarce
resources and three other themes

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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Grosvenor Group Limited

Chairman’s statement

Lestey Knox
Group Chairman

Lesley has been Chairman of the Group since
2011 and Trustee of the Grosvenor Estate for
Seven years

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 wWW grosvencr.cem

What are the Group’s main objectives?

“We set business and financial objectives.
These are to develop an internationally

diversified group mvested 1n urban property

and to dehver financial results which
meet certain requirements. We also
require the Group to protect and enhance
Grosvenor’s reputation — in particular for
social responsibility, but also for long-term
trustworthiness.”

08



Grosvenor Group Limited

Grosvenor photography competition
Lesley Knax launched aninternal
competition to find the best
photograph of a landmark which
corwveys the personality — the sense
of place — of a vibrant Gty We show
here the Living cities images that
took the first second and third
prizes Putney Bridge London by
Caroline Pringle Mew York City cab,
by Albert Biticr and Pottinger Street,
Ceniral Hong Kong, by Sally Yu
Judging was by Bostock and Pollitt,
designers of this Report

Good progress in 2012

In 2012 we made good progress relative to our business and
financial objectives, despite the challenges of global and
national markets

As Mark Preston's report makes clear, we continue to address
these abjectives through the Group’s strategy and its ‘Big

S priorities Highlights included our joint venture for fund
management In Asia, which will open up new opportumities

in China, and the significant development projects now
underway or planned in the USA, Canada and Japan as well
as on the London estate, which remains remarkably resilient
to economic weakness in the UK The theme for this year's
Report 1s more obviousty illustrative of our focus on ‘Living
cities’ than in previous years, but we feel this is timely ‘Living
cities’ encapsulates our aspiration for urban places and cur
own approach to them, and encompasses our desire to tackie
environmental concerns together with wider sustainability

The Group's performance has held up well against the many
pressures of 2012 We increased Shareholders’ funds to £3 1bn,
grew revenue profit to £87 4m and delivered total returns

of 7 2% which were consistent with the upper end of our
expectations We would be fortunate to maintain this through
2013 even allowing for some signs of global economic recovery

Governance matters

Qur Board, with seven Non-Executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, continues to provide invaluable insight

on key business i1ssues as well as the ‘sixth sense’ of senior
practitioners with complernentary expertise Rod Kent, who
retires 10 June, has challenged views at Grosvenor productively
for 12 years, his trenchant comments keeping us alert, we are
indebted to him For the first nine years, Rad also chaired the
Grosvenor Britain & Ireland board, bringing to it incisive, careful
stewardship Owen Thomas, who joined the Board in 2011, will
resign on 31 March 2013 as a consequence of his appointment
as Chief Executive of Boston Properties, Inc , a US REIT, in April

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www Erosvenor com

we thank tim for his significant contribution during bus short
tenure and wish tum well in bis new role leffrey Wetngarten,
who Joins the Board in September, will bring with fum
experience gained during his investment management career
in the UK and the USA and his knowledge of Grosvenor Fund
Management

The same s true of the boards of our Qperating Companies,
whose Chairmen are appointed by the Group Board In
Grosvenor Asia Pacific we have benefited from Tim Freshwater’s
guidance since the birth of our Asian Operating Company

he has been hugely supportive of Grosvenor's growth strategy
in Asla and his extensive knowledge of business in the region
has been invaluable Keith Kerr succeeds him in July, following
a long career in Asia concluding as Chairman and Chief
Executive of Swire Properties Lid

Grosvenor inthe commumty

Both we and the public increasingly expect standards
of behaviour aver and above statutory and regulatory
requirements

This document 15 more explicit than before about our

destre to manage our property portfolios in line with our
values We expect and intend to be part of the communities

we operate infor the long terrn and it follows that we expect

to "pull our weight” as employers, owners and managers of the
bullt environment, good citizens and supporters of charitable
causes The Board takes seriously the task of holding the Group
to account in these areas, to ensure that we continue to live

up to our responsitnlities

Lesley Knox

Group Chairrman
14 March 2013
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Grasvenor Group Limited

Chief Executive’s review

How does the Group seek to achieve its
main objectives?

“We allocate capital carefully between
our three distinct areas of business,
which each create value and manage
risk in complementary ways, and which

Mark Preston all share a commitment to our people and

Group Chief Executive to helping create ‘Living cities’. The Group
Mark has held positions in all parts of the . LR :

Group over the last 23 years He became mvests'dlrectly m Pr opgrty via its 1"eg10na1
Group Chief Executive In 2008 Operating Companies, indirectly via a

centrally-managed team and it manages
third-party capital via its international
fund management business.”

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grasvenor com 1¢




Grosvenar Group Limited

Multe-Famuly focus in the LISA
Grosvenor Amertcas continues to
invest n and develop multi-family
housing as a key part of its strategy
Chelsea at Juamta Village (pictured
feft) in Kirkland washington 15 one
such investment In an apartment
community with 196 units in a
village setting with a selection of
restaurants, shaps and water views

surviving the global finanoial crisis commentaries on the trends in each part of the Group which
Last year | suggested that 2012 would continue to frustrate our  underlie therr respective business strategies
search for clarity on the global economic outlook The cloud of

financial, econormic and social pressures remains with us and Some themes emerge, notably the impact of e-commerce
continues to challenge our businesses on giobal retal markets, the strength of investor demand for
‘prime” assets — especially in the residential market in London’s
This environment has nevertheless played to Grosvenor's West End, the growing trend towards urban renaissance in
strengths, as the Group’s continuing resilience — not least our truly global aties, rapid urbanisation in Asia, and investors'
financial capacity at year end — makes clear We consider the disinchination to commit to ithiquid structures anywhere
Group’s results to be at the top end of our expectations, with
total returns of 7 2% and revenue profit of £87 4m We watch such trends closely, guided by our in-house

economists and by insights from our professional advisers and
Notable successes include in the UK, a combination of strong the 16 external Non-Executive Directors around the Group
returns from our London estate and the fruits of its investment
in transformational change, in the Americas, the progress of Sticking to the Group's objectives
development projects contributing to stable results, and n Asia  How did Grosvenor respond to the externat challenges? e
Pacific, successful sales of completed residential developments  stuck to our long-term strategy and made progress in each of
Our indirect investments portfolio saw mixed results but our businesses we mantained our prudent stance with regard
diversification balanced tows in Continental Eurgpe with highsin  to financing and cashflow headroom We continued to invest in
Austraha and Brazil Our fund management business saw a loss,  people and infrastructure for the long term while making some

largely the consequence of continued investment in growing effraiency gans by overhauling processes and organisational
the business and also planned sales of assets structures in both the UK and fund management businesses
How our markets fared The Group’s business and financial objectives are to develop
Qur prognosis for international real estate markets 1s crucial an internationally diversifred group invested n urban property,
to our decision-making this year's Annual Report includes dehver financial results which meet our Shareholders

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 WWW grosvenor com i1




Grosvenor Group Limited

‘Real Estate and Globalisation’

In May John Wiley & Co published nearly 100
of our monthly internat property market
reports from the last decade, edited by
Richard Barkham, Group Research Director
who also contnbuted a retrospective
commentary and some prediciions for

the future Richard subsequently spoke

at conferences n Amertca, Europe, Asia
and Austraha about patterns in real estate
markets and the lessons for investors in real
estate from the global financial crisis

requirements, while enhancing Grosvenor’s reputation for social
responsibility and for long-term trustworthiness | address
these below, with commentary on our progress

Dwversifying internationally and dehvering financial results
Our strategy requires that we allocate capital appropriately
between businesses (hence the first of our ‘Big SIX’ priorities,
as detailed on page 6 ‘Optimising capital planning”)

We invest some of our capital directly into property via our
three ‘proprietary’ operating companies — at 31 December 2012
roughly £2 9bn or 76% of the total allocation Grosvenor Britain
& Ireland, Grosvenor Americas and Grosvenor Asia Pacific
invest in and develop commercial and residential property in
accordance with locally-set strategies

we invest further proprietary caprtal into property through

an indirect nvestments portfolio which we manage centrally
— at 31 December 2012 roughly £0 $bn or 24% of the total
allocation This achieves further diversification by co-investing
in funds managed by our fund management business, and by
investing in other property or property-related companies

These proprietary investments address the second and third
‘Big Six’ priorities ‘Creating value from proprietary capital’
and ‘Sustaining our core portfoho n London’

The stand-out achievements i our Cperating Companies grew
our development pipeline For example n Grosvenor Britain

& Ireland our plans to improve the area around Brown Hart
Gardens in North Mayfair, which include a hotel and further
pubhc realm works, in Grosvenor Americas our second Drake
apartment building in Calfgary, which capitalises on a design and
marketing model that has proved popular with young buyers,
and in Grosvenor Asia Paaific the planned Monterey Court
residential development for Jardine’s Lookout in Hong Kong
Development exposure grew to 16 7% (2011 15 7%), reflecting
our determination to reinvest to increase future returns

On the indirect side, our small investments in industnial logistics
property have a larger significance, achieving exposure to
a‘new’ sector Along with co-investments in funds, we aiso
remain commuitted to our sigmificant investment 1in Sonae
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Sierra, a pre-eminent European and Brazilian shopping centre
developer, owner and manager, whose operational results
continue to impress in the face of a difficult retai environment

Lastly, we have an international business which invests and
manages third-party capital Grosvenor Fund Management
creates value by using its expertise tn property investment

and property management on behalf of its clients and, in so
doing, generates revenues from fees Delivering performance
and exceptional service 1s 1ts prionty Hence the fourth ‘Big Six’
priority 'Creating value from fund management’

We made important progress, in the reach of this business

and in the range of 1ts mandates Qur joint venture with
Harvest Fund Management, establishing Harvest Real Estate
Investments, allows our investor clients to benefit from their
In-depth knowledge of China while therr clients can access our
expertise in international markets in Europe, Grosvenor Fund
Management has made further retall acquisitions in Sweden
and gained a new segregated account, acquiring and managing
Lyorn's main shopping street

Grosvenor Fund Management detided 10 close its office 1n
Sydney later 1n 2013 The Group intends to retain proprietary
exposure to the Australian market via its indirect invesiments
strategy

We announced the next stage in the evolution of the senior
management team In June 2013 James Raynor, who joned
the business nme years ago, succeeds leffrey Weingarien as
Chief Executive, in September Jeffrey jons the Group Board
as Non-Executive Director Jeffrey was the architect of the
reorganmsation of Grosvenor Fund Management and will be
an invaluable addition to the Group Board

Preserving and enhancing our reputation

Diversification and financial and operational performance
however, do not by themselves set us apart To meet the
objective of preserving and enkancing our reputation for social
responsibility, our activities must be conducted for the long-
term benefit not only of our shareholders and the investors In
our funds, but also of the commumities in which we operate
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The Lady Edwina Grosvenor Award

This award named after the Duke of Westminster s second daughter, 1s run
and funded by The Westminster Foundation and is open 1o staff from across
the Group and the whole of the Grosvenor Es{ate It recognises ouistanding
voluntary charitable work and in 2012 the pane! of jJudges charred by Lady
Edwina, selected Robin Blacktock, from Grosvenor s Edinburgh office as the
winner Robin pictured top left had raised over £100,000 for Changing Faces
ang The Sick Kids Feundation, while tis EuroChampsChallenge — driving to the
grounds of every team that has ever won The Champions League and meeting
one of the football players who had helped win the trophy — increased their
profile The £5 000 preze ts to be allocated to the winner s chosen charities
Robin shared the prize between the same two charities

Recently we have emphasised helping to create and manage
attractive and vibrant cities through the projects we undertake
This document references the ‘Living cities’ attributes of what
we do — ‘Living cities’ being another ‘Big Six” priority

We progressed important work in settings such as North
Audley Street in London’s Mayfair, Barton in Oxford, Ambieside
In west vancouver and Liverpool ONE in North West England
We also broadened our interest In managing our envirgnmental
impact to encompass wider issues of sustaimability (see our
Environment Review at www grosvenor com) Qur continued
focus on environmental improvement has resulied in a
decrease in carbon emissions of 3% and water usage

of 5% for our ike-for-like portfolio

Cver our long history, we have sought to be trusted both
for the way we do business, narmely by striving to be
straightforward in business relationships, and through
responsible stewardship of high-quality and well-designed
property

A crucial ingredient in achieving our reputational objective

IS to attract, keep and develop people who not only have the
business qualities we need, but also personify Grosvenor values
and identify with the concept of ‘Living Cities’” Hence our last
‘Big Six’ priority ‘Investing in our people’

We continued to improve skills training by developing a core
curriculum, promoted peaple from our group of younger
managers with exceptional potential into mare senior rokes,
and provided new opportunities for our leaders of the future
to discuss wider business 1ssues with their peers

People throughout Grosvenor appreciate our support when
they devote time to community activities or help chanities
with their fundraising, and through philanthropic activity and
donations to The Westminster Foundation We say more about
thus in the Operating Company reviews and in the Accounts
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Market outlook

in spite of the poor visibility | referred to i my opening
remarks, I believe the global economic environment 1s more
likely to improve than deteriorate Its fiscal challenges are
worrying but housing starts and employment trends give
reason for optimism in the Americas where we have plans and
capital in place to invest and develop in the more vibrant cities
with fears of a Eurozone breakup receding, Investor iInterest

15 returning to the more prosperous Continental European
cities and de-teveraging is underway slowly The recovery in
capital values that should cautiously follow will benefit both
Sonae Sierraand our funds active there Asian economies
remain a driving force and our commitment there I1s based

on the favourable long-term trends m China particularly ‘
While we remain convinced of London's strengths long-term, |
the sustainabiity of current rates of growth in values of 1
prime property 15 much less certain

Grosvenor's future ‘
In 2008, our capital was invested through five proprietary

Operating Companies, each of which allocated a small

proportion to funds managed by Grosvenor Fund Management

Since then, we have introduced distinct strategies for direct
and indirect investrnents, and have focused the former on
three proprietary businesses while centrahsing our investment
1n funds as part of our indirect nvestment actvities Adherence
to our strategy will delwer further diversification, continued
growth of revenue profit and consistent returns in the long term

This approachwill make us less vulnerzble to volatility and
more able to meet our financial and business objectives, while
ensuring we confinue to preserve and enhance our reputation
from generation to generation

I enjoy working with the 525 people around the business to
achieve this it (s their endeavours that make 1t all possible, for
which | — and my fellow Directors on boards throughout

the Group — remain profoundly grateful

Mark Preston

Group Chief Executive
14 March 2013
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Finance Director’s report

Nicholas Scarles
Group Finance Director

Nick has been with Grosvenor since 2004 He
became Group Finance Director In 2006

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012

WWW Brosvenar com

How does the Group, with its devolved structure,
manage its treasury function?

“Managing a loan portfolio of several
billion pounds — with multiple facilities,
lenders and currencies — requires a blend
of treasury expertise and co-ordination,
managed by our co-ordinated treasury
function, and local commercial
understanding and execution, managed
by our local finance teams; all delivered
under our relationship-based approach.”

See more online
www grosvenor com/financedirector
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Grosvenor finance conference

In 2012 Grosvenor held its first
conference for managers in the
finance team worldwide Effie
Huang {pictured n top left phota,
second from left) Assistant Finance
Manager for Grosvenor Asia Pacific
commented it s really hard to

list everything | learned, but | have
started considening the graater

meantng of my work — the wision
shared with others which wilt help

us add value 1, and other junior
staff, may be just a small dotin
abigpicture but without us the
picture would be less complete and
nat as beautiful as it could be So
now | feel that everyone Is important
in the Group, no matter how large
or small a dot they are ”

Performance

2012 was another record year of revenue profit, which
increased 8 2% to £87 4m (2011 £80 8m) Profit before tax
increased 12 5% to £354 4m (2011 £315 Om) and total return,
reflecting the impact of revaluations around the internationally
diverse portfolio, was 7 2% (2011 909%) At 31 December 2012
Shareholders’ funds increased 7 8% to £3 1bn (2011 £2 9bn)
and now stand at their highest ever level

Earnings

Within revenue profit, which 1s Grosvenor’s measure of
operational performance and includes Grosvenor’s share

of joint ventures, gross rents were maintained at £309 1m
(2011 £309 2m) despite the challenging economic conditions
Fees and other mcome increased 4 0% to £570m (2011 £54 8my)
a dechne in Grosvenor Fund Management fees due to the expiry
of funds and separate accounts was balanced by an increase

in development fees upon the completion of developments

on the London estate Net financing costs were flat at £81 2zm
(2011 £81 0m)

Overheads reduced for the third successive year, by 2 8%
to £117 1m (2011 £120 5my), reflecting the continued focus
0N Managing costs across the Group’s businesses

Qf the proprietary businesses, Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
delivered the largest increase in revenue profit, up 132% to
£38 1m (2011 £16 4m) due to increases in development fees
and trading profits Grosvenor Americas increased Its revenue
profit by 5 5% to £13 5m (2011 £12 8m), while Grosvenor Asia
Pacific’s fell to £9 8m (2011 £12 4m) due to the majonty of profits
on The Westrminster Terrace development being taken in 2011

In the indirect mvestments portfolio, revenue profit declined

to £490m (2011 £59 1m), due to a loss on the sale of the Omega
office park in Spain Sonae Sierra continued to perform well
operationally n difftcult markets, although provisions made
agamnst development projects reduced profits in 2012

Grosvenor Fund Management experienced a revenue loss of
£10 3m (2011 £1 6m loss), due to planned mnvestrent in the
business and reduced assets under management reflecting sales
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of assets as anumber of funds approached the end of their
Iife cycles

Total return

For the third year runming Grosvenor Britain & Ireland delivered
the highest wtal return at 13 8% (2011 16 29%), reflecting

the buoyant London West End market as well as improved
operational performance largely resutting from their ‘Fast
Forward’ operational review Grosvenor Amencas’ total return
was 95% (2011 8 99%) and Grosvenor Asia's was 8 7%

(2011 8 0%)

The return from our indirect investments portfolic felf to
15% (2011 30%) This comprised 1 0% (2011 3 0%) from
co-investments in funds managed by Grosvenor Fund
Management, 0 5% (2011 2 9%) from Sonae Sierra, reflecting
a blend of negative revaluations in Continental Europe cffset
by positive revaluations in Brazil, and 1 5% (2011 3 0%) from
Grosvenor's other assets in Australia, France and Span

Taxation

The Group operates under a long-established tax policy,
approved by the Trustees and Group Board, which reftects the
Group's responsibilitigs to the communittes in which we invest

The 2012 taxcharge equates to an effective rate of 24 3%,
befare the adustment caused by a reduction in the future rate
of UK corporation tax This reduction is required by accounting
standards to be apphed to the notional tax {deferred tax) which
it 15 assumed would be paid if all Grosvenor’s assets were to be
sold at market value Since Grosvenor’s financial statements
have previously been required to provide for this deferred

tax at a higher rate, the full effect of the rate change on this
notional tax s required to be credited to the income statement
The actual tax Grosvenor pays 1s unaffected by this accounting
adjustment

Operational activity

Grosvenor's assets under management have reduced shightly
to £12 2bn {2011 £12 5bn), due the reductions in Grosvenor
Fund Management's funds under management, although
these reductions were largely offset by valuation increases
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Grosvenar's share of property assets has remained stable

at £5 8bn (2011 £5 8bn}, reflecting revaluations of £292m,
disposals of £477m, acquisitions of £386m and currency falls
of £132m

Portfoho aflocation

Grosvenor’s diversification objectives are most apparent in

the allocation of capital between the proprietary Operating
Companies and :ndirect investment activity This allocation 1s
determined to delwer a portfolio of investments m regions and
cities which are expected to deliver above-average returns over
the medium term Once equity 15 allocated, the local executive
team are empowered to make the best property decisions

that only those with local knowledge of their markets can be
expected to deliver

The geographical spread of Grosvenor’s economic interests

in real estate 1s shown in the table on page 17 The principal
changes since 2011 reflect the relative valuation gains in the

UK, North America and Hong Kong compared with declining
values tn most of Continental Europe Significant transactions
affecting the geographical spread were the sales in UK retail
funds, Sonae Sierra assets in Germany and mdirect investments
In Sydney

Financial objectives

Part of Grosvenor's financial objective is to deltver, over the
long term, financal returns which meet our Shareholders’
requirements, and progress against this is outlined in this
Annual Repert Unusually amongst international real estate
companies, another part of Grosvenor's financial objective
Is to ensure a level of overall operational risk, an approach
to debt and sufficient hquidity which collectively ensure
Grosvenor’s survival Ensuring longevity over the long term
means embedding the ability to navigate through market
and financial crises without significant iImpairment of value
or operating ability

Operational improvements are covered in the section below
Grosvenor's approach to debt focuses on economic gearing,
devolved Cperating Company responsibility and dversification
of debt and lenders
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Treasury team

Our co-ordinated treasury funciion
includes two treasury experts

(Dawvid Peters and Karen Toh pictured
{eft with Nicholas Scarles) t¢ provide
expert advice to our Operating
Company finance teams as they
implement their local debt strategies
and arrange local financings —
blending professional expertise

and local relationships

Each Qperating Company conducts business within economic
gearmng hmits set by the Group which reflect the Group's
attitude to risk in the business within a desire to avoid
aggregate over-gearing At a Group level economic geaning
decreased to 43 0% (2011 51 2%), resulting in Grosvenor's
resthience — the extent to which all real estate markets must fall
at the same time before Grosvener Holding Company covenants
might be a concern — increasing to 61 2%, well beyond our self-
imposed margin of safety

An important element of Grosvenor’s devalved structure 1s
that each executive team, board and business 15 responsible
for its own balance sheet and should not rely upon the rest of
the Group Each Qperating Company, joint venture, fund and
investment in principle should only borrow debt which it can
service and repay through its own resources Consequently
there are no Grosvenor Holding Company guarantees of
Operating Company, joint venture or fund borrowings, and

no cross-Operating Company guarantees of this kind either

A diversification approach 15 applied to the duration and type
of debt and the nature of lender, while flexibility 1s retained to
take advantage of debt market opportunities To this end, and
following Grosvenor Britain & treland’s successful US private
placement in 2011, a further placement was made in 2012,
raising £90m of debt for terms of 10 and 25 years, at rates of
3 38% and 4 97% respectively As a result of these debt 1ssues
and other debt market activity, over the last two years the
weighted average duration of Grosvenor’s wholly-owned debt
increased from 6 1 yearsto 77 years In addition, recognising
that following the global financial erisis and subsequent
changes In regulation, banks are unlskely, in the future, to be
such active lenders to the real estate sector, in the last two
years Grosvenor has increased the proportion of its wholly-
owned debt raised in capitat markets from 28% {0 40%

Grosvenor’s approach to ensurning hquidity centres on both
financial capacity and stressed cash flow forecasts

Financial capacity — the amount of spare cash and undrawn,

committed, general-use facilities which are immediately
available — 15 targeted at a level designed to manage a further
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downturn and then take advantage of the opportunities
which only anise in such circumstances Financial capacity
at 31 December 2012 was £865m (2011 £855m), more than
sufficient to meet our objectives

Each Operating Company Is required to meet stringent
stressed cash flow conditrons which ensure they can survive,
using comimutted resources, at least two years of extremely
stressed markets when aggregated, and Grosvenar
Holding Company backup facilies are taken into account,
the Group I1s confident of its hquidity over the near term

Coliectively, these measures provide comnfort that Grosvenor's
future 15 assured irrespective of market conditions

Operational improvements

The increasing professionalisatron of the functions which
support our core property expertise has continued A second
professional treasurer has joined our co-ordinated treasury
function, which now acts as the treasury for all of our UK
operations, including the Grosvenor Holding Company, while
maintaining sts co-ordination and advisary role for Grosvenor's
operations elsewhere Our legal team now comprises four
qualfied lawyers and is responsible for all of Grosvenor’s

UK legal matters and for legal governance elsewhere The

IT shared-service team 15 now responsible for all IT-related
matters within Grosvenor These support functions, once purely
advisers, are becorming deciders within their area of expertise

within the Operating Comparues, Grosvenor Fund
Management’s decision to combine its UK and Continental
European operations will bring improved efficiency Grosvenor
Britain & Ireland entered the final stage of its 'Fast Forward’
programme Elsewhere, the closure of our Sydney office will
further reduce overheads, while allowing Grosvenor to maintain
an equity Interest in Australia through indirect investments

Locking back over the last five years, the rationalisation of

the then five proprietary Operating Companies Into three has
improved Grosvenor's structural efficiency The professionahisation
of support functions has enabled a more sophusticated approach
in specialist areas, while systems changes are ensuring that
information i1s delivered more efficiently to those who can make
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best use of It In summary we now operate more efficiently,
have more speciahst indwviduals and are armed with more
relevant information

Eurozone

Most of Grosvenor's equity investment in the Eurozone 1S
through Sonae Sierra SGPS, the Portugal-headquartered
shopping centre developer, owner and manager, in which
Grosvenor has joint control and a 38 75% economic interest
Despite all the challenges of southern Eurgpe, the team at
Sonae Sierra continue to delver solid operating results
Nevertheless, retail takings and valuations have fallen, and
with no comparable transactions in Spain and Portugal for

two years, thare is sigmificant valuation uncertainty In reaching
a conclusion on the value of Grosvenor’s investment in that
company, we have considered both our strategy as a long-term
investor and other relevant factors, including the continued
strong operating results, the balance between stronger
Brazilian and German markets and weaker Romanian and
Iberian markets, iImproving investor sentiment and interest

In Iberian property investment and the particular strength

of several large dominant assets in Portugal which are not
representative of the Portuguese shopping centre sector

While the challenges in parts of Europe create uncertainty,
for Grosvenar the potential to mnvest with an experienced
management team who understand these markets continues
to present an attracoive medium-term opportunity

Conclusion

Grosvenor continues to deliver consistent results through

a financially flexible, yet prudently constrained, structure
Grosvenor's ample, protective and empowering financial
capacity, dversified portfolic and increasing professional
expertise, ensure our property experts can do what they

do best — operate as locals, applying their property skil's to
improve communities and deliver a good return for investors

Nicholas Scarles

Group Finance Director
14 March 2013
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Grosvenor Group
Board of Directors

As at 14 March 2013

Non-Executive Directors

01 Lesley Xnox

Position Chairman

Appointed to the Board 2010

Experience Lesley 1s a Trustee of The
Grosvenor Estate and a Director of both
SABMIller pic and Centrica Plc She
qualified as a soliciter and then spent 15
years with Klemwort Bensen (1981-1996)
first as a Corporate Finance Director and
then as Chief Executive of the institutional
asset management business She moved
ta the 8ritsh Linen Bank (1997-1999)
latterly as Governor and thenwasa
founder Birector of British Linen Advisers
(2000-2003) She has held a variety

of non-executive directorships with
mternational and Brinsh corporates

She 15 currently involved with a number
of charitable and arts organisations and
15 the Chairman of the V&A at Dundee

02 Rod Kent

Appointed to the Beard 2000
Experience Rod 15 currently Chairman of
Caledonia Investments plc and Chairman
aof the Trustees of the Calthorpe Estates
Most of his career was spent with Close
Brothers Group plc where he was
Managing Director from 1875-2002 then
Non-Executive Directar and latterly
Chairman until 2008 Over the last 20
vears Rod has served as Non-Executive
Direcior on vanous boards and has been
Chairman of the M&G anc Bradford &
Bingley boards and the BT Pension
Scheme He has also been a Trustee of
both the Esmee Fairbairn and Weflcome
Trust chantable trusts

03 Michael McLintock

Appointed to the Board 2012

Experience Michael 15 a Trustee of the
Grosvenor Estate and Chief Executive of
M&G He joined MG In 1992 as personal
assistant to the then Chief Executrve and
later became Head of the Institubonal
and International Desks He was
appointed Chief Executive in 1997 and
oversaw the sale of M&G to Prudential

1N 1999 he joned the board of Prudential
In September 2000 Michael was a
Non-Executive Director of Close Brothers
Group from 200:-2008 Since Gciober
2005 he has been a member of the
Finance Committee of the MCC Before
moving to Barings as a corporate fiancier
n 1987 he joined Margan Grenfeltin
1983 where he warked n investment
management and corporate finance

04 Alasdair Morrison

Appointed 1o the Board 2004

Experience Alzsdair 1s a Senior Advisor

to Citigroup Asia Pacfic 2 member of the
HKSAR Financial Services Development
Council and an Independent Non-
Exetutive Director of MTR Corparation
Ltd and Paafic Basin Shipping Limited
From 2000-2007 he was Chairman of
Margan Stanley Asia based in Hong
Kong From 2002 to February 2006

he was concurrently Chairrman and

Chief Executive Officer of Morgan Stanley
Asia Prior tojoining Morgan Stanley he
worked in Asia for 28 years for the Jardine
Matheson Group where he was the Group
Managing Director from 1994-2000

05 Jeremy Newsum rrics

Appointed to the Board 1989

Experence leremy (s Executive Trusiee
of the Grosvenor Estate He was Group
Chief Executive from 198%-2008 He s

a membper of the Council of Impenal
College a member of Cambnidge
University s Syndicate for the West and
NorthWest Cambridge Estates a Director
of Grupo Lar and an Adviser to the Al
Futtaim Group Past appointments include
Chairman of the Urban Land Institute
(2009-2011} President of the British
Property Federation (2001-2002) and
Director TR Investment Property Trust
(2000-2007)

06 Domenicoe SInIScalco m o
Appointed to the Beard 2008

Expenence Domemcois Vice Charman
Country Head of Italy and Head of
Government Coverage EMEA for

Morgan Stanley He 15 also Chairman

of Assegestion (asseoation of (tahan
asset managers) From 2001-2005

he served n the Itahan governmest as
Director General of the Treasury and then
Minister of Economy and Finance He has
been Professor of Economics at Torina
University since 1990 and has aPh D in
Economics from Cambridge University

{7 Dwen Thomas

Appointed to the Board 2011

Experience Owen 1s a Chairman of Lehman
Brothers Holdings and a former Managing
Director and Management Committee
member of Morgan Stanley He was

CED of Morgan Stanley Asiz President of
Morgan Stanley Investment Management
Charrman and CEQ of Morgan Stanley Real
Estate and Chairman of Mitsubishi Morgan
Stanley Securities HeisaDirector of

the University of Virginia Investment
Management Company a Trustee of the
Urban Land tnstitute and the former
Chairman of the Pension Real Estate
Association

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www Brosvenor com

Executive Directors

08 Mark Preston urxs

Pasition Group Chief Executive

Appointed to the Board 2006

Expenence Mark jomned Grosvenorin

the UK in 1989 Seconded to Hong Kong

N 1995 he returned to lead Grosvenor s
fund management operations 1011997
spent four years In San Francisco

from 2002 became Chief Executve

of Grosvenor Britain & Ireland 1n 2006
and Greup Chief Executive in 2008

Mark currently holds twe Non-Execut ive
Directorships on the boards of Persimmon
Plc and Sonae Sierra SGPS He isaTrustee
of The Westminster Foundation and also a
member of the Board of The Assocation
of Foreign Investars 0 Real Estate the
ULI Greenprint Advisory Board and the
(University of) Cambridge Land Ecenomy
Advisory Board

09 Nicholas Scarles rca ATToRNEY AT Law
Position Group Finange Director
Appaointed to the Board 2006
Experience Nicholas joined Grosvenor
In 2004 He was previgusly at Centrica
Price Waterhouse and Coopers and
Lybrand inLandon New York and Toronta
He 15 a Governor of the Haberdashers
Elstree Scheols Member of the Court of
Assistants of the Haberdashers Livery
Company and a Non-Executive Director
of Sanae Sierra SGPS
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Grosvenor Group
Executive Committee

As at 14 March 2013

01 Mark Preston mrics

Position Charrman Executive Committee
and Group Chief Executive

Experience Mark joined Grosvenor in

the UK 1n 1989 Seconded to Hong Kong
101995 he returned to lead Grosvenor s
fund management gperations n 1997
spent four years in San Francisco

from 2002 became Chief Executive

of Grosvenor Britain & Ireland in 2006
and Group Chef Executive in 2008

Mark currently holds two Non-Executive
Directorships on the boards of Persimmon
Plc and Sonae Sterra SGPS He s a Trustee
of The Westminster Foundation and also a
member of the Board of The Association
of Foreign Investors in Real Estate the
ULl Greenprint Advisory Board and the
(University of) Cambridge Land Economy
Advisory Board

02 Nicholas SCarles rca sTroRNsY AT Law
Position Group finance Director
Expenence Nicholas joined Grosvenor
In 2004 Hewas previously at Centrnca
Price Waterhouse and Coopers and
Lybrand in London New York and Toronto
He 15 a Governor of the Haberdashers
Elstree Schools Member of the Court of
Assistants of the Haberdashers Livery
Company and a Nan-Execut ive Director
of Sonae Sierra SGPS

03 Andrew Bibby

Position Chief Executive

Grosvencr Americas

Experience Andrew joined Grosvenor
in 1984 and became Chief Executive of
Grosvenor Americas in 2009 During
this ime he has been involvad with
the acguisition development and
management cf all property types and
has worked in Vancouver Calgary and
San Francisco He s currently a Director
of Canadian Western Bank has served
as a past Director of the Real Property
Asscciation of Canada and 1s a farmer
member of the Sauder Business School
advisory board

©4 Nichofas Loup

Position Chief Executive

Grosvenor Asta Pacific

Experience Nicholas established the
0Operaton in Asia Patific In 1994 He s
a General Committee member of the
British Chamber of Commerce and a
Directer of the Spinal Cord tnjury Fund
He 15 alsa Chairman of ANREV of which
he 1s a founder member and a member
of the Werld Econamic Forum s Fiscal
Sustainabihity Global Agenda Council

05 Peter Vernon rrics

Position Chief Executive

Grosvenor Britain & Ireland

Experience Peter Jomed Grosvenor in
2005 and became Chef Executive of
Grosvenor Britain & Ireland in 2008

He 15 a member of the Royal & Sun
Alliance London Regienal Board and
the Board of Landon First Previously he
was a Partner at IBM Business Consulting
services and PricewaterhouseCoopers

06 leffrey Wemgarten

Position Chief Executive

Grosvenor Fund Management
Experience Jeffrey began his career as

a Secunities Analyst n 1970 In 1977 he
Jeined the research dvision at Goldman
Sachs & Co in New York becoming
Director of Research in Landen in 1987
and General Partner of Geldman Sachs

& Coin 1990 From (991-1995 leffrey
was the Chief Investment Officer and
Managing Directer of Goldman Sachs
Asset Management International before
returning to International Equity Research
as Global Strategist From 1998-2008
Jeffrey was General Partner and Chief
Investment Officer of Buttonwood Capital
Pariners
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Grosvenor’s direct proprietary investment
in property encompasses Europe, North |
America and Asia where we have 241,

66 and 62 people respectively.

We have been managing land in Mayfair
and Belgravia since 1677 and from a
dedicated London office since 1836. For
the past 40 years we have also had assets
elsewhere in the UK - hence our office in

Edinburgh, opened 1n 1987.

North America was the location of
Grosvenor’s first international projects:

we have been active here for 60 years.

We have had an office in Vancouver since
1953, in San Francisco since 1977, in
Washington, DC since 1988 and in Calgary
— with one small gap — since 1997.

Our knowledge of the Asia Pacific market
stretches back nearly 20 years and we have
had offices in Hong Kong since 1994, in
Tokyo since 2001, in Shanghai since 2004
and 1 Beijing since 2010.
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland

Peter Vernon Chief Executive

Peter joined Grosvenor 1n 2005 following What are you trying to achieve at Grosvenor

acareer in management censultancy

Britain & Ireland?

“We are on a mission to create 1nspiring places

that help to improve people’s quality of ife in

London and elsewhere. By doing so we satisfy

our customers, our Shareholders and the

wider commumnty”
Business objective Number of assets by city*
Our objective Is to create value through our skills in Britamn
placemaking and design, repositioning tocations in E g:::;‘rf;“"“‘" ;
ways that change customer perceptions and delwver Crawley g ;
outperformance for our Sharehalders and co-investors B Ecinburgh 108
3 Glasgow 81
I Lwverpool [
London 1480
oxford 1
Irefand
Il Dubiin 2
"Some assets we hokd directly-
others we manage on behalt
of the Grosvenor Trusts.
what we sard we
would doin 2012 What we did in 2012 2012 summary
M Increase revenue profit M Increased revenue profit from £16 4m Revenue profit
B Improve income generation through new M Improved income by £5m . ]-m
products and greater efficiency 1n our 2011 £16.4m

processes

Total return

B Identify new value-adding opportunities
to increase our total return

B Contributed 2 5% (£63m) to our total return 13 . 8%

through value-add activities 2011 16 2%

Assets under management

B Secure future profit growth by building
our development pipeline on and off the
London estate

B Increased development under construction £4 . 8bn

to 89,000m? (gross development value 2011 €4 20
£1 2bn), with a further 30,000m? (gross
development value £912m) in the pipeline

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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Grosvenor Square
London, United Kingdom
The second largest square
1n London, Grosvenor
Square sits at the heart

of our Mayfair estate
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Community spirit

We actively manage the 300 acres of Mayfawr and Belgravia that we
call our London estate, and our focus on customer needs has helped
ensure 1ts continuing pre-eminence In our role as stewards of the
estate, we work hard not only to improve the experience of living,
working and relaxing there, but also to maintain a sense of community
for residents, businesses and visitors alike The public spaces and retail
streets are key to this- they are as important as the buildings
themselves and offer coveted ‘community space’.

We work closely with local communities to make the most of these
spaces, supporting local street parties, cultural events in the squares
and gardens and taking part in the London Garden Squares weekend
Grosvenor Square — the second largest garden square in London —1s a
particularly sigmficant space, situated amidst Mayfair's leading retail
streets. It remains the peaceful heart of the neighbourhood and helps
ensure that the area still feels accessible to all.

Summer 2012 events on our London estate
2012 was a momentous year for London 1t was the stage for

Oppasite
Attendees enjay one of the many
Iive performances al Summer in the

Her Majesty The Queen’s Diamond tubilee, and for the Olympic
Games and the Paralympics These events evoked a remarkable
community spirit across the UK and our London estate was no
exception

To celebrate the Jubtlee, our Belgravia retai streets — Motcomb
Street, Pimhico Road and Ehizabeth Street — put on a packed
programme of performances, activities and street parties
during the first weekend in June

Coinciding with the Olympics, Grosvenor also celebrated 2012
by hosting “Summer in the Square’ — a two-week programme
of free cultural performances, games and children’s
entertainment —n Grosvenor Square in July and August

The event, staffed by Grosvenor volunteers, gave the local
community and visitors an ‘urban retreat” anudst the hustfe
and bustle of London's West End

“Collaboration with the local commumnty 15 a vatal
part of what we do on our London estate This will
continue as we work with residents, businesses
and other stakeholders to establish new
‘neighbourhood forums’ and to maintain a
cohesive community for the long term ”

Giles Clarke Executive Director,
London estate

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www Brosvenor com

Sguare ~a programme of events in
Grosvenor Square to entertain jocal
people and visitors alike during the
2012 Olympics
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
continued

Mayfair, London

Individuaf development projects

on North Audley Street, Duke Street,
Brown Hart Gardens and Mount
Street are designed, colleciively,
tocreate a better Mayfair on our
London estate

Reaping the benefits

2012 was an encouraging year, despite an anaemic UK
economy Total return for the year reflects strong growth in

the value of Central Londaon real estate More important are
the enduring gans achieved from active management and
more efficient operations We completed our three-year ‘Fast
Forward’ programme, a root and branch upgrade of the way we
waork (see page 30) This had a very positive impact on our 2012
revenue profit and indeed has brought recurring gains each
year since it started In addition, active management of the
portfahie contributed 2 5% (£63m) to our total return this year

We deployed more of our financial capacity, investing £176m in
new assets and development projects to create future revenue
streams During the year we started on site with 23,000m?

of new projects, with a further 30,000m? in the pipeline Qur
trading projects have done well, despite the slow market, with
sales at £119m, roughly triple that of two years ago, enabling
us to recycle capital iInto new mvestments Taking advantage
of favourable market conditions, we raised £90m through an
1ssue of long-term unsecured loan notes to provide additional
funding for investment in our London estate

Assets under management grew to £4 8bn, while total return
decreased to 13 8%

Grosvenor’s London strategy

We have chosen to deploy much of our capital — 90%

by portfolio value — in the 300 acres of Mayfair and

Belgrawia, unique estates i London’s West End These urban
neighbourhoods retain their vibrancy and appeal through a mix
of owner-occupied homes, rental properties and social housing,
as well as office, retail and amenity burlldings They are home to
a diverse and thriving community — as was ewident during the
Jubilee and Olympics celebrations of 2012 (see pages 23 to 25)

The West End has remained resihent in the current economic
chmate and our own occupancy levels have remained high at
978% London is stilf seen as a safe haven for capital, with
prices strong despite the changes to Stamp Duty Land Tax,
those proposed to Capital Gains Tax and the suggested Annual
Charge Our London estate has benefited from this strength but
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It 1s the impact of our active management that is the real test of
our performance we have continued to reinvest our profits in a
constant cycle of refurbishment and development projects

The strategy ‘off-estate’

Off the estate, our strategy with the rest of our capital has
evolved in recent years to mamtan a judicious balance between
doing more of what we are best known for, such as city centre
residential-led development, and growing other areas of
activity to diversify our portfolio

Here, as on the London estate, we aim to create developments
that provide our customers with mspiring places to Iive and
work, growing sustainable income or a trading profit for
Grosvenor In ansncreasingly competitive market our challenge
15 identifying opportunities that will allow us to create value for
our customers and our Shareholders

Reinvesting in Mayfair and Belgravia

We manage our London estate as an interlocking web of places
that we seek to improve for the benefit of the commercial and
residential communities that occupy them, as well as those
who visit them For us, the relationship between buikdings,
the public realm, the diversity of use and amenity and the

soft infrastructure that binds communities together 1s what
placemaking and ‘Living cities’ 1s all about Placemaking, as
opposed to the management of discrete property assets, 15
where we focus our attention our approach 1s therefore fong-
term and holistic

Mayfair continues to be a prionty {see above) Foilowing the
completion of work to improve hard landscaping tn North
Audley Street, our focus has been on transforming the raised
pazza at Brown Hart Gardens, which will re-open in 2013,

and its immediate surroundings, where we are creating the
Beaumont, a new luxury boutique hotel Elsewhere in Mayfair
we have been undertaking several developments to regenerate
our office portfolio and grow income (see page 29)

In North Belgravia we have significant development activity

to trade and to hold, notably at our recent redevelopment of
3-10 Grosvenor Crescent where we sold ten of the 15
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Springside, Edinburgh

Fountainbndge in Edinburgh s nich in industnal
heritage, but the advent of the 21st century has

seen the last of the brewenes close and the area
evolve Grosvenor Is leading the way with a development
at Springside which has already provided over 200
residential urits accommodation for 300 students
and an impressive new public square, while also
opening 2 new pedestrian route from Fountaibridge
to Haymarket When complete Springside will inclyde
600 apartments student accommodation office
accommodation amenity retall and — with a
favourable planning hearing — a four star hotel

apartments, and at the site that we manage on behalf of the
Grosvenar Trusts, 1-5 Grosvenor Place where, with our partners
Derwent London, we appointed Michae!l Hopkins & Partners as
architects (see page 29)

In 2012 we brought forward development starts to maximise
the cost advantage from a weak construction market Some
of these are covered In the ‘Storwes from the year” pages that
follow We also undertook a record number of renovation
projects to add value to the London estate, not least by
‘retrofitting” properties to improve energy efficency Our
research shows that customers are increasingly interested in
the amount of energy ther properties consume and we too
are commutted to making progress here

Improving customer satisfaction continues to be a major focus
and, while we recognise that we stifl have some way to go,
our annual MORI survey shows an encouraging increase in
satisfaction levels, in particular among our retailers — a group
which plays a wital role in the vibrancy of our communities

now marketing the fourth and final block and the prermium
apartmenits, and, together with our joint venture partners,
acquired Pavilon D to hold for rental income, while at Campden
Hill we are considering the options for the scheme ahead of !
ohtaining vacant possession In September 2013

Our latest projects in Cambridge progressed well Sales of

the new apartments at Parkside Place vindicate our decision

to redesign the scheme we took over from the original
development partner and to focus primarily on facal buyers
rather than international investors at year end all units had
been sold or reserved Our larger-scale projects at Trumpington
Meadows and Abbey Stadium reinforce our commitment to the
city {see page 31 for detail on all three projects)

Our joint venture with Oxford City Councit at Barton 1s
advancing fast and the first stage of the planning process {the
Area Actron Plan) for this housing-led development has been
approved by the Government Inspector and adopted by Oxford
City Counail (see page 31)

“Spending time with customers 1s vital to
understanding what service and products they
want from us building those relationships in
the part of Belgravia north of Eaton Square 18
my priority”

Xavier Peirani Management Surveyor
North Belgravia, London estate

The Supreme Court’s decision in October, 1n Hosebay v Day,
reassured us that we can continue to invest in the many
properties on the estate that were originally built as houses
but are now in commercial use, without fear of losing freeholds
(and our cumulative investment) through enfranchisement

Adding value off the estate

We also have high-quality residentiai development projects
to the west, south and north of our London estate, in Chelsea,
at Bankside and in Holland Park - all with our partner Native
Land At Chelsea Manor Street, we have successfully started
selling off plan (see page 30), at NEO Bankside, we are
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“After a competitive procurement process, we selected Grosvenor

as our investment partner to bring forward a scheme of around 900
houses on our land at Barton We are delighted to

be warking with Grosvenor here, as they have

embraced the Council's vision of a lugh quality

environment, communmnty cohesion, exemplary

design and sustainability”

Jane winfield Major Projects & Dsposals Manager,
Oxford City Council

In Edinburgh, where we have built strong relationships with
the ovic authorities, we have sold over 909% of the first phase
of the apartments — Foundry — at Springside to a variety of
owner-occupiers and mvestors (see above)

The Grouss residential portfoho in Edinburgh and Glasgow
continues to perform well, with rising rents and full occupancy
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Qur team

We have continued to invest heavily in our team, business
processes and IT infrastructure We have improved the training
and development of staff, focusing particularly on our ‘Business
Principles’ — making sure everyone at Grosvenor understands
and adopts a values-based approach to dong business (see
page 31) We went ive with our new finance and property
management system 1015 increasing efficiency and providing
better management informaton to drive financial performance
and better customer service at that all important point where
the ‘back-office’ becomes, for our customers, the public face
of Grosvenor

As part of our values-based approach, we also encourage
and support our staff In ther commitment to good causes,
alengside our support for The Westminster Foundation (see
page 30)

Sharing responsibility for the urban fabric

We believe that a vibrant West End 15 part of what makes
London attractive, bringing new residents and businesses to
the country, helpmg to keep the capital ‘open for business’
internationally as well as contributing to its role as a thriving
multi-cultural aity enjoyed by its inhabitants and visitors alike

The skills and expertise that we have been able to develop In
this part of the city are applicable to many ather residential
and mixed-use neighbourhoeds With a nationwide shortage
of housing, particularly acute in London {see the commentary
from our Head of Research, right) there 1s a strong commercial,
as well as a social, case for deploying such know-how widely,
working with local authorities elsewhere in and outside

the capital to create the physical conditions for thriving
communities We have done this in places such as Cambridge,
Edinburgh, Liverpoo! and Oxford and we hope there will be
the opportunity to do more in the years ta come

Peter Vernon
Chuef Executive, Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
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Market outlook

Graham Parry Head of Research,
Grosvenor Britain & Ireland

Institutional investment in the private rented sector
Although housing remains a relatively minor asset class for
most institutional investors in the UK, the 2012 Montague
Review into mstitutional investment 1n the UK residential
sector has revived interest in the private rented sector

At the heart of the investment case are compelling
fundamentals London suffers from a chromic housing
shortage, reflecting rapid household formation and
insufficient new housing supply Housing construction
has not kept pace

The shortage has made housing less affordable Strong
growth in house prices and tougher lending criteria make
home ownership impossible for many, particularly in the
25~-34 year old group, who increasingly prefer to rent

The net result has been a pronounced shift towards renting
over owning The private rented sector has doubled its
share of the UK housing market over the past 20 years The
opportunity 1s there for investars to partner with existing
residential developers to deliver new private rented housing
Good quality schemes ine the rnight locatton should be very
well placed to capitalise on demand, which explains our
Interest in this area
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland

Stories from the year

Fifty Grosvenor Hill,
Mayfair: part of our
office pipeline

Grosvenor Hill hes between Grosvenor
Street and Berkeley Square in the
heart of the Mayfair Conservation
Area In May, we celebrated the launch
of Fifty Grosvenor Hill, a 2,800m?
office development with a BREEAM
‘Excellent’ rating ‘Fifty’ aims to mix

the traditional and the modern
respecting the buildings that stood

on the site for so long, 1t retains four
fagades of historic and architectural
interest, whale a solar-glazed elevation
rises from the second floor, hinting at
the state-of-the-art interior

In addition to building this office
development, we improved the pubhic
realm with new surfacing, trees and
public art created by Neal French,
commemoratng the wcoruc 1960s

photographer Terence Donovan who
had his studio m this discreet enclave

‘Fifty’ 18 yust part of the pipeline of
new office developments that we are
delivering 1n the West End over the
next three years The next four
schemes — three on Grosvenor Street
and one on Davies Street — focus on
increasing the quakhty of office space
n the area

www fiftygrosvenorhill com

1-5 Grosvenor Place,
Belgravia: a unique
landmark site

1-5 Grosvenor Place has a
commanding position on Hyde Park
Corner and 18 a major development
opporturuty On behalf of the Grosvenor
Trusts, we are working with our joint
venture partner, Derwent London, to
replace an office block wath an
imaginative mixed-use scheme The
current bualding has unrivalled views
of Hyde Park Corner to the north
towards Green Park, Buckingham
Palace to the east, and Belgravia to the
south and west Qur viswon 18 to debiver
a truly exceptional and fully-integrated
development that transforms the
north-east gateway to Belgravia
Design work wall begin 1n 2013

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
Stories from the year

continued
‘Fast Forward” an award-uwinning
change programme
In 2010 Grosvenor Britain & anncrease 1n revenue profit,
Ireland launched the ‘Fast value from active management
Forward' performance and customer satisfaction It
mprovement programme This helped change our culture and
sought to upgrade all parts of has enhanced our abihity to
the business, enabling improved  continue to innovate, evolve and
operational performance and prosper for the longer term It
faster value creation The aim also won the 2012 Management
has been to improve results for Consultancies Association
customers, employees and Award for Change Management
Shareholders The programme 1n the Prvate Sector
delwered immediate benefits

Chelsea Manor Street, Grosvenor staff and The

Cheyne Terrace: luxury
London apartments

Chelsea Manor Street — 25 luxury apartments being
developed by Grosvenor 1n a joint venture with Native
Land and Mounteity — offers large, contemporary living
space 1n the heart of London’s Chelsea, just off the
King's Road

Unusually, most units have generous roof terraces for
relaxing and entertaiming The scheme also includes a
private swimming pool and leisure facihity, a wins store,
a concierge and 24-hour security We have improved
the original scheme to maximise 1ts appeal, notably by
relocating the main entrance to Chelsea Manor Street

Though completion of the property 18 not scheduled until
Summer 2014, seven apartments have already been pre-sold

Thus 18 a computer-generated image
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Westminster Foundation:
philanthropy at work

Our London office has an active staff charity commuittee
which complements support from The Westminster
Foundation (see Accounts page 89) — to which Grosvenor
donated £1 7m 1n 2012 — wath staff fund-raising,
volunteering and pro-bono advice In 2012, thus combination
supported a number of causes 1 the UK, including Farms
for Caity Chaldren, Land Aid (the property industry charity)
and Stoll (housing and helping veterans)

In addation, 1n collaboration with the staff charty commuttee,
The Westminster Foundation commissioned New
Philanthropy Capital to conduct research into social need
within the Borough of Westminster The findings helped to
clanfy the Foundation’s prorities for giving m London from
2013 its Supporting Commumbes’ programme will help
chanties which aim substantially to improve commumnty
cohesion and tackle 1solation
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
Stories from the year

continued

Barton, Oxford:
consulting with
the public

We are working 1n partnership with
Oxford City Council to create state-of-
the-art facihties for the commumty

at Barton in Oxford Design of the
masterplan progressed well in 2012
following a series of community
engagement programmes, and we

are on track to submat a planming
appheation in Apnil 2013

Thas provides for much needed

housing 1n three distinctive new

areas which will be integrated with

neighbouring commumities and the

wider city, for retail facihiies, which

will act as a catalyst to improve the

area’s vitahity and viability, for green

open spaces, and for a new primary

school n the heart of the commumty

We aim to delver the first new homes |
and commumty facihties 1n early 2015 1

www bartonoxford org uk

Parkside Place, Cambridge:
building on a 30-year track record

QOur knowledge of a city 1s important
to local councils We know Cambridge
very well as a result of 30 years’
experience there — including, most
signuficantly, the development of the
Grand Arcade shopping centre — and
we remain committed to its long-term
development

QOur understanding of the area has
guided our development of Parkside
Place 99 new high-quality apartments
with commanding views over Parker’s
Piece 1n a location at the heart of all
that Cambridge has to offer — the city’s
central colleges, parks and main
shopping and entertainment areas
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Other Cambndge projects 1nclude
Trumpngton Meadows — a 350-acre
project to create a lugh-quality
extension of the southern edge of the
city and provide 1,200 homes, Phase 1
of whach 18 now under construction —
and the redevelopment of Abbey
Stadwum with provision of a new
stadium for Cambndge Umted
Football Club

Thus 18 a computer-generated 1mage

www parkside-place com

The Business
Principles Awards:
influencing the ‘how’
rather than the what’

How we do business 1s as important
as what business we do Grosvenor
Britain & Ireland reflects this 1n its
‘Business Principles’ and, 1n 2012,
held its Business Principles Awards
to recognise success 1n thewr
implementation Teams were invited
to video examples of these principles
1n everyday practice, the videos were
posted on the Group intranet and
voted for by staff and a panel of judges
Winners for each category and an
overall winner — the Liverpool team
above — were presented with theiwr
awards at an Oscar-style event hosted
by our Chief Executive, and Non-
Executive Director, Heather Rabbatts

“Having been closely involved as the teams
developed our Business Principles with
feedback from our partners and customers,
it 1S exciting to see staff bring them to life
with such pride and enthusiasm”

Heather Rabbatts
Nan-Executive Director
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland

Board of Directors

As at 14 March 2013

Non-Executive Directors

01 Graham Pimlott cex

Position Chairman

Appowated to she board 2009
Experience Graham was a Partner in
the law firm Lovells before taking sentor
roles within B2w and Barclays PLC He s
currentfy Chairman of Tesco Personal
Finance Plc and has held several other
non-executive director rofes in the past

02 Michael Gradon

Appointed to the board 2007
Experience Michael 1s the Senior
Independent Director of Modern Water
plc a Non-Executive Director of Aercap
Holdings NV and Exclusive Hotels and
15 on the Committee of Management of
the All England Lawn Tenmis Club and
wimbledon Tennis Champignships

He was previously a Main Board
Director at P&O

03 Heather Rahbatts

Appointed to the board 2009
Experience Heather is a Non-Executive
Director of Cross London Rail Links
Limited the Football Asscciation and
the Royal Opera House and has been
appointed {0 the supervisory board of
the Foreign and Commonwealth Office
She has just established a media
company Smuggler Entertainment

04 Mark Preston srxcs

Position Group Chief Executive

Apponted to the baard 2006

Experience Mark yoined Grosvenor in

the UK in 1989 Seconded to Hong Kong

In 1995 he returned to lead Grosvenor s
fund manzgement gperations in 1997
spent four years in 5an Francisco

from 2002 became Chief Executive

of Grosvenor Britain & Iseland in 2006
and Group Chief Executive t: 2008

Mark currently holds two Non-Executive
Directorships on the boards of Persimmon
Picand Sonae Sierra SGPS He 1s a Trustee
of The Westminster Foundation and also a
member of the Bearg of The Association
of Faresgn Investars tn Real Estate the
ULl Greenpnint Advisory Board and the
[University of) Cambndge Land Economy
Advrsory Board

05 Nicholas Scarles FCA ATTorney at Law
Pasition Group Finance Director
Appotnted 1o 1he board 2006

Experience Nicholas joined Grosvenor

In 2004 He was previgusly at Centrica
Price Waterhouse and Coapers and
Lybrandin London New York and Toronto
He 15 a Governor of the Haberdashers
Elstree Schools Member of the Court of
Assistaats of the Haberdashers Livery
Campany and a Non-Executive Director
of Sonae Sierra SGPS

Executive Directors

06 Peter Vernon rrxcs

Position Chief Executive

Appointed to the boasd 2005
Experience Peter joined Grosveror in
2005 and became Chief Executive of
Grosvenor Britain & Ireland in 2008

He 152 member of the Royal & Sun
alhiance London Regional Board and

the Board of London First Previously he
was a Partner at IBM Business Consulting
services and PricewalerhouseCoopers

07 Roger Blundall aca

Position Finance Directar

Appointed to the board 2008

Experience Roger joined Grosvenor

n 2007 He was previously Group

Finance Director at Kensington Group

Plc Finance Director at BSkyB Interactive,
and Directer of Group Finance Tax and
Treasury at Kingfisher

08 Giles Clarke wms

Posiion Executive Dicector Longan estate
Appointed to the board 2008

Experience Giles joined Grosvenor in
2007 and s responsible for the London
estate including all invesiment
development and property management
activity He s a Non-Executive Dwector

of Realty Insurance and Chairman of the
westminster Property Association

09 Craig Mcwilllam raxs

Position Executive Director Development
Appointed to the board 2010

Experience Crarg jowed Grosvenor i
2010 and 15 responsibe for Grosvenor
Developments which includes all of the
development activities outside the
London estate He was previously

a Managing Director at Fortress
Investment Group

10 Ulrike Schwarz-Runer nocton o Laws
Position General Counsel

Appointed 1o the board 2011

Experience Ulrike Schwarz-Runer

Joined Grosvenor in 2010 and 1s
responsible for legal governance in
relation to the businesses of Grosvenor
Group Limited and advises on all of
Grosvenor s legal matters in the UK
Ulrke 1s 2 Non-Executive Director of the
Barclays Pension Fund Previously she
was General Counsel of a sovereign
wealth fund and prior to that she was

an Executive Director at Goldman Sachs
Uirike 15 qualitied to practise law in
England and Wales New York and Austria
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
Portfolio

Investment properties

Passing Running Reversionary Number of Grosvenor Assets under

rent ERY yield weld properties share management

tm £m % % £m m

Office 274 399 40 58 234 6910 1,080 3
Retail 145 154 49 52 91 2946 5835
Residential * 233 248 20 21 533 1156 4 19158
652 801 30 37 858 21420 35796

*The majonity of the residential porifolio 1s ground rented and because of this it has a low average yield The average yield on the rack rented portfolio 15 4 4%

Development properties

Number of Grosvenor Assets under
properues share management
£m £m
Office 4 180 2 3704
Retalt 2 138 210
Resdential 14 2125 8740
20 4065 1,265 4
Geographic analysis
Grosvenor share
AsSets under
management
Investment Development Total Total
£m £m £€m £m
London 20733 3011 23744 45482
Outside London 687 1054 1741 2968
21420 4065 25485 4,8450
Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com 33
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
Portfolio
continued

1S presented oppasite

Grosvenor Britain & Ireland manages a portiolio of assets across 300 acres of Mayfair and Belgravia some parts of which are owned directly by the
Grosvenor Trusts The portfolio comprises more than 1,500 retal, residential and commercial properties managed through four location teams

A summary of the London estate investment portfolio 1s set out below In addition Grosvenor Britain & Ireland manages a small portfolio of
investment properties outside the London estate Devetopment actwity 1s managed by the London estate team (for projects in Mayfair and
Belgravia} and by the Grosvenor Developments team {fer all projects outside the London estate) A summary of principal development projects

O Mayfair

Sector Office 185
Retail 8l
Residential 219

Area 717.720m?

with a mix of commercial and residential properties
Mayfair 1s home to some of the world s leading hotels
and restaurants The location includes London s
second largest garden square Grosvenor Square
and one of the capital's most fashionable shopping
destinations Mount Street

[ North Belgravia

Sector Office 81
Retail 23
Residential 275

Area 316,140m?

lust north of Eaton Sguare, this location Is centred
around Belgrave Square To the west, lies Motcomb
Street, a discreet enclave of high-end retailers and
fine restaurants

Eaton Square

Sector Office 3
Residential 77

Area 77 245m?

At the heart of Belgravia, Eaton Square 1s recognised
as one of the finest residential addresses in the
world Arranged around six private gardens the
square Is a series of Imposing stucco-fronted
terraces

B South Belgravia

Sector Office 110
Retait 133
Residential 289

Area 255 280m?

This tocation s home to two retail destinations
Elizabeth Street and Pimlico Road, as well as quiet
residential streets Buckingham Palace Road and
Grosvenor Gardens contain contemporary and
period office bulldings

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland

Portfolio
continued
Compietoon
Property Description tocation Aream? date
Principal development and trading properties — directly owned
Office
50 Grosvenor Hill Prime commercial offices with retained facades west End London 2,800 2012
18-20 Grosvenor Street Part riew, part refurbished prime commercial offices west End London 5,300 2014
33 Grosvenor Street Townhouse offices west End London 1600 2015
69 Grosvenor Street Townhouse offices West End London 2000 2014
Residential
55—73 Duke Street 16 apartments and 1,500m? retat West End London 5000 2012
Qne Park West Residential apartment block Liverpogl Merseyside 19,100 2009
Parkside Place Residential apartment block Cambridge,
Cambridgeshire 11 600 2013
Hotel
8 Balderton Street 80-bed boutique hotel and restaurant West End, tondon 7.900 2014
Development and trading properties — jointly owned/managed on behalf of Grosvenor Trusts
Office
29-37 Davies Street New prime commercial offices and retail west End London 4 800 2013
Residential
Abbey Stadium Residential development Cambridge,
Cambridgeshire 29,000 2018
Barton Development land Oxford Oxfordshire 364 000 2019
Campden Hill Luxury apartment block Holland Park London 18,000 2016
Chelsea Maror Street Luxury apartment block Chelsea, London 9,000 2015
3-10 Grosvenor Crescent Grade II* Listed apartment buwlding with 15 units West End, L.ondon 7600 2012
1-5 Grosvenor Place Mixed-use hotel commergial and residential West End London 36,500 2018
Grouss Pertfolto of Just under 200 flats townhouses Edinburgh & Glasgow
and serviced apartments Scotland 20,000 2010
NEQ Bankside Luxury apartment block Central London 38000 2010-2012
Trumpington Meadows Development land Cambridge
Cambridgeshire 240,000 2016
Mixed-use
Springside Mixed-use, city-centre scheme Edinburgh, Scotland 85000 2019
Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com 35
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Grosvenor Americas

Andrew Bibby Chief Executive

Grosvenor in 1984

Andrew has held many rales in qur
Narth American business since junng

why have so many development projects
underway at once?

“With development activity subdued since

the financial crisis, we are determined to
establish positions early in the recovery
that provide both cost and first mover
advantages With the economy moving
toward recovery, our projects will be

in demand.”

Business ocbjective Number of assets by city
Our aim 1s straightforward through continued Canada
focused expansion, to maintain a financially sustainable g f;'ga’v 2
business and achieve a leading position in a select few vl X
geographic and sectoral markets in Canada and the
United States of Amernca We use our knowledge of usa
these cities and all our other skills to ensure that each B chicago 3
project provides a creative but practical solution to the ;:Z‘;’r'ag:::m :
ambitions of our stakeholders Every ime we get these a0 Jose 3
essentials right we stimulate the flow of attractive deals [ seattle 8
with value-creating investment and development @ washingion 0C QR
opportunities

what we sard we

would do in 2012 What we did in 2012 2012 summary

B Attract financial partners for our B Achieved commitments from Alberta Revenue profit

development projects Teachers' Retirement Fund Board,

Kingswood Capital Corporation, Manitoba ‘ |,$21 5m
Civil Service Superannuation Board and *
a North American investor U €520 3

B Secure planning entitlements W@ Won permission on 15 West and made Total return

te maximise their potential

good progress with discussions on
Ambleside, Square 701 and the North 40

9.5%

B Decide when to commut to construction
and marketing

B Started onsite at 15 West 2011 B 9%
and 1645 Pacific Avenue

Assets under management

B Acqurire well-pnced, income-producing
investments with opportunitres for value-
add improvement for potential acquisition

B Acquired 3023 Hamaker Court and
Waterford Place apartments

C$2.2bn

2011 C$20bn

Grosvenar Annual Report 2012 www Brosvenor com
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Ambleside

West Vancouver, Canada

This signature, mixed-use
development on the waterfront
15 10 the public process phase

37




A 60-year collaboration

www 1300ambleside ca

Ambleside has been a centre of life 1n the Dhstrct of West Vancouver
for the last century A combination of its outstanding natural
environment and ‘West Coast’ culture makes 1t one of Vancouver’s
most sought-after neighbourhoods

Grosvenor, an active developer and investor in Greater Vancouver

sice 1953, now has a rare opportunmty to revitahise this waterfront
commumty and shopping district, redeveloping the 1300 block of
Marine Drive The proposed scheme, designed by James Cheng,
features two terraced buildings that step from two to eight storeys and
will have shops, cafés and restaurants at street level, with residential
condominiums and green roofs above Between the two buildings will
be a 650m? glazed pedestrian galleria, open at both ends A major
sculptural installation by West. Vancouver artist Douglas Coupland has
been proposed to add a significant fimshing touch to the development.

Ambleside, West Vancouver, Canada Opposite
Engaging effectively with communities helps citizens contribute  Jamestheng, archiiect for the

Ambleside development, engages
to decisions that affect the places in which they hive, work members of the West Vancouver

and play commurity ¢unng apublic meeting

After completing the site assembly for the Ambleside project,
we asked hundreds of West Vancouver residents of all ages

to envision the future of the area They were clear about what
they wanted an outdoor ‘living room’ for West Vancouver
(more public spaces). a hub for festivals and events, restaurants
and shops, commitment to the arts, culture and architectural
tradition of the West Coast, and a vibrant Ambleside Their
input informed the re-zoning applhcation that we submitted in
October 2012 to the District of West vancouver

“We believe the Ambleside scheme shows what
our commuitment to place-making 1n key urban
sites can deliver Opportumnities such as this
are rare We are grateful to have had extensive
discussion with the community 1n the crucial
plannming stages 1t helped us to show what our
behef 1n ‘Living cities’ really means ”

James Patillo Sentor Vice-President
and General Manager, Grosvenor Americas

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grasvenor com
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Grosvenor Americas
continued

signs of recovery

Wwith the US and Canadian markets continuing a moderate
pace of growth and our solid financials — revenue profit was
€$215m (2011 €$20 3my), total return was 9 5% (2011 8 9%),
and assets under management were C$2 2bn (2011 (%2 Obn)
— we have an unprecedented pipeline of development projects
underway C%1 3bn development value of projects at varous
stages Fuelled in part by proceeds from asset sales completed
at the beginning of the downturn, we have 16 5% of our capital
allocated to this expanding development pipeline

Our mantra s ‘Focus”

Our approach is to focus closely on areas in which we excel
We concentrate on cifies in which we have a physical presence
and, to a imited extent, other cities which we know well We
are also selective about our product types, teading with retail,
multi-farily residential and mixed-use as our main sectors

A demanding development pipeline

In the stable economic environment of Vancouver, we are
partnering with Manitoba CQivil Service Superannuation Board
to redevelop Ambleside, a prominenit waterfront gateway
site (see pages 37 to 39) Additionally, we recently secured

a prime development site at Edgemant Village in North
Vancouver, where we are studying the feasibility of a large
retall-led scheme (see page 42) Nearby, we commenced
construction of 15 West with a i15-unit, 18-storey residential
and retail tower

“(irosvenor 13 one of a handful of developers who are interested 1n
trying different models and connecting to our city’s aspirations
They also want to be a long-term land owner to
manage a property after they have developed 1t
And you know that they will be cn your
wavelength you'll get the quality you're
looking for”

Larry Beasley, C.M Former Director of City Planning
for the City of vancouver British Columbia,
Founding Principal, Beasley and Associates

€ Manna Dodrs

Grosvenar Annual Report 2012 www Erosvenor {om

In Calgary, the success of condominium sales at Drake, which
15 on time and budget for completion in Autumn 2013, has
embaldened us to embark on a similar project at the end of
the block, Smith (see page 42) With our partner Cressey, we
have revived a residential scheme, Avenue, on 15th Avenue
at the west end of downtown, that we mothballed during the
downturn, we plan to launch salesin Spring 2013 Also on
the West Coast, we continue to acquire and sell apartment
commurities in the Greater Seattle market

tn San Francisco, which enjoys a strong technology-driven
economy, we are examining the feasibility of developing a
18,600m? open-concept retail centre at Pleasant Hili after the
anchor tenant, Kmart, surrendered its lease, we are moving
closer to achieving entitlements for our residential and retaid
project North 40 in Los Gatos, and we commenced construction
of our condominium bullding at 1645 Pacific Avenue (see

page 42)

In Washington, DC, we acGuired Square 701, a very large
riverfront development site from three landowners, with
potential for 42,000m¥ of retall, hotel and 325 residential units,
an office site was concurrently sold We completed the public
engagement process at 8415 Fenton Street in Silver Spring,
Maryland, where our mixed-use groject includes construction
of a new church for the vendor on adjacent land At year-end,
our 125-unit apartment block at District on 14ih Street

(see page 41) was almost complete and under contract for

sale to an investor

Steady improvement in the investment portfolio

Roughly 86% of our portfolio 1s allocated to ncome-producing
investments that have faced challenges due to the economic
climate We have disposed of some income properties because
they did not meet our requirements for rentzal growth Because
record low interest rates will make it difficult to rely upon
further dechimng capitalisation rates to meet our objectives,
we are targeting assets with income-growth potential
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District, Washington, DC

Distnct 1s a mixed-use residential/
retail development located in the
vibrant i4th Street Corridor of
Washington DC It features 125
luxury apartments, a fitness centre,
roof-top lounge water feature and
fire pitand 1 700m? of ground floor
retail A 50/50 partnership with
The JBG Companes District will be
delivered n early 2013

This 15 a computer-generated image

with intense competition, tugh prices and short tmescales

for mvestigating high-quality assets, 1t has been difficult to
augment our portfolio whilst maintaining our selective stance
on acquisitions Nonetheless, declining construction prices
have allowed us to embark on two shopping centre renovation
projects, Broadmead Village Shopping Centre in Saanich and
Westgate West in San Jose, and to implement our reinvestment
plans for our assets at Annacis Business Park In vancouver,
which we have held for 60 years

We have done well with leasing existing assets occupancy
levels remain high at 92 29 (2011 959}, despite a major
tenant bankruptcy We have confidence in our portfolio and
have the financial strength to withstand the pressure to
accept poor terms

People and community

Working at capacity, It has been important to have people in the
right place at the right time In the past year we have recruited
three Investment specialists, promoted Don Capobres to lead
the washington, DC development team and increased our
research capability

Looking ahead

We ook forward to creating further investment partnerships
like the one we formed with Grosvenor Maple Leaf Ventures,
L P to invest in two northern Virgmnia office properties, 3023
Hamaker Court {see page 43) and Campus at Sunrise and a
Seattle apartment community, Waterford Place (see page 43)
Our mezzanine lending programme — which funded loans
totalling C$24m in 2012 — Is one more way we are taking
advantage of the recovery

Such collaborations complement the careful preparations
we have made on our own account to ensure that we are
ready for the upturn

Andrew Bibby
Chief Executve, Grosvenor Americas

“Our C$8 1m renovation of Broadmead Village Shopping
Centre 1ncludes the transformation of the open-awr
gallera into an interactive public realm that wall
become the heart of the shopping centre and the
gathering place for the Broadmead commumty”

Alison Miles Cork Senior Asset Manager,
{rosvenar Americas, Vancouver

with strong local teams, we have close ties to the communities
in which we operate We enjoy our involvement in public
events like the ‘Calgary Stampede’ and San Francisco's
‘Rebuilding Day’ (see page 43), and take pride in the impact
of our environmental initiatives We have four major projects
under construction, which were designed with community
consultation, and are striving for LEED® cernification

Both 251 Post Street in San Francisco, California and Carlyle
Gateway | and i In Alexandria, Virgini were awarded LEED®
Gold status and Broadmead Village Shopptng Centre received
BOMA BESt certification (see our Environment Review at
WWW EIoSvenor com)

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 WwWw grosvenor com

Market outlook

Edeen Marrman Director of Research
Grosvenor Americas

Trends in the US housing market

US housing market indicators began improving in mid-2011
and strengthened during 2012 Sales volumes have
Increased, inventory has dwindled and home prices are
registering gamns

Today’s low home prices and historically low interest rates
make home ownership very affordable The average annual
mortgage payment represents only 996 of househald
ncome, 40% below its long-term average Government
intervention and private enterprise are mitigating the impact
of the nation's ‘shadow inventory’ of vacant and foreclosed
homes Returning demand, driven by increasing household
formation and greater hiousing affordabihity, suggests a
positive outlook for this sector for the next five years
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Grosvenor Americas

Stories from the year

Edgemont Village, North Vancouver:
a mixed-use development opportunity

Development sites in Edgemont
Village are rare An established
shopping enclave only 15 minutes
from downtown Vancouver, it offers
schools, parks and other amemties
Whule 1t 18 a desirable place in which
to hive, 1t lacks the high-quality
multi-family housing stock which

18 1n strong demand, particularly

by people looking to downsize

In 2012 we entered 1nto a purchase and
sale agreement for a one-hectare site 1n
the Village, the largest development site
ever assembled 1n the area We believe
that ocur proposed mixed-use development
— comprising for-sale condominums
and town-homes, retail space anchored
by an upgraded, full-service grocery
store and new office space —will greatly
benefit the commumty

www drakel7.com

Drake and Smith,
Calgary: replicating
success

Drake — a development of 135
residential condominiums over 17
storeys —1s located 1n Calgary’s
Belthine, an estabhished residential,
retail and commercial area Its
popularity shows the desire amongst a
young demographic for new, mgh-end
but affordable, energy-efficient homes
close to existing shops and restaurants
We used social media to create
awareness and, since sales launch,
realised 11 sales from our Twatter and
Facebook campaipns — 10% of the total
at year end, Drake was 80% pre-sold

The success of Drake has encouraged
us to commit to Smith - a near replhica
at the opposite end of the same block,
with 140 umits 1n a similar structure
and floor plan With design work
progressing efficiently, we plan to hold
our pre-sale launch much earlier than
anticipated — 1n Autumn 2013

“A quick walk to work, and a quicker one to
mightlife, make the location phenomenal
it's at the confluence of 17th Avenue,
Downtown, Mission and Ist Street areas
The floor plan, interior details and price
sealed the deal”

lessie Shire
A purchaser at Orake

1645 Pacific Avenue,
San Francisco:
a creative solution

In March 2007, Grosvenor offered a
mezzamne loan to a San Franciscan
developer with whom we had a previous
successful relationship On a site 1n
Pacific Hexghts, this developer had
planned construction of 39 large
condorminium units and three street-
level retail spaces The scheme was
moving forward with entitlements
when the global financial ersis
challenged its viability In a mutually
beneficial arrangement, we acquired
the entitled property and retained the
developer as a consultant

Grosvenar Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com

The resulting collaboration wall
delwver a luxury condominium
building 1n one of the city's most
exclusive neighbourhoods With the
condomimmum market improving

and a technology-driven local economy
that 1s leading the US 1n performance,
this project promises favourable
returns for both parties whale
enhancing our reputation as a high-
quality, mixed-use residential

developer

This 18 a computer-generated 1mage

www 1645pacific com
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Grosvenor Americas

Stories from the year
continued

Waterford Place,
Seattle: rural living
in an urban setting

In August 2012 we acquured Waterford
Place 1n Woodinville, Washungton, to
help meet our strategic objective of
building a portfolw of value-add rental
properties in the Puget Sound region

This suburb provides easy access

to downtown Seattle and the region’s
largest employment centres, including
Microsoft's Redmond headquarters,

the Bothell Technology Cornidor and
Boeing’s Everett aurcraft assembly
facihty The area also offers huking
and biking on the Burke-Gilman
Sammamish trails, summer concerts
at local winerres and other recreation
Our seven-hectare property comprises
17 three-storey apartment buildings
and a single-storey community
clubhouse We plan a substantial
renovation, under the new brand
name of Campbell Run, upgrading
the community's amemities, clubhouse,
landscaping, apartment 1intenocrs

and signage

The ‘Calgary
Stampede’

and ‘Rebuilding
Day’: supporting our

Grosvenor has been active in Calgary
since 1997 and maintaiming ties with
the local community 1s important to

us We like to sponsor events that many
people can emoy One such event is

an outdoor congert called ‘Stampede

USA by providing critical home repairs
to low-1ncome homeowners free of
charge In Aprl 2012, six of our

San Francisco staff participated in
‘Rebuilding Day’, a exty-wide effort that
brings together thousands of volunteers

Wiy Roundup’, held during the annual to repair the homes of low-1ncome,
Communltl'es Calgary Stampede in July The concert disabled or elderly San Francisco
provides an ideal opportumty to residents and renovate schools
increase our visibihity in the Calgary
market and our support increases our
visihhity amongst a wide audience of “The ‘Rebuilding Day’ was an excellent
over one milhion visitors who come to way to get involved and to help people
the rodeo, exiubition and festival In our commumity Qur team worked
with a local resident to repant the
Working with property-focused chanties  inside of her house and clean debris
18 another good way of giving back to from her backyard It 1s possible to
our local commumty ‘Rebuilding make a difference in one long day
Together’ 15 a national not-for-profit of concerted effort”
orgamsation that helps preserve Whitnev Sylvester
affordable home ownership and Devertgmgnta:rdmator,
revitalise neighbourhoods 1n the Grosvenor Americas
Hamaker Court, park and adjacent land entitled for

Fairfax:
a rare medical factlity

In July 2012 we acquired a 11,200m?
medical office building 1n the Mernfield
area of Fairfax, Virgima Located at
3023 Hamaker Court, minutes from
the new amemty-rich Mernfield Town
Center and Dunn Loring Metro station,
the property includes a seven-storey car

Grosvenar Annual Report 2012 www Erosvenor com

development of a second bwlding with
additional parking The only facility of
1ts kind built in this submarket in the
last decade, 1t has exceptional guality
and access, prestigious tenants and
proximity to INOVA Farrfax, one of the
country’s best hospitals We planto
lease the rest of the space to additional
medical practitioners whose speaalties
complement those of our existing
tenants
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Grosvenor Americas
Board of Directors

Asat 14 March 2013

Non-Executive Directors

01 Brandt C Loufe eac i Fca

Position Chairman

Appointed o the board 2010

Experience Brands 1s Chawrman and Chief
Exetutive Officer of HY Louie Co Limited
and Chairman of the Board for Landon
Drugs Ltd He s Chancellor Emeritus of
Simon Fraser Unwersity and serves as
aboard member ofticer or trustee of
numerous organisations including Raval
Bank of Canada 1GA Canada warld
Economic Forum Duke University Medical
Center Duke Heart Center Vancouver
Community College Vancouver Board

of Trade Fraser (nstitute and Harvard
University s John F Kennedy Schoot

of Government

02 JamesE Hyman

Appointed to the beard 2011

Experience James has more than 25 years
of experience (n international busmness
leaderstup He 15 ¢urrently President and
Chief Execuiive Officer of TestAmerica
Prior 1o that hewas Chairmar President
Chietf Executive Officer and a Directar

of Cornell Companies Earlier he held
executive posiions in the USA and Eurape
with FTI Starwaod Hotels & Resorts
Worldwrde GE Capital McKunsey &
Company and | P Morgan amang athers
He chairs the non-profit Mega-Cities
Project focused on urban development
1ssues 1n the world s largest cities

03 fohn T Roberts, Jr

Appointed to the boarg 2010

Experience John has more than 25 years
of experience 1n the commercial real
estate industry having served most
recently as President of AMB Capital
Partners Before that he served as Senigr
Vice Presideni and Director of Capital
Markets for AMB Property Carporgtion
Earlier in his career he held positions

at Ameritech Pension Trust in Chicago
Richard Elbs Inc and L) Hooker
International Realty He s currently

a board member of DuPont Fabros
Technology

04 Mark Preston urcs

Position Group Chief Executive

appointed to the board 2008

Experience Mark [oined Grosvenor in

the UK in 1989 Secended to Hong Kong
111995 he returned o lead Grosvenor s
fund management operations in 1997
spent four years In San Francisco

from 2002 became Chief Executive

aof Grosvenor Britain & Ireland in 2006
and Group Chief Executive In 2008

Mark turrently holds two Non-Executive
Directorships on the boards gf Persimmon
Pic and Sonae Sierra SGPS He s a Trustee
of The westminster Foundation and alsoa
member of the Board of The Association
of Fareign Invesions in Reat Estate the
ULt Greenprint Advisory Beard and the
{Unwersity of) Cambndge Land Ecoromy
Advisory Board

05 Nicholas Scarfes roa sTToRNEY AT Law
Pasition Group Finance Director
Appointed io the board 2006
Experience Nicholas joined Grosvenor
12004 He was previeusly at Centrica
Price Waterhouse and Coopers and
tybrand in London New York and Toronto
He 1s 2 Governor of the Haberdashers
Elstree Schools Member of the Court of
Assistants of the Haberdashers Livery
Company and a Non-£xecutive Director
of Scnae Sterra 5GPS
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Executlve Directors

06 Andrew Bibby

Pasitian Chief Executive

Appointed to the board 2009
Experience Andrew joined Grosvenor
n 1984 and became Chief Executive

of Grosvenor Americas in 2009 During
this ime he has been invalved with
the acquisition development and
management of all property types and
hasworked in Vancouver Calgary and
San Francisco Heis currently a Director
of Canachan Western Bank hasserved
a5 a past Director of the Real Property
Asseciation of Canada and 15 a former
member of the Sauder Business School
adwisory board

07 Rekha Patel cpa

Positian Finance Directar

Appointed to the board 2003
Experience Rekha joined Grosvenaor in
2003 following 12 years with the real
estate investment arm of GIC Real Estate
ihe Singaperean sovereign wealth fund
She 15 a member of Cemmercial Real
Estate women and a Director on the
Board of the Yerba Buena Center for
the Arts
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Grosvenor Americas

Portfolio

Investment properties
Passing Running Reversionary Number of Grosvenor Assets under
rent ERV yekd weld properiies share management
csm ém % L] m (& 1]
Office 128 143 81 S0 5 158 5 3999
Retall 317 361 53 63 21 574 8 10537
Residential 184 199 80 86 8 2308 278 8
Hotel 27 27 160 160 I 169 677
Industriai 77 61 56 44 1 1384 1384
733 791 65 71 36 11194 19385
Development properties
Number of Grasvenor Assets under
praperties share  management
tm {sm
Mixed-use 5 821 821
Residential 6 785 1427
1 1606 2248
Geographic analysis
Grosvenor share
Financal Assets under
Investment Development assets Total management
4m csm Cim Cm Cém
USA 7799 774 71 864 4 16290
Canada 3395 83z 131 4358 554 4
11194 160 & 202 13002 2,183 4
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Grosvenor Americas
Portfolio
continued
Property Deschplion Location Aream?

Investment properties — directly owned

Retail
DVC Plaza Community shopping centre Pleasant Hill CA, LISA 18,100
Hamilton Marketplace Grocery-anchored, community shopping centre Navato, CA, USA 8400
La Colonnade Three-storey, mixed-use buillding with retail

and office space Beverly Hills CA, USA 2,300
Los Gatos Village Square Twa-storey, grocery-anchored community shopping

centre with retall and shopping space Los Gatos, CA USA 4300
Venator Building Urban retail building Calgary, AB, Canada 2,500
Westgate West Community shopping centre SanJose CA, USA 21,700
Residential
Bluwater 152-unit apartment community Everett, WA, USA 13000
Peloton 150-unit apartment community Redmond, WA, USA 11,800
Industrial
Annacis Business Park Warehouse and distribution park Delta, BC, Canada 86 000
Mixed-use
1520 Fourth Street Ten-storey office bullding with 2,200m? retail Calgary AB (anada 9900
Chelsea at luanita village Mixed-use storefront retail with

196-unit apartment community above Kirkland, wa, USA 16,700
Investment properties — jontly owned
Hotel
Courtyard by 226-room hotel Chevy Chase, MO USA 10 500
Marriott Chevy Chase
Office
3023 Hamaker Court Medical office building with seven-levels of parking Farfax VA USA 11200
The Campus at Sunrise Three low-nse office buldings Reston, VA UsA 23,600
Carlyle Gateway | & Il Two six-storey office bulldings with ground ftoor

retail and parking Alexandria VA USA 23200
1701 Pennsylvania Avenue NW  12-storey office bullding with ground floor

retall and parking Washington, DC, USA 18,000
Retail
Broadmead village
Shopping Centre Community shopping centre Saanich, BC, fanada 11 800
Church Street Plaza Community lifestyle centre Evanston, IL, USA 16,500
Coventry Hills Shopping Center  Community shopping centre Calgary, AB, Canada 12,600
Frantier Drve Metro Center Community shopping centre Springfield VA USA 9800
830 North Michigan Avenue Six-storey retait building Chicago, IL, USA 11 700
308-310 North Roden Drive Retail building Beverly Hills CA, LISA 1,400
Rice Lake Square Nine-building community shopping centre Wheaton IL USA 23,400
Restdential
Borgata Apartments 83-unit apartment and town-home community Renton WA, USA 8,700
Northshore Townhomes 86-unit town-home community Kenmore, WA USA 11600
Waterford Place 360-unit apartment community Woodinvitle, WA, USA 27,500
West Ridge Park 239-unit apartment community Seattle WA USA 21,900
Woodcreek Apartment Homes 164-unit apartment community Lynwood, WA LISA 15500

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grasvenor com
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Grosvenor Americas
Portfolio
continued
Property Description Location Argam?®
Investment properties — jointly owned (continued)
Mixed-use
180 Post Street Three-storey, mixed-use building with
retall and office space san Francisco, CA USA 2,700
185 Post Street Six-storey, mixed-use building with
retail and office space San Francisco, CA, LSA 1900
251 Post Street Six-storey, msxed-use buiding with
retail and office space San Francisco CA USA 3,100
Dupont Circle properties Three-buillding retait portfolio Washington, DC, USA 4300
Friendship Hetghts properties Two-building retail portfolio Washington, DC/
Chevy Chase MD USA 14,400
High Street Suburban street-front retail in a mixed-use building Surrey, BC Canada 1,600
The RISE Mixed-use shopping centre development
with 92 live-work rental lofts Vancouver, BC, Canada 26,500
Woaodley Park properties Three-bullding retail portfoio Washington DC USA 5,100
Completion
Property Description Locaton Aream? date
Prinaipal development and trading properties — wholly owned
Residential
Drake 135-umit, multi-family development in the constructionphase  Calgary, AB, Canada 10 000 2013
Smith 140-unit, multi-family development tn the pre-entitlement
phase Calgary AB Canada 10,500 2016
1645 Pacific Avenue 39-unit, boutique condominium with underground parking San Francisco, CA, USA 7400 2014
Mixed-use
Ambleside Full-block, waterfront, residential-retail re-zoning in the vancouver BC Canada 23,800 2016-2018
public-process phase
Fenton Street 250-unit multi-family development with 2,300m? Sitver Spring, MD USA 21,800 N/A
retail in the pre-entitlement phase
North 40 33-acre phased mixed-use village development in the Los Gatos, CA, USA 74,300 2015-2020
Specific-Plan phase
Sguare 701 325-unit, mixed-use development with 3,000m? of retall washington, DC USA 42,000 2015
and a 170-key hotel
Principal development and trading properties — jointly owned
Residential
15 West 115-umt, multi-family development in the construction phase North Vancouver BC
Canada 12,300 2014-2015
Mixed-use
Avenue 319-unit mixed-use development with 2000 of retanl Calgary, AB, Canada 30300 20162018
District 125-unit, mixed-use development with 1,700m? of retail washington DC USA 11,100 2013
Edgemont Village 90-unit, mixed-use development in the pre-entitlement Nerth Vancouver, BC,
phase with 6 300m? of retail Canada 15100 2017
Grosvengr Annual Report 2012 Www Srosvenor com 47
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Grosvenor Asia Pacific

Nicholas Loup Chief Executive

Nicholas has had over 20 years with
Grosvenor almost afi based in Asia

Why do you put such emphasis on the standards
of design?

“The aesthetic and functional quality of

our buildings 1s what will set them — and
us — apart over the long term. Marrying
local expertise with 1international designers
should ensure that our developments
remain admired features of the urban
landscape for many decades”

Business objective Number of assets by city
We are positioning ourselves for the long term in Asia, China
with three distinct aims. First, we are bulding a luxury B Hong kong 2
residential brand under the Grosvenor banner, O stangha 2
differentiated by the quality and internationalism Japan
of its design, secondly, we are growing a diversified Osaka 1
portfolio of core investments in this and other sectors [ Tokvo 4

through co-investment partnerships, and thardly,
looking further ahead, we are preparing to develop
best-in-class buildings in the central business districts
of Shanghat and Beljing as high-quality long-term
investments, solely or in partnership.

What we said we
would do in 2012

What we did in 2012

2012 summary

@ Invest the capital raised for our residential
development partnership

B Expanded our programme of residential
developments by acquinng Monterey
Court, Hong Kong

Revenue profit

2011 HK$154 8 m

Total return

W Deploy remaining proprietary capital
I ivestment opportunities

B Committed remaining proprietary capital
to our first office asset in Beying —
a strategic milestone

8.7%

2011 8 0%

Assets under management

HK$8.5bn

2011 HK$7 sbn

HK$120.5m

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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The Westminster Terrace
Hong Kong, China

Castle Peak Road, running
along the waterfront,
prowides quick access

to both Hong Kong
International Airport and
Marinland China
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Good design

www thewestrminsterterrace.com

QOur approach to developing residential property in Asia 1s to bring
fresh 1deas to this market, introducing innovative materials and
high-specification fimshes which complement local traditions and
preferences We do this by working with a team of trusted, influential
consultants who understand how to create very high-quality spaces
that are uniquely sensitive to our customers’ requirements. This has
allowed us to grow a portfolio of award-winning developments across
the region, including Grosvenor Place Kamizono-cho, 1n Tokyo, and
Grosvenor Place Repulse Bay and The Westminster Terrace, both 1in

Hong Kong.

The Westmunster Terrace, Hong Kong, China

The Westminster Terrace — the most recent example of this
approach, completed in 2009 — 15 a signature residential
development, designed in collaboration with the English
architect Paul Dawvis and interior designers Koichiro tkebuchi
and Tara Bernerd, from Japan and England respectively
The scheme provides 59 duplex apartmenits, including two
panoramic units and one penthouse apartment, with unigt
sizes ranging from 300m2 to 550m?

Through a design process co-ordinated with all three

practices, we were able to make the most of the development’s
surroundings and we set a benchmark for generous floor plans
The tast of the apartments in The Westminster Terrace sold In
May 2012, rounding off total sales at 179 above initial estimates
— a mark, we believe, of the success of the collaboration
between consultants and chent

“Gaven the marvellous panoramic views available
at The Westminster Terrace’s site on Castle Peak
Road, we decided — amongst other things — to
provide unusually large balconmes that would allow
residents to enjoy their surroundings to the full”

SH Fung Projects Director
Grosvenor Asia Pacific

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenar com

Opposiie

The entrance lobby at
The Westrminster Terrace
features interior design
by Koichirg [kebuchi

50



Praprietary activities — direct

Grosvenor Asia Pacific
continued

Roppong Arents, Tokyo
Retrofitting at Roppong! Arents, to
be completed in Q3 2013, will bring
the develppment up to Grosvenor s
international design standards —
with good space-planning, modern
aesthetics and the highest-guality
materials

This I1s a computer-generated image

Strong markets

In Hong Kong, housing prices remained strong despite
government measures to temper price growth China was more
resilient than expected, although credit will remain tight in the
property market until the new leadership has time to settle In
Tokyo, simproved fundamentals and tight supply will continue to
drive housing prices higher, offering furither good oppoertunities
to vest At year end, revenue profit was HK$120 5m, down

on 2011 (HK$154 8m) due to lower trading profits, total returns
increased to 8 79 (2011 8 0%), assets under management
tncreased to HK$8 5bn (2011 HK$7 6bn) Our financial capacity
remains sufficient to meet our Investment plans

Playing the long game

we made good strategic advances in 2012, mvesting in our
residential development pipeline in Hong Kong and Japan,
which now stands at HK$820m., representing HK$5 1bn under
management We invested HK$245m in residential investment
properties in Japan All thus will help us improve long-term
revenue and trading profit We are increasing our development
ratio towards 13% in 2016 currently it stands at 9 2%

Growing into a leading residential development brand
We sold the remaining 13 units at The Westminster Terrace (see
pages 49 to 51), Hong Kong, significantly exceeding our budget

The acquisition of Monterey Court at Jardine’s Lookout with
our partners Asia Standard and Couture Homes provides a
development opportunity to exceed the standards and scale
of The Westmenster Terrace at a superb residential site on
Hong Kong Island (see page 53)

“It 18 vital to create homes that not only
catch the eye but are also practical to
live In With Monterey Court — our
fourth residential development
in Asia with Grosvenor — we hope
again to achieve this balance "

Pau! Davis Founder Paul Davis & Partners

In Tokyo we signed an agreement to acquire Park Habio Azabu
Tower, a 99-unit, high-rise apariment budding to be a value-
add residential project

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor Com

Creating and nurturing enduring mvestments

We committed to the acquisition of nine floors of China
Merchants Tower, a Grade A office building in Chaoyang, Beytng,
and our first substantial investment in the office sector in China

We acquired The Mark Minami Azabu, an 11-unit luxury
residential bullding built in 2008 1n Tokyo A wholly-owned
asset, it should contribute sigmificantly to our recurring income

Refurbishment at Roppong Arents, Tokyo will improve a key
commoen area and a first selection of units (see above)

Our investment at PCCW Tower, Island East, Hong Kong,
remamed at 100% occupancy InJapan, Nazaka Cuidaore in
0Osaka and Shinsen in Tokyo also performed strongly, at 99 8%
and 100% respectively Overall the occupancy figure was 95 5%
(2011 97%)

We sold the penulumate unit at Grosvenor Place, Lakeville
Regency, n Shanghas, and Yoshiyasu Kanda in Tokyo, releasing
HK$240m for our developrment and investment programme

Integrated operations across three markets

Our able Chairman Tim Freshwater will hand over in July to hus
successor Keith Kerr (see page 9) we are grateful for Tim’s
good counsel over many years

Yu Yang joined the Executive Directors on our board in
November, an important recognition of the quahty of our
locally-based expertise Koshuro Hroi's rermit has been
extended to Managing Director, Development, across the
region to facilitate sharing of know-how

We are seeing the benefits of further investment in our
management team to ensure (ntegration and consistent rigour
across our expanding operations Our professional probity

15 particularly important, not only to Grosvenor but also to

our partners and staff, who value tratning in matters such as
business ethics
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Collaboration with leading institutions
We were invited to join the annual China Development Forum
for the first ime (see right) Together with a group of Fortune

500 companies, we are contributing to a report on sustainable

urbanisation to be submitted to the new leadership at the
2013 Forum

we continue our support of the China Development Research
Foundation A report on their research into sustainable
affordable housing on the mainland was published in

March 2013

Qur involvemnent with the World Economic Forum and with
ANREV, the Asian association for investors in non-histed real
estate vehicles, continues

Nick Loup
Chief Executive, Grosvenor Asia Pacific

Grosvenor Asia Pacific

Stories from the year

The China Development
Forum: global debating

Lesley Knox and Nick Loup attended the 9th China
Development Forum, held at the Diaoyuta: State
Guesthouse 1n Beying, 1n March 2012 Lesley was a
speaker at a session on the dilemmas facing the property
market in China and possible solutions, and was one

of a select group of international delegates greeted by
Premier Wen J1abao 1n person The Forum brings
together semior mumsters and officials from China

with semor leaders from top multi-national corporations,
prominent academics, scholars and leaders of major
NGOs, to discuss the wider 1ssues around China’s
future development

Market outlook

Harry Tan Head of Research
Grasvenar Asia Pacific

Asia’s megacities are centred on Chuna

The world's urban landscape 15 changing and Asia witl be
at the epicentre of a decisive shift from West to East in
the coming decades By 2050, about 63% of the world’s
population will be hving in cities, 35% of them in the East

14 new intra-urban metro systems in the pipeline, will open
up new areas of land for development Rapid urbanisation
will increase household and wealth growth, strengthening
demand for housing Grosvenor’s strategy of contributing
to urban development by providing environmentally-sound,
high-qualty residences 1s well-founded

Many of tomorrow’s economic success stories will arise from
Asia’s aities In China, new transport infrastructyre, including

Monterey Court, Hong Kong:
building partnerships

Partnerships remain a key part of our strategy 1n Asia
Our joint mvestment with Couture Homes Lamited and
Asia Standard International 1in Monterey Court 1s the
latest reminder of the gains from working wath lhike-
minded and capable partners It continues our frutful
relationship with Asia Standard, with whom this wall
be our third resadential development, 1t also marks the
begrnnng of our partnership with Couture Homes, who
share Grosvenor’s passion for crafting special residences
for buyers The prize 1n 2017 should be a truly iconic
bulding on Hong Kong’s skyhne

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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Grosvenor Asia Pacific
Board of Directors

As at 14 March 2013

Non-Executive Dtrectors

01 Tim Freshwater

Positien Chairman

Appointed to the board 2005

Expenence Tim s currently an Advisory
Director of Goldman Sachs having been
Vvice Chairman there from 2005-2012
Prior to that he was Chairman of lardine
Fieming following 29 years with Slaughter
and May Tim s a Director of several Iisted
companees including Sware Pacific and
Hong Kong Exchanges and Cleanng
Limited and 15 3 Director of the
Communiy Chest of Hong Kong

02 Kensuke Hotta

Appointed tq the board 2008
Experience Kensuke 1s currently Chairman
of Greenhill & Co Japan tid and
oreviously served as Charman of
Morgan Stanley Japan from 2001-2007
Prioriothat he was Deputy President of
Sumitome Bank and also worked for
lapan s Ministry of Finance for two years
He has served as a Director or Adviser
for various instigutions universities and
foundations

03 Michael Lee

Appointed to the board 2008
Experience Michael is Managing Director
of MAP Capital Ltd as well as an
independent Non-Executive Director
of Chen Hsong Holdings Ltd Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Ltd and Trinity
Ltd Hewas Managing Director of
Hysan Development Company Ltd from
2003-2007 and was appointed to the
board of Hysan &5 a Non-Executive
Dwrector n January 2010

04 Norman Lyle ose

Appointed 10 the board 2008

Expenence Norman 15 Non-Executive
Director of Standard Chariered Bank
(Hong Kong) Ltd and Msheireb Properties
He was Group Finance Director of Jardine
Mathesen Holdings Lid untit his retirement
1n 2005 and prior to this waorked for
Zeneca Group Plc and ICI Pic where he
was Group Treasurer and worked 10 the
UK Kenya and Malaysia

05 Mark Preston uexcs

Position Group Chief Executive

Appainted to the board 2008

Experience Mark joined Grosvenor in

the UK 1n 198% Seconded to Hong Kong

N 1995 he returned to lead Grosvenor §
fund management operations n 1997
spent four years in San Francisco

from 2002 became Chief Executive

of Grosvenor Britain & Ireland m 2006
and Group Chief Executive in 2008

Mark currentty holds two Non-Executive
Directorstups on the boards of Persimmon
Pl and Sonae Sierra SGPS He s a Trustee
of The westminster Foundation and zlso a
member of the Board of The Assoctation
of Fereign investors in Real Estate the
ULl Greenprint Adwisory Board and the
(University of) Cambridge Land Econonny
Advisory Board

06 Nichodas Scarles Foa ATTORNEY AT Law
Pesition Group Finance Director
Appaented to the board 2007
Expernence Nicholas joined Grosvenar
112004 He was previously at Centrica
Price Waterhouse and Coapers and
Lybrand inLondon New York and Toronto
He 15 a Governor of the Haberdashers
Elstree Schools Member of the Court of
Assistants of the Haberdashers Livery
Cempany and a Non-Executive Director
of Sonae Sierra SGPS

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com

Execitive Directors

07 Nicholas Loup

Positgn Chief Executive

Appointed to the board 1998
Expenence Nicholas established the
operation in Asia Paafic In 1994 He s
a General Committee member of the
British Chamber of Commerce anda
Director of the Spinal Cord Inury Fund
He is also Chairman of ANREV of which
he 15 a founder member and a member
of the Warld Economic Forum s Fiscal
Sustainability Glotal Agenda Council

08 William Lo roca cra

Position Chief Operating Offrcer
Appointed ta the board 2002

Expenence Wilham joned Grosvenor

n 2002 as Finance Director He was
appointed Chief Operaung Otficer In
March 2012 responsible for driving
performance and operational efficiencies
across Grosvenor Asia Pacific Before
Jjoining Grosvenor he worked for 11 years
with AlA Capital Corporation as Finance
Director for the regicn and six years with
Coopers and Lybrand in Hong Kong

09 Chnistopher Ip

Position Finance Qirector

Appointed to the board 2012

Experience Christopher joined Grosvenar
in March 2012 after seven years with the
Jardina Matheson Group where he was
Finznce Director of several companies
He was Executive Directer of Hopewell
Highway Infrastruciure between 2003
and 2005 and prior to that was in the
mergers and acquisitions divisions of
Morgan Stanley and Deutsche Bank

In Hong Kong

10 Koshiro Hiro)

Position Managing Director Development
(As1a Paaific) Chief Representative lapan
Appointed to the board 2011

Experience Koshiro joined Grosvenor

In 2001 a3 Chief Representative and

led the growth of the business in lapan
Before joining Grosvenor he worked for
American private fund Lone Star Group
and lapanese developer Tokyo Tatemong

11 Yu Yang

Position Managing Director

Invesiment (Greater China)

Appainted to the board 20:2

Experience Yu Yang joined Gsosvenar

1N 2004 as Chief Representative for China
bullding vp Shanghas eperations and
spearheading the company 5 Investment
activities i China Before joining
Grosvenar Yang workeg at First China
Property Group an opporturistic fund
managed by Macquarne Bank

o1

02

03

Q4

05

06

07

08

09

10
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Grosvenor Asia Pacific
Portfolio

Investment properties

Passing Runaing Reversianary Nuember of Grosvenor Asgets under
rent ERV yield yield properties share management
HK$m HK$m % 9% HX$m HK3m
Office 1233 1412 41 47 2 29794 2979 4
Retad 186 186 59 59 i 3138 6275
Residential 636 675 60 63 4 10652 18653
2055 2273 47 52 7 43584 54722
Development and trading properties
Nurber ot Grasvenoe AsSels under
properties share  management
HKIm HK$m
Resdential 2 4476 3.0009
Geographic analysis
Grosvenor share
Assets under
Financiat management
Investment Development assets Total Total
HK§ e HK$m HK3m HK3m HK$m
Hong Kong 28100 2948 392 31440 4,3221
China 542 2 - - 542 2 5422
lapan 1006 2 1528 - 11590 3.6480
4384 4476 392 4,845 2 85123
Property Descnption Location Areary
Investment properties — directly owned
Office
Shinsen Bullding Office building in Shibuya-ku Tokyo, Japan 2,800
Residential
Chester Court at Gubet High-end, serviced apartment buiding in Guber Shanghal China 13800
Grosvenor Place at One unit 1 a luxury residential apartment
Lakeville Regency bulding in hingan shanghal, China 970
The Mark Minami Azabu Residential property in Minato-Ku Tokyo japan 3600
Investment properties — jointly owned
Office
PCCW Tower Office building in Quarry Bay Hong Kong, Ching 57,600
Retail
Nakaza Cudaore Bullding Retail property tn Chuc-ku Osaka, Japan 8,700
Residential
Grosvenor Place Kamizono-cho  Residential develgpment in Shibuya-ku Tokyo Japan 18,100
Complelan
Property Descripion Locaton Argam’ date
Development and trading properties — jointly owned
Residential
Roppong! Arents Residential property m Minato-ku Tokyo Japan 21700 2003
Monterey Court Residential development i Jardine s lookout Hong Kong China 5,400 2017

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvencr com
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Proprietary activities — indirect

Grosvenor Annuai Report 2012

Www grosvenor com

Grosvenor invests indirectly in property in
two ways.

We currently have co-investments in 23
investment vehicles managed by Grosvenor
Fund Management — five in the UK, four
in the US, six in Continental Europe, six
in Asia Pacific and two international funds.

We also have indirect investments in
property, managed by third-parties.

Our largest indirect investment is our
shareholding in Sonae Sierra, a shopping
centre specialist whose sector focus and
geographical reach complements our own.
We first invested 1n Sonae Sierra in 1996
and since then have twice increased our
holding: we now control 50% of the company.

Our indirect portfolio 1s managed
centrally by a small team in the Grosvenor
Holding Company led by Chris Taite,
Group Investment Director, based in

our London office.
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Indirect investments

Mark Preston Group Chief Executive

Since 2011 Grosvenor sindirect
Investments have been managed
centrally Mark chairs the Group
Investment Committee

Why is it so important for Grosvenor to co-invest in

Grosvenor Fund Management’s investment vehicles?

“The spread of investments assists 1n the
pursuit of our daversification objective.
Also, by putting Grosvenor capital to work
alongside other investors in Grosvenor If'und
Management’s funds, we aim to reassure
investors that Grosvenor’s interests are
aligned with theirs.”

Business ohjective

Number of investments by country

The Group's objective, through indirect investments in
property, is to diversify its property portfolio further and
achieve strong risk-adjusted returns by exposure to sectors,
countries, mvestment types and management teams which
its direct property investments do not provide We achieve
this by investing in funds, clubs and other investment
vehicles run by Grosvenor Fund Management, and by
investing with specialist third-parties

O Austala
O Brazi
China
] cContinental Europe
A apan
@ uk
usa
Intemational

NN WsS e~ = N

*Exposure to 8razil s through the
Inyestment n Sonae Sierra which

15 also in Continental Europe

what we said we

would do in 2012

what we did in 2012

2012 summary

B Seek new investment opportunities
with Grosvenor Fund Management

@ Through Grosvencr Fund Management
- Invested in a global real estate
equity fund,
= nvested in a new Swedish
shopping centre, and
~ commuitted to invest in core real
estate in the USA

B Lock for further investment
opportunities with third-parties

W Invested with specialist
third parties

— 19 Investment LLP (UK industrial), and

— High Street Realty Fund IV, (US ndustrtal
and logistecs)

M Strengthen evaluation of our
performance as investment manager
internally and agamnst benchmarks

B Developed historic performance analysis
at indwvidual and portfoho nvestment
level, facilitating benchmark analysis

Revenue profit

£49.0m

2011 £591m

Total return

1.5%

2011 3 0%

Equity invested

£47.5m

2011 £3410m

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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Energy Parkway
Baltimore, Maryland, USA
An acquisiion made by
High Street Equity Advisors
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Connecting cities

Through the indirect element 1n our proprietary portfolio, we seek to
1invest 1n sectors and geographies 1n which our proprietary operating
companies do not have broad 1n-house capability As 1n other parts of
the Grosvenor Group, we focus on aties, taking careful account of what
makes them successful over the long term.

2012 saw the Group make 1its first foray into a real estate sector
that 1s vital to sustainable city growth logistics Urban centres are
constantly vying for business and need continucusly to increase
their competitiveness; better logistics help achieve this by improving
connectivity — enabling businesses and individuals to get therr goods
and services to market quucker, more rehably and at lower cost

Investment n the industniat and logistics sector with Oppasite
High Street Equity Adwviscrs 2012 saw us diversify into the
As the pace of globalisation and urbanisation increases, the fogistics sector investing in property

that helps people gel their goods

demand for good logistics from both sndividual and business more efficiently

customers grows more intense, making it a thriving real estate
market To gain exposure to It, we took an indirect investment
position in a specialist fund with High Street Equity Advisors,
based in Boston, USA The founding Directors of High Street
average more than 33 years of real estate experience Since
the company was formed in 2002, 1t has acquired over
1,500,000m? of industrial and logistics property at a total
cost In excess of US$900m With a tearn of 20 highly focused
regional and sector specizlists, they are able to use therr
extensive knowledge of local markets to understand both
tenant and investor demand

“We take great pride 1n having Grosvenor as
partner and investor, and hope that through
execution, performance and communication we
will earn the opportunty to expand our
relationship over time "

Bob Chagares President and Chuef tnvestment Qfficer
High Street Equity Advisors
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Indirect investments
continued

A difficult year for investment returns

In 2012, the return to Grosvenor from our indirect investment
in property fell, largely attributable to our exposure to
European retail The portfolio contributed £49 Om In revenue
profit (2011 £591m), and a1 5% total return (2011 3 0%)

This performance 1s disappointing but 1t should be put in the
tontext of the current low point 1in the property cycle together
with the overall weakness of the warld economy On the
positive side, the compesition of our indirect portfolio evolved
to increase the Group's expasure to cauntries such as Brazi
and Sweden, sectors such as imndustrial, and new third-party
investment vehicles such as o Investment LLP and High Street
Realty Fund IV (see pages 59 to 61}, all of which have enhanced
the indirect portfolio’s longer-term performance prospects
and diversification We also continue ta benefit from the
centralisation of all our indwrect investments intc a single
portfolic globally aggregated information provides greater
transparency, visibility and consistency in managing and
evaluating overall performance

A strategy for diversification

The Group has a strategic allocation of 269 of its capital to
indirect investment in property, to help achieve its desired
diversification of investment returns Our strategy for our
ndirect portfoho ts to focus on twa types of investment
vehiele those managed by Grosvenor fund Management,
and those run by specialist third-parties Together, these
activities complernent the direct property investments made
through Grosvenor’s proprietary Operating Companies

Investing through Grosvenor Fund Management

We took the important strategic decision to establish a separate
investment vehicle for global real estate equities This global
real estate equity fund commenced trading in October 2012
and has made a very promising star{

We also made a strategic nvestment in a new Swedish shopping
centre with the existing investors in the Grosvenor European
Retall Partnership (see page 73), a commitment to invest In

core real estate in the USA, and are looking forward to the
possibilities offered by Grosvenor Fund Management's joint

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www Erosvenar com

venture with Harvest Fund Management for funds in Greater
China {see page 74)

In total these fund and club investments amaunt to £286m of
equity which delivered a total return of 1 096 1in 2012, reflecting
the difficult investment conditions in UK retail markets on the
one hand, compensated by strong returns in our office
investments on the other

The Group 15 also a client of Grosvenor Fund Management

In respect of separate accounts totaling £187m of equity for
assets in Australia and in Continental Europe The Australian
Investments are by far the largest part of this portfolio, and
delivered a total return of 15 3% n 2012

Investing through Sonae Sierra

Our investment in this very experienced retail developer

and manager remains an important contributor to our overall
diversification strategy Given the high quality and dominance
of the shopping centres in its portfolio 1n Continental Europe,
we believe 1t will continue to perform relatively well despite
the ongorng challenges in the consumer economies of these
countries, while its exposure in Brazil 15 becoming increasingly
important

“We managed to keep global occupancy rates relatively
stable at 96%, with global rents increasing
by 0 3%, as a result of our attentive property
management and in spite of sharper
falls tn average consumer sales figures
m Europe ”

Fernando Guedes de Olveira Chief Executive,
Sonae Sierra

Sonae Sterra performed well given the travails of the economy
In 1ts heartland of southern Europe Occupancy held up and
revenue profits before trading losses remained at 2011 levels
Returns were impacted, however, by vatuation falls and trading
provisions, resutting in a total return for the year of 0 5% It
opened two new shopping centres — In Italy (Le Terrazze in

La Spezia in March, a 50/50 joint venture with ING Real Estate)
and Brazil (Uberlandia Shopping - see right) It delivered strong
growth in management services to third-parties — with 27 new
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Uberldndia Shopping, Brazil

This shopping centre opened In
March 2012 With 201 shops 21
restauranis a hypermarket and five
cinemas, its unvelling has created
2000 obs inthe Tndngulo Mineiro
region Sonae Sterra has been
rewarded with 92% occupancy at
year end Tenants sales over the
year were R$183 2m from
4,000,000 wisitars

contracts including seven instructions in Algeria for the first
time, through Sierra Cevital, jomtly-owned with an Algerian
group, and nine further instructions in Morocco, for the new
EMEA Sterra Services division 1t also continued its policy of
recycling captal, with four sales during the year (Shopping
Penha, Tivoll Shopping and Patio Brasi Shopping in Brazil,
and Munster Arkaden in Germany) and three projects now
at advanced stages of construction (Boulevard Londrina
Shopping and Passeio das Aguas in Brazil and Hofgarten
Solingen (n Germany)

Market outlook

Maurizio Grilh Group Senior Research Analyst

Slow progress In Eurcpe

The Qutright Monetary Transactions programme has
brought stability to a situation where Greece/Italy/Portugal/
Spain were n danger of {osing market funding, by

New investments in property or property-related companies estahlishing the European Central Bank as the lender of

In April 2012 we made our first new investment in a third-party last resort to Eurozone countries However, while the
manager with the creation of 1o Investment LLP, managed by programme has significantly improved financial market

o Asset Management, which is buying multi-tenanted industrial conditions, the extent of its impact on the real economy
estates and small business parks throughout the UK It has an 15 unclear Reduced uncertainty will improve household
initial £35m to invest and at year end 1t had already made three and corporate confidence Moreover, banks should
investments tetalling £97m Increasingly loosen their lending standards and reduce
interest rates on new loans to the private sector Progress
will be slow By contrast, the policy of austerity adopted hy
Eurozone governments has driven unemployment across
the continent to record levels Youth unemployment 1s over
55% in Greece and Spain The inevitable consequence 1s

a significant increase in poverty and hardship

“John Sims and I were delighted to have launched
10 Investment LLP in partnershup with Grosvenor
John'’s untimely death 1in January 18 a great
sadness, but the team and I remain commaitted
to deliver on the ambitions we shared with hum
With a number of new acquisitions in the pipeline,
we aim to be fully invested durng 2013”

In an uncertain economic and pohitical environment,
Investors in Europe will remain risk-averse They will focus

on good-quality defensive assets Our research shows that

wealth, the presence of high-growth sectors alongside
good public services and tight supply explains the resilience
of property values in some European cities Grosvenor's
expertise in urban investment will be an advantage in
securing out-performance n this market

Angus Scott-Brown Partner, to Investment LLP

In November we complemented this with an investment in

a third party US east coast industrial and logistics fund,

High Street Realty Fund IV This fund focuses on existing
industrial and logistics properties in the eastern half of the USA,
tnvesting in assets with recurring income and strong current
cash yelds

Evaluation of results

We measure our success as an indirect investment manager
in terms of delivery against both internal targets and external
benchmarks As we continue to improve our measurement
and benchmark analysis, the strengths and weaknesses of
our investment performance become more evident Symilarty,
our growing expasure to specialist third-parties enables us

to emulate market best practice as it evolves
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Proprietary activities — indirect
Portfolio

Portfolio
Property
assets Equaty
£&m fm
By category Managed by Grosvenor Fund Management 8411 4738
Senae Sierra 12422 2643
Managed by other third-parties 84 94
20917 7475
By sector Office 4181 2678
Retall 15727 406 0
Residential 467 356
Mixed-use 431 270
Industria! 84 94
Other 27 17
20917 7475
By region Australia 2399 166 8
Brazil 2434 994
Canada 21 -
China 227 71
Cantinental Europe 1158 3 2409
lapan 402 169
UK 3348 1923
usa 503 241
20917 475
By activity Investment 20542 7296
Development 375 179
20917 7475

Property assets represent the Group s share of properties as included in the consehdated financial statements ncluding assets atinbutable to mmarity interests
Equity represents the Group s eCONOMIC nterest 10 Investments
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Proprietary activities — indirect
Portfolio

continued
Investments
Locaton Sector

tnvestments managed by Grosvenor Fund Management

Funds
Grosvenor Capital Advisors Partnership Japan Residential
Grosvenor Diamond Capital ~ Stable Residential Furd lapan Residential
Grosvenor French Retail Investments Continental Europe Retall
Grosvenor Liverpool Fund UK Mixed-use
Grosvenor London Office Fund UK Office
Grosvenor Office Retall Fund Japan Office & Retall
Grosvenor Residential Investment Fund UK Residential
Grosvenor Residential Investment Partners usa Residential
Grosvenor Retaill European Properties Continental Eurgpe Retail
Grosvenor Shopping Centre Fund UK Retail
Grosvenor vega — China Retaill Fund China Retail
ISPT Grosvenor International Property Trust International Diversified
Shmael US Real Estate Fund USA Qffice

Clubs
Grosvenor European Retail Partnership Continental Europe Retail
Grosvenor Hexagone Partnership Continental Europe Office
Grosvenor Office Limited Partnership UK Office
Paris Antigues Market Continental Europe Retail
US Healthcare Venture usa Healthcare

Separate accounts
Bank of Queensland Centre, Brishane Austraha Office
Confidential mandate UsA Office & Retall
400 George Street Brisbane Austraiia Office
Global Equities Fund Internaticnal Diversified
Omega ll Continental Europe Office

Investments managed by third-parties
Sonae Slerra Continental Europe Retatl
16 Investment UK Industrizl
High Street Realty Fund i USA industrial
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Fund management ~ Grosvenor Fund Management

Fund management

Grosvenor has been working 1n partnerships
for over 50 years. We launched our first
fund in 1976 and formally established
Grosvenor Fund Management in 2005.

Grosvenor Fund Management offers a
range of sector-and region-specific property
investment vehicles which aum to deliver
attractive, risk-adjusted returns and a
high level of client service. Operating
from 11 offices in the United States of
America, Europe and Asia, we employ
117 professionals with local knowledge
and skills to execute our strategic
investment decisions and create value
for our investors.

We have 67 investor partners in 26 property
funds, club deals and separate accounts.
Alhgning our interests with our partners
and building long-term investor relationships
is of paramount importance to us.
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Grosvenor Fund Management

lJeffrey Weingarten Chief Executive

leffrey joins the Group Board In
September James Raynor will succeed
him as Grosvenor Fund Management
Chief Executive

Why is the launch of your China joint venture
of such strategic significance?

“Harvest Real Estate Investments 1s a
dedicated real estate fund management
bustness providing investors with exciting
opportumties to immvest in Greater China’s
emerging real estate industry.”

Business objective

Number of assets by region

Grosvenor Fund Management's objective 1s to create
value for our Investors, Shareholders and staff We are
a client-focused business with over 50 years’ experience

B 2sia Pacihic

@ curope
usa

of working in partnershup and believe in dehvering strong
performance and superior service We treat our investors
as long-term partners and combine our tustory with a
desire to innovate We are real estate specialists and have
highly-skilled staff with expertise in their local markets
We provide a long-term view of investment while always
seeking to maximise short-term opportunities in order

to enhance returns

42
128
23

What we said we
would doin 2012

What we did in 2012

2012 summary

M Explore new Investment opportunities
1t Japan, Australia, Europe and the USA

B Created our Joint venture with Harvest
Fund Management for real estate
investment in Greater China

B Acquired and began managing the
Burlov Shopping Centre, Malmo,
for the Grosvenor European Retail
Partnership

A Acquired and began managing a
portfolio on the Rue de la Republique,
Lyon, for a chent

Assets under management

£4.1bn

2011 £5.0bn

Revenue profit

£(10.3m

2011 £{(1 6)m

Disposals made

M Research a global real estate
securities product

M Established a global real estate
equity fund

£703.0m

2011 £1370m

Acquisitions made

£391.0m

2011 £762 0m

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www Brosvenor com
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Rue de la Republique
Lyon, France

This 1km pedestrianised
street provides outstanding
retail, office and living
space in the heart of Lyon
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Creating opportunities

Grosvenor Fund Management’s strategy 1s to offer our chents a range
of opportunities to invest in property, in locations in which we have
experienced local teams In line with this, in December 2012 we
completed the acquisition of a 30-property portfolio 1n the historic
heart of Lyon for a segregated account.

Lyon 1s France's ‘second city’ and accounts for 10% of the country’s gross
domestic product. The 62,000m? majority retail portfolio 1s located in
a protected city centre retail parade on the Rue de la République

From London to Liverpool to Lyon Opposite

To create value for our chent in the Lyon portfolio, we will budd ~ The R'Jde df la tReﬂLr'b“ﬂ“te '!5 the
prime destmnation for retarlers

on our established expertise N estate management wishing 1o be m Lyon

This expertise derives not only from Grosvenor’s experience on

our London estate, which we have managed for over 300 years,

but also from Liverpool ONE, £49,000m? of retaill and leisure

space which Grosvenor developed and now manages Liverpool

ONE moved Liverpoal up the UK retail rankings from 17th to

5th, a position it has maintained

“We will be drawing on our experence 1n
managing town-centre real estate around the
world 1n order to bring something new
to thus exceptional portfolio and create value
for our chent.”

Giles Wintle Managing Director,
Grosvenor Fund Management, Europe

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grasvenor com
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Fund management — Grosvenor Fund Management

Grosvenor Fund Management
continued

Testing times in which to grow a business

The challenging econormic conditions, combined with funds
reaching the end of their ife cycles, fed through to qur
performance as a business Assets under management dipped
to £4 1bn (2011 £5bn) due to planned asset sales and lower
than expected investment volumes Revenue profit decreased
to a loss of £10 3m due to continued nvestment to enhance our
future capabilities — including launching our joint venture in
China, establishing a global real estate eguity fund and growing
our US team — and to reduced fee income

investment activity

We continue to listen closely to our chents and provide them
with appropriate products and structures to achieve their
investment objectives n our core markets

A highpont of the year was a major strategic move with the
launch of our joint venture with Harvest Fund Management,
China’s second largest asset management group, and a
management team led by Rong Ren, well known for his
experience In Chinese real estate fund management (see
page 74}

In Continental European retail, despite the challenging capital
raising and investment markets, we acquired the Burlov
shopping centre in Malmo, Sweden, for Grosvenor European
Retall Partnership, extending our relationship with our existing
Investor partners (see page 73} We also acquired a €330m
portfolio of 30 buildings on the Rue de la République in Lyon,
France {see pages 69—71), which we will manage on behalf

of our client Both deals were examples of our teams on the
ground showing real insight into their market and of the trust
we have gained as an investment adviser

“T'he attention we pay to developing long-term investment
strategies and the focus we give to creating specialist
teams to deliver them has led to a number of
successes, notably in European retail, which
we expect to deliver real value for our clients ”

James Raynar Chief Investment Officer,
Grosvenor Fund Management

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www Brosvenor com

In the UK our new business focus remains on the retail and
London office markets In the USA we continued the evolution
of our urban mvestment theme, looking at core city centre real
estate and how best to execute this type of opporturity

Building on Grosvenor’s prior experience in real estate equities,
we established a separate investment vehicle with Grosvenor’s
capital for global real estate equities (see page 74}

Portfolic management highlights

Maintaming strong redationships with our tenants has

never been more Important given the challenging economic
environment Our teams’ efforts were rewarded with
consistently strong occupancy levels across our portfolio
highlights included the Grosvenor Liverpool Fund (100%)

— see pages 74 and 75 — and Grosvenor French Retall
Investments (98%)

Selling assets In order to return capital to (nvestors is an
important discipline and we exited £703m of investments in
2012 where we had delivered our business plan or the fund
had reached the end of its agreed life-cycle

We continue to work closely with our 28 relationship banks and
were pleased to arrange £328m of new or refinanced debt in
the course of the year - a significant achievement as the overall
deleveraging of real estate markets continues

investors express growing interest in the impact that
sustainability has on investment returns, as tenants and
occupiers alike become more demanding of the bulldings they
occupy We were one of the first fund managers to join the
Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark and participate in
their annuai benchmarking survey {see our Environment Review
at www grosvenor com)

Operational developments

we officially opened our new office In Stockholm i May 2012

to support our continued expansion in this market (see page 75)
and we took the decision to clase our Sydney office later

n 2013
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Burldv, Malma

In November 2012 we acquired

the Burldv shopping centre

for Grosvenor European Retail
Partnershep, confirming the
partnership s lang-term commitment
to the Swedish praperty market This
42,000m? asset has a strong tenant
base with mare than 70 retailers
providing a diverse and secure
tncome stream for our clients

In January 2013, we consahidated our UK and Continental
European operations into one, led by Giles Wintle as Managing
Director for Europe At the same time, to emphasise the
importance of a long-term approach to new investment

products and sustanability, we created a new role of Managing

Director for Corporate Development, taken by Mervyn Howard

We have established working groups to monitor the raft of
new regulations affecting the fund management industry,
notably the Alternative Investment Fund Manager Directive
in Europe, and to ensure we proactively implement any
necessary enhancements to our business

We are active members in a range of industry bodies,
supporting transparency and increased governance for
both investors and managers

Satisfying clients

Wwe ended the year managing 26 investment vehicles for

a total of 67 clients, taking account of existing investment
vehicles reaching the end of their life and new partnerships
commencing

We are grateful yet never complacent with the trust our

clients place with us and look forward to continuing to expand
existing and new relationships to create value for our mvestors,
Sharehotders and staff James Raynor, who succeeds me as
Chief Executive in June, has champtoned these relationships
for nearly a decade with Grosvenor Fund Management and 1s
ideally placed to take the business forward

Jeffrey Weingarten
Chief Executive, Grosvenor Fund Management

“It has been a pleasure to see how Grosvenor Fund
Management built up the retail portfolio in Europe
and now how successfully they execute the disposal
of the assets 1 line with the fund strategy”

Ntels Hesseldahl Senicr Consultant,
Sampension

The strength of our relationships with investors 1s fundamental
to the success of our business This year, to complement the
anecdotal feedback which comes from clients, Non-Executive
Directors of our funds and at events such as our investor
seminar, we commissiened our first independent client survey

It gave structured feedback about our performance and service

overall, most of it positive (see page 75)

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grasvenor com

Market outlook

Richard Barkham Group Research Director
and Director Grosvenar Fund Management

Safe havens grab capital flows in 2012

Real estate capital flows are driven by GDP growth The 10%
fall in global transaction volumes during 2012 reflects the
weakerung of the global economy over the year However,
global transaction volumes hit US $770bn in 2012 (up

from $400bn 1n 2009), reminding us that the year saw a
reasonable property level of market activity Data from Real
Capital Analytics shows that investors from Asia accounted
for 20% of cross-border real estate acquisitions in 2012,

up from 5% In 2007 This increase reflects wealth from tax
revenues, pension savings and growing confidence Asian
investors and others have focused on offices in the largest
and most iquid property markets, such as London and

New York ‘Safe haven’ capital flows have boosted London’s
property values in recent years

Another trend 1s the emergence of sovereign wealth funds
as global real estate players Real estate, because of its low
volatility and duration, 1s a very suitable asset class for these
organisations which invest their countries’ wealth for the
long term
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Grosvenor Fund Management

Stories from the year

China: innovation in
a dynamic market

Harvest Real Estate Investments (HREI) brings together
Grosvenor’s long lustory of investing 1n 1nternational real
estate and managing fiduciary relattonships with the
expenence of Harvest Alternative Investments Group,

a subsidiary of Harvest Fund Management, China’s

second largest asset manager

“We are extremely pleased to have formed
this joint venture with Grosvenor The HREI
management team has an enviable track
record 1n the China real estate market and
15 passionate about delivering results for

all our investors "
Dr Henry Zhao

Chief Executive Officer Harvest Fund Management

Real estate

equities: liquid

real estate

“In September, buillding on our prior
experience In feal estate equities, we
established a global real estate equity fund
with Grosvenor capital The fund 15 designed
to provide Grosvenor with the opportuniy
to access some of the highest-quality real
estate arcund the world whilst maintaming
a igh level of hquidity with some downside
protection The fund offers the Group access
to an investment vehicle that combines our
top-down real estate research with
bottom-up stock-picking and portfolio
construction skills *

Matthew Norris
Portfolio Director Grosvenor Fund Management

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012
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Grosvenor Fund Management

Stories from the year
continued

Stockholm: our first
office in Scandinauvia

When we launched our Stockholm office 1n May, Anneh
Jansson (pictured rght in Vasby Centrum, one of four
shopping centres 1 our Swedish portfolio), our Country
Manager 1n Sweden, saud “The fundamentals of the Swedish
market appeal to us and our partners Openng an office
here underlines our long-term commitment to the region”

The local knowledge we are providing makes 1t easier to
wentify new opporturuties in the region and thus to create
value for our investor partners We are complementing such
know-how with relevant expertise from elsewhere Sarah
Greenaway, Asset Manager, seconded from our London
office to the growing team explains “It 15 great to share
expereences from our long-established UK presence and
fantastic to have this opportunity to broaden my own
know-how”

Client-focused: what it

Take two examples from 2012

“32 investors gave feedback The results

means in practice

Our clients are our priority We seek

to provide them with superior service,

attractive nsk-adjusted returns,
insightful information and new
investment opportumties, and at
the heart of cur approach to cur
client relationships 1s the principle
of compatibility and alignment

of interest

Farst, our chent semunar in Londoen.
27 investors joined us for discusswons
on 13sues ranging from sustainability
to the growth of financial services

in China

Second, our client. survey undertaken
for us by Property Funds Research.
this provided valuable feedback on
our products and services, helpingus
to dentafy areas for improvement as
well as what our clients enjoy about
working with us

show appreciation for our integrity,
reporting and transparency, also a desire
for greater clanty on strategy, further
specialisation and more proactivity

Our recent European retail transactions,
where our specialist teams proactively
sourced and acquired off-market deals,
are examples of us acting on this
feedback”

James O'Neill

Drector Capital Markets,
Grosvenor Fund Management

Liverpool ONE: a milestone year

In November 2012, Harvey Nichols opened 1ts ‘Beauty
Bazaar’ concept store (pictured left} in Laverpool ONE —
a world first The arrval of the 2,000m? store 13 a testament

to Liverpool ONE'’s success

Thas was another highhight 1n a great year for the retail
centre, managed by Grosvenor Fund Management 1n
August, Liverpool ONE recerved its 100,000,000th visitor,

“Beauty Bazaar, Harvey Nichols, I1s the first one-stop

destination for all things beauty This truly unigue

space, spread across three floars, houses the very
best brands in the market, alongside the very latest
services that ensure grooming of the hughest level, all

within the conventence of a single space We are very
proud to have launched this ‘world first’ concept at

Damela Rinald:

1 September, exght new brands took over 6,500m? of space,
taking South John Street, Paracise Street and Peter's Lane
to 100% occupancy, and at year end footfall exceeded

26 malhon for the first time, with stores trading on average

26% ahead of their UK average

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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Liverpool ONE, given the city’s reputation for beauty”

Harvey Nichols Group Concessions and Beauty Director
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Grosvenor Fund Management
Board of Directors

As at 14 March 2013

Non-Executive Directors

01 Mark Preston uescs

Position Chairman Grasvenor Fund
Management and Group Chief Executive
Appointed to the board 2008

Experience Mark joined Grosvenor in

the UK n 1989 Seconded to Hoag Kong
111995 he returned to lead Grosvenar s
fund management operaticns in 1997
spent four years in San Francisco

from 2002 became Chief Executive

of Grosvenor Britan & treland in 2006
and Group Chief Executive in 2008

Mark currently halds two Non-Executive
Directorships gn the boards of Persimmon
Pic and Sonae Sierra SGPS He 15 a Trustee
of The Wastminster Foundation and also a
member of the Board of The Association
of Fareign Investors in Real Estate the
ULI Greenprent Advisory Boarg and the
(University of ) Cambnidge Land Econemy
Adwvisory Board

02 Nicholas $caries rca avvomney a1 Law
Position Group Finance Director
appointed to the board 2005
Expenence Micholas jmined Grosvenor
In 2004 He was previously at Centrica
Price waterhouse and Coopers and
Lybrand in London New York ant Toronto
Ke 1s a Governor of the Habergashers
Elstree Schools Member of the Court of
Assistants of the Haberdashers Livery
Company and a Noa-Executive Director
of Sanae Sierra SGPS

03 Richard Barkham wurcs

Position Group Research Director
Appointed te the board 2011

Experience Richard joined Grosvenar in
2000 as Research Director for Grosvenar
Bntam & Ireland He was appginted Group
Research Director in 2006 responsible
far risk analysts long-range forecasts
and capital allocation In 2011 he was
appointed ¢ the Board of Grosvenor Fund
Management and has responsibility for
ecanomic analysis strategic development
and the development of new funds

Executive Directors

04 leffrey Weingarten

Position Chief Executive

Appointed to the board 2010

Experience Jeffrey began his career as

a Securities Analyst in 1970 In 1977 he
joned the research division at Goldman
Sachs & Con New Yark becoming
Director of Research in London 1n 1987
and General Partner of Goldman Sachs
& Coin1990 fFrom 1991-1995 feftrey
was the Chief investment Officer and
Managing Director of Goldman Sachs
Asset Management Internatianal befere
returning to International Equity Research
as Global Strategist From 1998-2008
Jettrey was General Partner and Chiet
Invesiment Officer of Buttonwood
Capital Partners

05 James Raynor

Position Chiet Investment Officer
Appointed to the board 2005

Expenence fames joined Grosvenor in
2004 from The Royzl Bank of Scotland

1 Paris where he was Senior Director of
European Real Estate He was promoted
to is present rale at Grosvenor in March
2012 having previgusly run our Capital
Markets & Continental European
businesses He sits pnthe INREY Traiming
& Education Committee and the ULI
French Council

06 Robert Davis

Position Chief Qperating Officer
Appointed te the board 2006

Experence Rabert joined Grosvenaor in
2006 from General Motors where he
undertooX a number of roles within the
Group s hnance functior and was most
recently Chief Operating Officer European
Operations for GMAC Commercial Finance
Plc He was promoted to his present role
at Grosvenor inMarch 2011 retaining his
previous role of Finance Director
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07 Alexia Gottschalch

Position Managing Director USA
Appainted 1o the board 2011

Experience Alexia joined Grosvanor

in 2011 and was appointed Managing
Directer of our US fund management
business and Head of Capital Markets

n the US Prior to joimng Grosvenar she
held sentor managemeni positions at
Independence Capital Pastners Cheswold
Real Estate Investment Management
Prudential Real Estate investors and
Tishman Speyer

08B Mervyn Howard

Position Mznag:ng Director

Corporate Development

Appointed to the board 2005

Expertence Mervyn jained Grosvenor in
200! foliowing roles as Managing director
of GE Capital 5 real estate business in the
UK and Standinavia and Head of Business
Develgpment for TrizecHahn Europe He
was responsible for Grosvenar Fund
Management s UK business prior 1o
movIng [0 his currgntinternatienal
corporate development role

09 Giles wintte

Position Managing Director Europe
Appointed to the board 2011
Expenence Giles joined Grosvenor in
September 2011 from GIC Real Estate
where he gversaw investment activity
inFrance Italy Nordics CEE and Russta
He previously worked for BNP Paribas
Corporate and Investment Banking in
Paris and lones LanglaSalle inLondon
and Paris

01

02

03

04

05

06

o7

08

09
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Grosvenor Fund Management
Portfolio

Assets under management

Gross asset value

Number of Total Oftice Retail Residential Other

investment vehicles £m im &m £&m m

Asta Pacific o 10082 524 Q 2193 2607 42
Europe 13+ 27647 493 § 22516 20 -
USA 6" 221 1570 703 348 600
nternational 2 ——— mncluded above —————
Total 26 40950 11741 25412 3155 642

*includes separate account clients

Asla Pacific

Name GROSVENOR CAPITAL ADVISERS PARTNERSHIP

Launch date: 2004 Gross asset value, JP¥13bn (E95m)
Sector: Residential Number of assets: 10

Risk profile  Value-add Number of investors 6

Grosvenor Capital Advisers Partnershsp is focused on gppartunistic investment in residential assets in the greater metropolitan areas of Tokyo and
Osaka which both benefit from cyclical upturns Returns are enhanced through a value-add approach

Name GROSVENOR DIAMOND CAPITAL — STABLE RESIDENTIAL FUND

Launch date 2005 Grass asset value: 1P¥23bn (E166m)
Sector Residential Number of assets. 17
Risk profile  Core Number of investors: 6

Grosvenor Diamond Capital — Stable Residential Fund 15 focused on igh-guality, well-managed residential properties with stable recurring income
908 of assets are in Tokyo with the remaining 10% ¢n other major Japanese cities

Name: GROSVENOR OFFICE RETAIL FUND

Launchdate 2007 Gross asset value. IP¥220n (E£161m)
Sector: Office and retail Number of assets 12
Risk profile  Core and Value-add Number of investors. 8

Grosvenor Office Retall Fund focuses on Grade B/C office and retall properues primarily in Tokyo and Osaka Returns are enhanced through both a
stable income and value-add approach

Name GROSVENOR VEGA — CHINA RETAIL FUND

Launch date: 2008 Number of assets 1
Sector. Retall Number of investors 7
Risk profile  Value-add

Grosvenar Vega-China Retail Fund owns and actively manages the Parkside Plaza shopping centre in Shanghai

Name: SEPARATE ACCOUNT CLIENT — AUSTRALIA

Launch date, 2011 Gross asset value A$569m (£363m)
Sector Office Number of assets: 2
Risk profile Vvarious Number of investors 1

Two modern, energy-efficient offtice buildings in Brishane are actively managed by Grosvenor Fund Management

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor.com




Fund management — Grosvenor Fund Management

Grosvenor Fund Management

Portfolio
continued
Europe
Name GROSVENCR EUROPEAN RETAIL PARTNERSHIP
Launch date 2011 Gross asset value: €547m (£443m)
Sector Retaill Number of assets 7
Risk profile  Core Number of investors. 3

Grosvenor European Retail Partnership was created as a ctub vehicle to acquire a portfolio of urban shopping centres in dynarnic cities in France
and Sweden

Name GROSYEMOR FRENCH RETAIL INVESTMENTS

Launchdate 2006 Gross asset value: €349m (£283m)
Sector Retail Number of assets. 45
Risk profile-  Core Number of tnvestors 9

Grosvenor French Retail Investments 1s fecused on creating a balanced income-producing portfolio of high-qualty fugh street and
retall warehousing properties it France It has established a well diversified portfolio located within the strongest French urban areas

Name GROSVENOR HEXAGONE PARTNERSHIP

Launch date- 2006 Gross asset value; €147m (£119m)
Sector office Number of assets: 3
Rusk profile  Coreplus Number of investors. 2

Grosvenor Hexagone Partnership is a tactical office club created to take advantage of the attractive investment opportunities in select
Continental European office markets

Name, GROSVENCR RETAIL EUROPEAN PROPERTIES

Launch date. 2004 Gross asset value €194m (£158m)
Sector Retail Number of assets: 24
Risk profile  Core Number of investors. 8

Grosvenor Retait European Properties has built up a diverse portfolio of high-quality retail properties located within robust cities in
Centinental Europe The fund provides a mixed nisk profile of secure income-producing assets along with core plus opportunities through
the properties’ repositioning

Name. SEGREGATED AND SEPARATE ACCOLINT CLIENTS — CONTINENTAL EUROPE

Launchdate Various Gross asset value: €408m (£332m}
Sector Diversiftied Number of assets. 34
Risk profile  Various Mumber of investors  3*

*Number of separate account chents

Assets In Paris Madrid and Lyon actively managed to create maximum value for our clients

Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www grosvenor com
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Grosvenor Fund Management
Portfoho
continued

Eurepe

Name GROSVENOR LIVERPOOL FUND

Launchdate: 2004 Number of assets. 1
Sector: Retal Number of investors 6
Risk profile  Core

Grosvenor Liverpool Fund was established m 2004 10 finance the regeneration of and investment in the 42-acre Paradise Street area in Liverpool
Now branded ‘Liverpcol ONE , the scheme has won more than 65 awards since completion, attracts more than 25 million visitors a year and reached
100% occupancy in 2012

Name; GROSVENCR LONDON GFFICE FUND

Launch date 1999 Gross asset value: £343m
Sector. Office Number of assets. 3
fusk profile  Core Number of investors. 4

Grosvenor London Office Fund nvests in large high-quakity office bulldings in central London providing secure and stable income to a club
of investors

Name GROSVENOR OFFICE LONDON PARTNERSHIP

Launch date: 2011 Gross asset value: £0m
Sector: Office Number of assets 0
Risk profile  Value-add Number of investors 2

This club deal was created in 2011 to invest in value-add assets in London’s West End and Midtown office markets

Name: GROSVENOR RESIDENTIAL INVESTMENT FUND

Launch date. 2005 Gross asset value £20m
Sector Residential Number of assets- 6
Risk profile:  Core Number of investors, 3

Grosvenor Residential Investment Fund was established in 2005 to invest in residentizl properiies in clearly researched and defined clusters
of cities and towns situated throughout the UK

Name: GROSVENQR SHOPPING CENTRE FLIND

Launch date 1998 Number of assets: 3
Sector Retail Number of investors 16
Risk profile:  Core

Grosvencr Shopping Centre Fund was established in 1998 1t owns and actively manages a portiolio of three shopping centres in medium-sized
towns in the UK which are dominant in their catchment areas

Name. SEGREGATED ACCOUNT CLIENT — UK

Launch date: 2011 Number of assets: 1
Sector: Retail Number of investors 1
Risk Profile:  Core plus

We actively manage a UK shopping centre on behalf of a major bank
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Grosvenor Fund Management

Portfolio
continued
USA
Name: GROSVENOR RESIDENTIAL INVESTMENT PARTNERS
Launch date 2007 Gross asset value: US$57m (£35m)
Sector: Residential Number of assets 12
Riskprofile  Debt Number of investors. 5

Grosvenar Residental Investment Partners is a Closed-end fund focused on the USA far-sale residential market The fund closed n 2007
and 1s now fully invested, having provided participating senigr and mezzanine feans to 16 projects throughout the LSA

Name SEPARATE ACCOUNTS CLIENTS — USA

Launch various Gross asset value US$199m (£123m)
Sector Diversified Number of assets 4
Risk profile  Vartous Number of investors- 3*

*Number of separate accounts

In the USA we manage separate account mandates on behalf of US European and Middle Eastern clients

Name SHMAEL US REAL ESTATE FUND

Launch date. 2005 Gross asset value US$84m (£52m)
Sector Office Number of assets: 5
Risk profile  Core plus Number of investors: 15

The Shmael US Real Estate Fund is a closed-end fund, the focus of which was to invest in Class A and B+ office bulldings in the USA
The fund closed in 2005 1s fully invested in five properties

Name: US HEALTHCARE VENTURE

Launch date, 2011 Gross asset value; Us$88m (£54m)
Sector: Healthcare Number of assets. 1
Risk profile: Core Number of nvestors. 2

US Healthcare Venture tLCisa partnership with Kuwait Finance House to invest in healthcare-related real estate inthe USA
The partnership will invest in the acquisition and development of senier living communities and medical office bulldings

Grosvenor Annual Repart 2012 www grosvenar com
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Grosvenor Fund Management
Portfolio
continued

International

Name: GROSVENOR GLOBAL EQUITY FUND

Launch date: 2012 Number of investors 1
Sector: Dwversified
Risk profile Core

The fund 1s designed to provide Grosvenor with the opportunity to access some of the highest quality real estate securities around the world
whilst maintaining a high level of hquidity

Name: ISPT GROSVENOR INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY TRUST (IGIPT)

Launchdate 2004 Gross asset value: A$163m (£104m)
Sector Mixed-use Number of assets: 4
Risk profile  Core Number of investors 7

IGIPT was established to provide a balance of secure income flow and long-term growth potential by nvesting in institutional grade property,
outside Australia and New Zealand

Grasvenor Annual Report 2012 www gresvengr.com
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Accounts

Corporate governance

THE COMBINED CODE

Grosvenor s business approach 15 based on openness and high levels of accountability, and the Board s approach to corporate governance follows
best practice recommended by the Financial Reporting Council under the heading of the Combined Code’, even though that code applies only to
companies with a prermum hsting As a privately-owned Group with its Shareholders represented on the Board, certain provisions of the Combined
Code are not relevant to Grosvenor The Board last reviewed each of the provisions of the Combined Code 1ssued by the UK Financial Reporting Councit
In june 2012 and has determined which of those provisions are appropriate in the context of Grosvenor s ownership structure

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Structure of the Board

The composition of the Board 1s designed to ensure effective management and control of the Group, taking account of the devolved operating
structure and ensuring that the Shareholders’ interests are properly represented It consists of the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance Director
and seven Non-Executive Directors (including the Chairman) The Non-Executive Directors include three who represent the Sharehiolders (as Trustees
of the Grosvenor Trusts) and four who are irdependent The Non-Executive Directors demaonstrate a range of experience and professional background
that enables them to make a valuable contnbution to the Group and to provide independent judgement and challenge to the Board

Biographies of the members of the Board are set out on page 18

Board effectiveness

The Board s responsible for setting and monitoring Group strategy reviewing performance, ensuring adeguate funding. formulating policy on key
1Issues and reporting to the Shareholders

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are clearly defined The Chairman is primarily responsible for overseeing the working of the Board
The Chief Executive 1s responsible for the /mplementation of the strategy and policies set by the Board and the day-to-day management of
the Group

To enable the Board to discharge its duties all Directors receive appropriate and timely information, including briefing papers distributed in advance
of Board meetings The Directors have access to the Company Secretary and may at the Company’s expense take independent professional advice
and receive additional trainmg as they see fit All new Directors parucipate in an induction training programme

The Board undertakes a regutar evaluation of its own performance The last review was in November 2011 and a further review 1s currently underway

The Board encourages the appaintment of Executive Directors to appropriate external posts as this mcreases ther breadth of knowledge and
experience Earnings from all such appointments are returned to the Group

The Board held five meetings during the year, with the follawing attendance by Directors

fanuary March June Sepremnber Kovember

Number of Directors attending 7/8 9/9 8/9 9/9 9/9

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises

— Michael McLintock (Chairman}
— Lesley Knox
- Domenico Siniscalco

The Audit Commuttee 1s responsible for reviewing a wide range of financial matters, including the annual financial statements and accompanying
reports, Group internal and external audit arrangements accounting policies, internal controls and the actions and procedures involved i the
management of sk throughout the Group The Audit Committee reviews annually the scope of the external auditor s work and fees It also considers
the auditor s independence which 1s ensured through a vanety of procedures including regular rotation of audit partners Any non-audn

fees received by the auditor in excess of 50% of the audit fee are pre-approved by the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets at least three times a year with the auditor and 15 attended by invitation by the Group Chuef Executive, Group Finance
Dwector and other senior personnel as appropriate The Audit Committee met three times during the year with full attendance at each meeting except
In March 2012 when one member was absent

The Britain & Ireland Americas Asia Pacific and Grosvenor Fund Management Operating Companies each have their pwn audit commitiees, which
meet at least twice a year The key decisions of these audit committees are reported to the Group Audit Comimittee

Nominations Committee

The Nommations Committee comprises all of the Non-Executive Directors The Committee meets when necessary and is attended by swvitahon by
the Group Chief Executive and other sentor personnel as appropriate It 1s responsible for reviewing the structure of the Board, giving consideration

to succession planning and for making recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes It is also responsible for identifying and nominating
for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they anse
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Corporate governance
continued

Remuneration Committee
The Group Remuneration Committee cormprises

- Jeremy Newsum {Chairman}

— Alasdar Morrson

— Michael McLintock

A description of the Remuneraiion Committee’s responsibilities 1s ncluded in the Remuneration Report on page 85

GROUP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Group Executive Committee comprises the Group Chief Executive the Group Finance Director and the Chief Executives of each of the Proprietary
Operating Companies and Grosvenor Fund Management It meets three times a year and 1s responsible for co-ordinating the implementation of Group
Strategy Biographtes of the members of the Group Executive Committee are set out on paga 19

INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is respansible for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing s effectiveness This is designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of not achieving business objectives and can provide cnly reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board considers that there 1s a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group in the course
of its business which has beer in place throughout the year and up to the date of approval of the Annual Repert and Accounts This process Is
regularty reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Beard and 15 consistent with the internal control gurdance for Directors in the Combined Code

A key part of the system of internal control 1s the delegation of management responsibility for the Graup's property nvestment, development and fund
management activities, together with supporting functions, to Operating Company management teams The Group’s Operating Companies have local
hoards, with iIndependent Non-Executive Directors, which oversee the Operating Companies’ operations These boards form an integral part of the
overall internal contrel process The relationship between Operating Company boards and the Group Board I1s clearly defined and is set out 1n formally
approved financial delegation procedures The membership of each Operating Company board 1s set out In the refevant Operating Company s section
of the business review

Each Operating Company and the Holding Company has management structures In place to enable effective decision making, supported by decumented
procedures and a regular review of financial performance, including comparisons against budget and forecasts Riskmanagement 1s a regular agenda
item for all parts of the business with the emphasis on continuaus Improvement Each Operating Company board undertakes a regular assessment of

Its exposure to financial, operational and strategre nsks and the measures that have been put in place te manage those risks Significant risks arsing
from Operating Company assessments are monitored by the Group Board

In addition to local boards each Operating Cempany, together with the Holding Company, 1s represented on the Group Finance Board, which meets
at least twice each year and provides a farum for debating 1ssues of a financial nature that are relevant ta the Group as a whole including Group
financial policy and risk management

The Group cperates a ‘to-sourced’ approach to nternal audit working jointly with PricewaterhouseCoopers Each Operating Company audit committee
approves an internal audit plan which 1s executed by PricewaterhouseCoapers, but supplemented by Grosvenor employees on occasion and where
appropriate The Operating Company audit committees review the findings from the internal audit reports together with management plans to address
any weaknesses In nternal control The Group Aucht Committee has an oversight role, which involves reviewing the Operating Company and Holding
Campany internal audit plans summaries of internal audit activity throughout the Group and significant findings of individual reviews

The Board carried out its annual assessment of internal control for the year 2012 at its meeting in March 2013 by considering reparts from management
and the Audit Commuttee and taking account of events since 31 December 2012

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND LENDERS

Gven the private ownership of the Group, the requirements of the Combined Code to communicate with institutional shareholders are not relevant
Ail the principal Shareholders are represented on the Board and all Sharehotders recerve a monihly report The Annual Report and Accounts Is widely
distributed and the Group s palicy 15 to mantain close contact duning each financial year with bondholders and other lenders at Group and Operating
Company levels
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Remuneration report

REPORT ON EMPLOYMENT AND REMLUNERATION MATTERS SPECIFICALLY RELATING TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR STAFF

Consisteni with the delegation of management responsibifity to Operatring Company Boards, the Britain & Ireland Americas and Asia Paoiftc regions ang
the Grosvenor Fund Management business have their own remuneration committees with appropriate responsibility for remuneration matters within
those Operating Companies The Group Remuneratton Committee takes an independent overview of the various Operating Companies remuneration
and HR policies and practice, providing Group-wide guidetines and frameworks

During the year the Group Remuneration Committee comprised three members, Jeremy Newsurn {Chairman), Alasdair Mornson and Michael McLintock
Two members are independent Non-Executive Directors whule Jeremy Newsum does not meet this definition under the Combined Code The Charrman
Group Chief Executive and Group Human Resources Director are nvited to attend meetings, unless their own remuneration is being discussed The
Remuneration Committee met three tmes during the year, with full attendance at each meeting except in June 2012 when one member was absent

The Committee Is directly responsible for the remuneration and contracts of Directors and staff in the Holding Company The Committee has access to
external independent professicnal advisers as necessary and recerves advice on market pay levels and the design of bonus schemes

The Group’s remuneration pohicies recognise the importance of attracting, retaining and motivating executives of the appropriate calibre and
experience to enhance the performance and repuiation of the Group The size, complexity and international activity of the Group as well as the long-
term nature of the business, are allimportant factors The policy 15 to provide competitive pay, benefits and incentive opportunities as approprate
within local markets

The remuneration of Executive Directors and senior staff includes a blend of fixed salary and bonus opperiunities designed to provide an alignment of
interests between employees and Shareholders The elements are

— Basic salary and benehits Salanes are reviewed annually or on promotion

— Bonus schemes are designed {o link total pay io both individuat and company performance Bonuses relating to company performance are
determined by achievement compared with the cost of capital revenue profit and other business performance indicators The incentive
arrangements are designed to reward out-performance linked to the achievement of team and individual performance targets Long-term awards
measure performance over a three year period, but vest over periods of up to five years The Remuneration Committee has discretion to award
individuat bonuses in recognition of special performance

- Pensions and hfe assurance for Executive Directors and semor staff i the UK are previded through membership of the Grosvenor Pension Plan (GPP)
and 1f applicable supplementary arrangements

— Outside the UK, pensions are provided from schemes in Canada {(now closed to new participants) and the USA (frozen) Further details of the Groups
pension schemes are given In Note 11 to the Accounts

A schedule of Directors’ remuneration including all amounts required to be disclosed by the Directors Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 15
approved by the Shareholders and detats of Directors’ remuneration in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 are set out in Note 12 to the Accounts
Representatives of the Shareholders participate directly in setting Directors remuneration

The notice pertod for the termination of the employment of an Executive Director 1s six months

Non-Executive Directors representing the Shareholders, with the exception of the Chairman, received no fee from the Company The fees for other Non-
Executive Directors are reviewed every two years by the Shareholders Non-Executive Directors do not have service contracts and de not participate in
benus arrangements in relation to those rofes

Transactions between the Group and the Shareholders are disclosed in Note 39 1o the Accounts Certain Company Directors are Trustees of Grosvenor
Trusts, Trustees of the Grosvenor Pension Plan and also Directors of other companies with which the Group may from time to time enter nto
transactions on normal commercial terms In the opinion of the Board none of these relationships 1s such as to impair the independence of the
Directors

Jeremy Newsum
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
14 March 2013
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their Anrual Report and the Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group’s prinCipal activities are property investment development and fund management

The review of the busmness in accordance with the requirernents of section 417 of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Business Review ) can be found
In the review section on pages 1 to 53, which is Incorperated into this report by reference

The other information that fulfils the requirements of the Business Review 15 set out below

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group aims to develop and co-ordinate an internat:onally diversified group of property companies and investments In property companies or
other property ventures Each Operating Company endeavours to maximise 11s refurns In accerdance with an agreed stance on risk The Group seeks
to ensure that the risks encountered by the business are identified, quantfied, understood and managed in an appropriate way

The Group’s operations are managed under a devolved structure However, since the activities of property investment, development and fund
management are common to each region the nature of business risks encountered in each region 1s broadly similar Set out below 1s a summary
and explanation of the principal risks faced by the business

Market risk
Property markets are cyclical, so the Group's businesses will always he subject to variations in the value of the portfolio Taking a long-term view,
the Group's facus is less on short=term fluctuations and more on underlying revenue~-generating patential

Exposure to market risk 1s mutigated through a balanced allocation of capital to different geographic markets, currencies and property sectors
which 1s explained in more detail under asset allocation below

Short-terrm market risk 1s more relevant in development activity where market conditions may affect leasing terms and caprtalisation rates
The Group commits to development projects only after taking careful account of the market outlook Development exposures are frequently
reduced by working 16 joint ventures

The Group 1s able to make use of property derivatives as a further mechanism for managing expasure to market risk

Asset allocation
The Group s primary financial objective 1s to maximise returns at acceptable levels of risk Fundamental to this 1s the optimal allocation of equity
between each of the Operating Companies and Indirect Investments and the devolution of property decision-making authority to local boards

The allocation of equity to Operating Companies and Indirect Investments Is a continuous process on an annual cycle The process ncludes detailed
research of long-term (5+ years) macro-economic projections. a review of regional economic and Operating Company historsc and projected
performance consideration of wider 1ssues such as climate change, and the use of portfolio theory simulations Fromthis, the Holding Company
determines a range for the desired relative we:ghting of capita) to each Operating Company and Indirect investments over the fong term Medium-term
(2-5 year) target weightings are set by reference to long-term ranges, adjusted for mediurn-term factors Actual allocations are made consistent with
medium-term targets and long-term ranges but also in respense to short-term (0-2 year) tactical and opportunistic considerations The Group retains
the financial capacoity for unplanned opportunities that may arise

Long-term ranges for equity {adjusted for deferred tax) allocated to Operating Companies and Indirect Investments, together with actual equity
allocations at 31 December 2012 were as follows

Percentage of Group equity
Long-term At 31 December

range 2012

% B

Britain & ireland 35.0-600 53.8
Americas 10 0-25.0 14.9
Asia Pacific 50-20.0 7.4
Indirect Investments 20 0-30.0 23.7
Fund Management 00-100 0.2

At the Operating Company and Indirect Investments level each board (the Group Investment Committee in the case of Indirect Investments) reviews its
strategy annually This review takes account of the geographic allecation m the region as well as the allocation between sectors and the sphit between
investment and development

The current distribution of the Group’s property assets and assets under management 15 shown on page 1t
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Drrectors’ report

continued

Property risks

Investment properties

The principal risk in property investment 15 the loss of iIncome The Group ensures that properties are preperly maintamed and managed occupancy
15 maximised and exposure to ndividual tenants 1s managed Asset management IS undertaken by teams with overall responsibility for the properties
wiathin therr portfolios Day-to-day property management is either ouiscurced to professional property managers or managed In-house

Leasing risk 1s managed by dedicated in-house leasing teams and the use of professional leasing agents Exposure to individuat tenants or sector
groups is reduced by maintaining a diversified tenant base and by reviewing the credit-worthiness of naw tenants

Developments

In property development the main risks arise i managing the development cycle including obtaining appropriate planning consents and contraling
the construction process The Group has dedicated teams involved in site assembly and planning and limits committed expenditure prior to planning
consent being obtained Construction risk 1s managed by iIn-house project management teams using external contractors In many cases construction
risk 15 shared with partners

Capital raising

The Group has no plans to seek further equity capital through the issue of new shares Capital for investment 1s available from retained earnings
The Group’s preference for working with partners and fund management investors provides access to capital, beyond its own resources for specific
investment and develpoment opportunities Working with like-minded investors in property 1s 3 core part of the Group's business

Acquisitions and sales

when acquiring or selling property the principal risk Is in assessing the future income flows, In order to determine an appropriate price The timing

of property transactions is managed as part of the annual asset allecation review within each Cperating Company Estimated price levels are supported
by detailed financial appraisals which are conducted for all property transactions Where deals occur within jomnt ventures or funds, they require the
approval of an investment committee that s independent from the asset management team Every property transaction Is subject to a due diligance
review, Including corporate due dilgence where properties are acquired within corpeorate vehicles

Financial and tax risks
The prinapal financial risks faced by the Group are fiquidity credit interest rate and foreign currency risk Each of these nisks 1s explained in more
detall and analysed in Note 30 to the Accounts

Exposure to tax risk arises across a large number of tax jurisdictions In addition te different tax filing requirements in each territory, there 1s also
exposure to the impact of future changes In tax legislation These risks are managed by an m-house team which works alongside external tax advisers

Health and safety
The Group I1s committed to achieving high standards of health and safety throughout the business and aspires to best practice

Overall responsibitity for health and safety 1s taken by the Group Finance Director Each Qperating Company board 1s respensible for health and safety
N its business with the support of the interna! Health and Safety Director and external consuitants with local expertise to help thermn ach:eve compliance

One of the Group s objectives 1s to ensure that employees throughout the Group are well infermed and consulted en matters regarding health and
safety, which 1s treated as a key part of the wider risk management process

Each Operating Company reviews and reports formally its compliance each year and progeess is monitered on a regular basis

All accidents and cases of il health are treated seriously In 2012 Grosvenor had no reportable incidents to statutory authonities for its employees Each
business made good progress In completing 1ts healkh and safety action plan

Grosvenor received no enforcement notices from statutory health and safety authorities in 2012

Each busingss sets itself annual targets n order te achieve ther board objectives and follow the ingernational standard OHSAS180G1 These Iinclude
venfying that workplace and other risks are being controlled and mitigated where necessary

Envirenment
The Group's environmental management activities are set out In a separate Environment Review, referred to on page 5

Reputation and brand

The professtonal reputation of the individuzls and businesses within the Group 1s an important intangible asset as is the Grosvenor brand The Group
seeks to manage these assets by investing appropriately in them, and by rdentifying petential reputational or brand risks and acting swiftly to mitigate
those risks All staff are briefed on the deftnition of the Group’s brand and are adwised on how to 2lign communications and behaviour with it and
detailed brand management guidelines are pravided for relevant m-house and consultancy teams

People

The Group takes considerable care in recruiting, retaining and developing Grosvenor people A graduate qualifying programme in the UK, a European
RICS graduate qualifying programme and a range of development opportunities exist Succession planning 1s averseen by remuneration committees
Compensation I1s regularly benchmarked against the market and the Group rewards loyalty excellence and effort

Information technology

The Group's operations are dependent on the effectiveness of IT systems Including an international communications network, property databases,
accounting and treasury systems Procedures are in place to protect the security and integrity of data and the Group has detailed incident management
and business continuity plans which are tested on a regular basis The Business Process Group continues to ensure that the Group benefits from the
efficient delivery of Group-wide process and system changes
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Darectors’ report

contnued

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND MEASURES OF RETURN
Grosvenar takes a long-term view so 1s less interested in year-on-year comparisens and 1s more concerned with the overall trend in performance

The Group manitors total return on property assets and growth in revenue profit Total return is calcelated on a proportional basis including the
appropniate share of joint ventures and associates Revenue profit 1s shown in Note 4 Total return and revenue profit are defined in the glossary

Achievernent against these indicators 1s set out in the Finance Director's report on pages 14 to 17 Appropniate key performance indicators are
employed throughout the Group ta help achieve ambitious goals and a philosophy of continuous improvement

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 92 Profit for the year was £308 1m (2011 £2459m) Dividends
paid during the year amounted to £ril (2011 Emil)

FINANCIAL SERVICES ACTIVITIES
Grosvenor Investment Management Limited a wholly owned subsidiary, 1s authcrised and regulated 1 the UK by the Financial Services Authority
for the purposes of undertaking regulated actvities

Grosvenor Australia Norminees Pty Limited a wholly owned subsidiary, 1s authorised to provide financial services and products to wholesale clients
under its Australian Financial Services Licence No 302153 issued by the Australian Securities and Investrments Commission

Grosvenor Fund Management Inc  a wholly owned subsidiary, is a registered investment adviser in the USA pursuant to the tnvestment
Advisers Act of 1940, for the purposes of providing real estate related investment advice

Grosvenor Fund Management Japan Limited a wholly owned subsidtary provides finanoial services and products under its Kanto Local Finance Bureau
(Kinsyo) License No 1956 1ssued by The Financial Services Agency, the Japanese Government and real estate investment advice as authonsed under its
Discretionary Real Estate Investment Advisory Business License No Sogo 63 issued by the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism 1t is
also authorised to transact real estate business vnder its Real Estate Transaction Business License No Tokyo Governor (2) 87514 1ssued by the Tokyo
Metropolitan Government

GOING CONCERN

The Group's business activiies, together with the factors likely to affect its future development performance and financal position, are set out in the
review section on pages 1 to 53 and the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are described in the Directors report In addition Note 30
to the frnancal statements includes an explanation of the Group's palicies and processes for managing sts finanaial and caprtal risks details of its
financial instruments and the exposure to Interest rates credit and liquidity risk

Each Operating Company and the Group, as part of (ts regular evaluation of hquidity risk models the principal nisks and uncertainties in its cash flow
prejections for the foreseeable future, including an assessment of compliance with bankng covenants and the implicaticns of any facilties that are
due to expire (n the next 12 months

Based on the Operating Company and Group cash flow projecticns the Group I1s satisfied that «t has sufficient headroom from its cash balances and
committed borrowing facilities to support the funding requirements of those projections

Therefore, after making appropriate enguiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
to continue in business for the foreseeable future Accordingly, the finanoial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis

DIRECTORS
Detauls of the Directors of the Company and their biographies are given on page 18 All threctors served throughout the year except for
Michael McLintock who was apponted on 1 March 2012

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
The interests of the Directors who served during the year in the share and loan capital of Grosvenor Group Limited are shown below

Non voung

Ordinary Shares QOrdinary Shares A Preference Shares B Preference Shares
At At At At At At Al At
1 janzary 31 December 1 |anuary 31 December 1ianuary 31 December 1 January I December
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012

Non-beneficial

Lesley M S Knox 1,640580 1,640,580 13124639 13,124,639 1640580 1,640,580 23,689975 13,156,560
Michael McLintock - 5,453,726 - 43,629,809 - 5,453,126 - 43,735,919
Jeremy H M Newsum 4290433 4,290,433 34,323463 34,323,463 4290433 4,290433 61953852 34,406,940

The non-beneficial Interests above represent the shares awned by the respective Directors in their capacity as Trustees of the Grosvenor Trusts
Michael McLintock was appointed to the Board on 1 March 2012 and his non-beneficial interests as at that date were 5,453,726 Ordmnary Shares,
43,629,809 Non-Voting Ordinary Shares, 5,453,726 A’ Preference Shares and 78,751,804 ‘B Preference Shares

Where a Director has a joint interest in securities the above disclosures include, for each Oirector, the number of securities that are jointly held

Except as disclosed above none of the Directors of the Company who served during the year had any interests i the securities of the Company
or any of 1its subsidiary undertakings
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continued

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY
The Company has made qualfying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which were made during the year and remain
n force at the date of this report

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS

Each of the Grosvenor Operating Companies contributes a percentage of its equity to charity each year Grosvenor Britain & Irefand Grosvenor Asia
Pacific and Grosvenor Fund Management channel their giving via The Westminster Foundation { WF } which 1s a grant-making foundation representing
the chantable interests of the Duke of Westminster, the Grosvenor family and the Grosvenor Estate In 2012, chantable contributions amounted to £2 Im
(2011 £1 8m) of which £1 7m (2011 £1 5m) was donated via the Westminster Foundation

Each of the proprietary Operating Companies has a staff charity committee and these have a dual role first, to recommend to the WF Trustees those
charities in ther local communities that they wish to receive support and second, to help organise staff fund-raising actmities, volunteening and pro-
bono support to charities selected by the employees WF alsa matches the fund-raising efforts of indwidual members of staff for registered charities of
their own choosing up to £1,000 per person in any year In addition Grosvenor Britain & Ireland supports Give As You Earn up to £1,200 per employee,
In 2012 this amounted to £38 000 In 2012 the WF Trustees conducted a review of their grant-making strategy As a result of the review no new grants
were made but £2 9m of ongoing support was given to UK registered charities including the Capital Community Foundation Combat Stress, the
Community Foundatron for Cheshire, The Community Fourndation for Merseyside {via the Grosvenor Liverpool Fund), CRISIS, the National Memorsal
Arboretum and numerous small charities In addition grants were made outside the UK, including Chi Heng Foundation (Asia), Children’s Hospital of
Philadelphia (USA) Habitat et Humanisme Federation (Continental Europe)

Following their strategy review, from 2013 the primary focus of the WF Trustees’ grant making will be on youth homelessness and supporting
communities - spectfically projects that help 1o build community cohesion and tackle isolation in both urban and rural environments These two
categories are within a broader theme of alleviating poverty and the Trustees may turn therr attention to other aspects in coming years

In South Belgravia a portfohio of approximately 22,000 sq ft of office space accommodates over 30 charities in small office units This portfolio 1s
managed by the Grosvenor Britain & Iretand South Belgravia team and each charity receivesa contrtbuetion from WF towards its rent, typically of 50%,
which s funded directly by the Group In 2012 this totalled £0 3m These charnties tell us that they find the central location very helpful because of its
proximity to Victoria Station, national and local government and, for many of them, their clients

No political donations were made during the year (2011 £nil)

POLICY ON PAYMENT OF SUPPLIERS

Payment terms are agreed with suppliers on an individual basis 1t 15 the policy of both the Company and the Group to abide by the agreed terms,
provided that the suppliers also comply with all relevant terms and conditions In respect of the Group s activities it the UK, trade creditors at

31 December 2012 represented 27 days’ purchases {2011 26 days) The Company has no trade creditors

EMPLOYEES

The Group gives full ang fair consideration to applications by disabled persons for employment Disabled empfoyees and those who become disabled
are afforded the same training, career development and promotion cpporiunities as other staff The Directors recognise the importance of good
commumcations and refations with the Group s employees andg place considerabie value onnforming them on matters affecting them as employees
Each part of the Group maintains employee retations appropriate to its own particular needs and environment

AUDITOR

Deloitte LLP has been appointed as auditor under the provisions of section 487 of the Companies Act 2006
Each person who s a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

a) in so far as the Director 1s aware there 1s no relevant audit information of which the audrtor 1s unaware, and

b) the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit Information
and to establish that the Company s auditor 15 aware of that information

This information is given and should be nterpreted in accordance with section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Judith 8all UK Company registration number 3219943
Company Secretary Registered Office
14 March 2013 70 Grosvenor Streat

London WIK 3JP
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable laws and regulations

Company faw requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each finanoial year The Directors have elected to prepare the Group

financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law the
Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Company for that period In preparing these financial statements, International Accounting Standards require that the Directors

— properly select and apply accounting palicies
— present information, including accounting policies, In a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information

— provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand the impact
of pariicular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity s finanaial position and financial performance, and

— make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and disclase
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financiai position of the Company and enable them ta ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also respansible for safeguarding the assets of the Cernpany and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the corporate and financial informatien included an the Company's website
Legistation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statenents may differ from {egislation n other jurisdictions
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We confirm that ta the best of our knowledge

I the financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adapted by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or lass of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and

2 the management report which 1s incorporated into the Directars’ report, includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Company and the undertakings included ir the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
nisks and uncertanties that they face

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2013 and Is signed on its behalf by

Lesley Knox
Chairman

Corporate advisers and bankers

Audrtor. Deloitte LLP

Tax advisers: KPMG LLP

Principal valuers. DTZ Cushman & Wakefield, Jones Lang LaSalle
Solicitors: 8oodle Hatfield LLP Slatighter and May

Lead bankers. The Roval Bank of Scotland Group pic
Actuaries Lane Clark & Peacock LLP
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Accounts

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Grosvenor Group Limited

We have audited the financiat statements of Grosvenor Group Limited (the ‘Group ) for the year ended 31 December 2012 which comprise the
consolidated income statement the consohdated staterent of comprehensive income the consohdated statement of changes in equity, the
consolidated and parent company balance sheets, the consohidated statement of cash flows and the related Notes 1 to 39 The financial reporting
framework that has been appled in their preparation s applicable law and Internattonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Urnion and, as regards the parent company financial statements as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members as a body 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we rmight state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor s report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permatted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company s members as a body for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained mare fully in the Statement of Directors' respensibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements

and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our respensibility ts to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Audiing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit nvolves obtasning ewidence about the amaunts and disclosures m the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material missiatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriaie to the Group's and the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we
read all the financial and non-finangial information 1n the annual report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements

If we become aware of any apparent matertal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinkon

— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group s and the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and
of the Group s profit for the year then ended

— the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unign,

— the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

— the frnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
OPINION ON QTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opimon the information given in the Directors’ report for the iinancial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with
the financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, in our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not wisited by us or

the parent company financial statements are not n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specifiedfiy law are not made or

— we have not recewved all the information and expla

Mark Goodey (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accouniants and Statutory Auditor
London, Umited Kingdom

14 March 2013
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Accounts

Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note £m £m
Total revenue 5 266.9 1952
Gross rental ncome 6 135.6 1269
Property OuUtgoIigs 7 (51 4) (400)
Net rental income 84.2 869
Other income 8 38.7 407
Administrative expenses 9 (89 3) B9 8)
Net losses on trading properties 13 (13.7) (12 5)
Net gains/(losses) on other investments 14 09 (71)
Net gains ¢n revatuation and sale of investment property 15 3127 324 4
Impairment of goodwall 24 - 07
Share of profit from jaint ventures 22 58.5 250
Gain from operations including share of joint ventures 392.0 3669
Dividend income 16 - a1
Financial income 16 58 91
Financial expenses 16 (44 9) (499)
Farr vatue adjustments 16 1.5 12
Net finanaing costs 16 (376) (519)
Profit before tax 354 4 3150
Current tax expense 17 (17 8) {147
Deferred tax expense 17 (28 5) (54 4)
Profit for the year 37 308.1 2459
Attributable to
Equity halders of the parent 37 3126 250 8
Non-controlling interests 37 45) (4 9)
Profit for the year 37 308.1 2459
Revenue Profit 15 shown in Note 4
for the year ended 31 December 2012
2012 201
Nate £m £m
Profit for the year 37 308.1 2459
Revaluation of property plant and equipment 37 36 38
Available for sale éimancial assets
Losses arising during the period - Group 37 (1.8) (11)
Losses artsing during the period - Joint Ventures 37 - (26)
Fair value adjustments on swaps
Gains/{losses) anising during the peried - Group 37 17 05
Gans/{losses) arnising during the peried - Joint Ventures 37 3.4 (10)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 37 (68.3) 57
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemeas 37 31 (124)
Tax relating to other comprehensive Income 37 2 6) an
Other comprehensive expense (609) (196)
Total comprehensive income for the period 247.2 2263
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 259.2 2364
Non-controlling interests (12 0) (101
247.2 226 3
The Company's equity ncreased during the year as a result of dividends received from subsidianies for the year of £nil (2011 £nmil} and reduced
as a result of dividends paid to Shareholders of £nil (2011 Enii)
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2012

Attnbutable to equity halders of the parest

Share Share  Translatron Other Far value  Revaluatea Retained comrc:l?:g Total
capital prefum raserve feserve reserve reserve SarnIngs Total ngerest equity
£m m fm im in £y fm £m fm €m
Balance at 1 January 2011 1649 283 3866 1039 {14 0} 97 19699 26493 126 62,7759
Changes in equity for 2011
Profit for the year - - - - - - 2508 2508 49 2459
QOther comprehenstve (expense)/iIncome - - ()] 07 44) 30 (11 6} (14 4) (52 (19 6)
Dividends - - - - - - - - 62 62
Non-conirolling shares 1ssued
by subsidtaries - - - - - - - - 03 03
Non-controlling shares acquired
by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 16) (1.6)
Redemption of Preference Shares (259) - - 259 - - (259 259 - (25.9)
Other movements i joint ventures - - - - - - {45} 45 (12} 57N
Balance at 31 December 2011 1390 283 3859 1291 (184) 127 21787 2,8553 1078 29631
Changes 1n equity for 2012
Profit for the year - — - - - - 3126 3126 45) 3081
Other comprehensive (expense)/income - - 60 5) 40 (18) 33 16 (53 4) (75) 60 9)
Dividends - - - - - - 05) (0.5) (8 4 89
Transfers between reserves - - (43) (0 4) - - 47 - - -
Non-controfing shares 1ssued
by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 06 06
Non-controling shares acquired
by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 27 27
Redemption of Preference Shares (365) - - 365 - - (365) 36 5) - {36 5)
Other movements in Joint ventures - - - - - - - -~ 11 11
Balance at 31 December 2012 1025 283 3211 1692 (202) 160 24606 30775 864 3,1639

The oniy change In the Company s equity IS the redemption of Preference Shares of £36 5m as shown i the Company s statement of changes in equity

presented in Note 37(b)
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Accounts

Balance sheets

as at 31 December 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

Note £m fm £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property 19 3,0610 28127 — -
Other property plant and equipment 20 486 406 - -
Investments in subsidiaries 21 - - 1,358.4 1,358 4
Investments in joint veniures 22 1,003 9 107148 — -
Other financial assets 23 515 69 - -
Intangible assets 24 40 41 - -
Deferred tax assets 25 1033 103 4 - -
Total non-current assets 4,2723 40725 1,358.4 1358 4
Current assets
Trading properties 26 294 8 2452 - -
Trade and cther recevables 27 2003 158 5 137.9 174 4
Other financial assets 23 9.8 32 - -
Income tax recelvable 56 120 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 28 238 4 2375 - -
Total current assets 7489 656 4 1379 174 4
TOTAL ASSETS 50212 47289 1,496.3 15328
LIABILITIES
Non-current habihities
Interest-beanng teans and borrowings 29 (769 4) (776 8) - -
Trade and other payables 3l (228 6) (204 3) - -
Employee benefits 1 (34 2) (372) - -
Deferred tax habilities 25 6001) (576 4) - -
Tetal non-current liabilitres (1,632 3) (1,594 7) - -
Current habilities
Qverdrafts 28 - on - -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 29 (495) (28 6) - -
Trade and other payables 31 (1539) (1233) - -
Income tax payable 177 (157) - -
Provisions 32 (39) (34} - -
Total current habilrites (2250) 71 1} - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES (1,8573) {1765 8) - -
NET ASSETS 3,1639 29631 1,496 3 15328
Equity
Share capital 36 1025 1390 1025 1390
Share premium 37 283 283 283 283
Reserves 37 4861 5093 1,227.0 11905
Retainad earnings 37 2,460 6 21787 138.5 1750
Shareholders’ funds 37 3,0775 2,855 3 1,496 3 1,532 8
Non-controlling interests 37 864 1078 - -
TOTAL EQUITY EY) 31639 29631 1,496 3 15328
Approved by the Board and authorised for 1ssue on 14 March 2013 and signed on behalf of the Board
Lesley Knox (Chairman)
Nicholas Scarles (Group Finance Director)
Company registration number 3219943

924
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Accounts

Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2012

w2z 2011

Note £m £m
Operating activities
Operating profit before changes in working capital and provisions 38(a) 196 296
Increase i trade and other recevables (233) 43
Increase in trading properies {49.0) (108 3)
Increase in trade and other payables 550 14
Decrease in employee benefits 02 (122)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions a5 o
Cash flow from operations 26 (939)
Interest pawd (50 5} (52 6)
Income taxes (paid)/received (18 4) 87
Interest received 58 58
Net cash flows from operating activities (60 5) (1280
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investment property 1118 1711
Acquisition of investment property (38.2) (692)
Development of investment and developmest property (38.2) (333
Proceeds from sale of other property, plant and equipment 08 01
Acquisition of other property, plant and equipment (75) (34)
Proceeds from sale of other financial assets 29 77
Acquisitton of other financial assets (1.7) 89
Net cash flow from joint ventures 319 a4
Proceeds from sale of joint ventures 96 4 1é
Acquisition of joint veniures {60 2) (223)
Dwidends receved - 131
Net cash flows from investing actiities 88.0 521
Financing activities
Proceeds from additional borrowings 825 1483
Repayment of borrowings (56 2) 726
Non-controlling shares 1ssued by subsidiaries 06 03
Non-controlling shares acquired by subsidiaries (2.7) e
Redemption of preference shares (36.5) (259)
Dividends paid (89) ©2)
Net cash flows from financing activities (21.2) 423
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 63 (336)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2375 2693
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash held (5.4) 18
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 28 238 4 2375
The Company had na cash or cash equivalents during the current and prior year and accordingly no cash flow 1s presented
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Accounts

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Urnion
These are those International Accounting Standards International Financtal Reporting Standards and related Interpretations (SIC-IFRIC mterpretatigns),
subsequent amendments to those standards and related interpretations ssued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB)

that have been adopted by the Eurcpean Union

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of investment and development properties, certamn
financial assets and derivatives and deferred tax thereon The Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis as described 1n the going concern
section of the Directors’ report on page 88 The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below The Company has elected under section 230

of the Companies Act 2006 not to include its own income statement in these financral statemenis

(B) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consoldated financial statements of the Group Incorparate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings are thase entities, including special purpose entities contrelled by the Company Control exsts when the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated finznoial statemments from the date that control commences until the date that

control ceases

laint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement Associates are those

entities over whose activities the Group has significant influence Interests in joint ventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method
whereby the consolidated balance sheet incor porates the Group's share of the net assets of its joint ventures and associates and the consolidated
income statement includes the Group's share of the joint ventures’ and associates’ profit or loss after tax for the perod The consolidated financial
statements include the Group's share of the total recognised gains and losses of joint ventures and associates on an eguity accounted basis

where the Group has contractual relationships to share assets with other entities {jomntly controlled assets) the Group's share of the individual items
of assets Nabilities, ncome and expenses are recognised in the financial statements and classified according to their nature

Where necessary adjusiments are made to the results of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to bring their accounting policies inta line with
those used by the Group Intra-Group transactions, balances, Income and expense are eliminated on consolidation where appropriate

Business combinations are acceunted for under the acquisition method Any discount between the cost of the acquisiion and the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary, joint venture or associate at the effective date of acqguisition is credited to the income
statement in the period of acquisition while any excess 1s recegrised as goodwill Goodwill is reperted in the balance sheet as an intangible asset or
mecluded within associates and joint ventures, as appropriate Goodwill is subject to annual impairment reviews and 15 stated at cost less any impairment

The gain or loss on disposal of subsidianes, joint ventures and associates 1s calculated by reference to the Group’s share of the net assets at the date
of disposal Including the attributable amount of goodwill which has not been impaired

(C) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

At entity level, transactions denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into the relevant functional currency at the exchange rate ruling on the
date the transaction 1s recorded Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foretgn currencies are re-translated at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date or if hedged, at the exchange rate under the related hedging transaction and the resultant exchange differences are dealt within the
income statement On consoldation, the results of overseas companies are translated into Sterling at the average exchange rate for the period and their
assets and habihties are translated into Sterling at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange differences arising fram the translation
of foreign operations and of related hedges, are taken to the transiation reserve They are released intg the income statement upon disposal

In the cash flow statement, cash flows denominated in foreign currencies are transtated into Sterling at the average exchange rate for the period

(D} INVESTMENT PROPERTY

tnvestment properties, including freehold and long leasehold properties, are those which are held either to earn rental income or for capial
appreciation or both Investment properties include property that 1s being constructed or developed for {future use as an investment property
tnvestment properties are mitially measured at cost, including transaction costs After initial recognition investment properties are carned at
their fair values based on annual market valuations as determined by independent vatuers

Any surplus or deftcit on revaluation is recognised In the Income statement as a valuation gain or loss

when the Group begins to redevelop an existing investment property with a view to sale, the property 1s transferred to trading properties and
held as a current asset The property s re-measured to fair value at the date of transfer and any gain or loss is recognised 1n the iIncome statement
The re-measured amount becomes the deemed cost at which the property 1s then carried in trading properties

(E) LEASES

Leases to tenants where substantially 2il the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the Group as lessor, are tlassified as operating leases
Payments made under operating leases including prepayments ang net of any incentives prowided by the Group, are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease

Where a long leasehold property 1s held as an mvestment property 1t 1 initially recognised at an amount equal to the sum of the prermium pasd on
acquisition and the present vatue of minimum ground rent payments The corresponding rent liability to the freeholder 1s included in the balance sheet
as a finance lease obligation
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

1 Accounting policies continued ‘

(E) LEASES {continued)

Leases where substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the tenant are classified as finance leases A finance lease asset

15 recognised as a recewvable in the balance sheet at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease paymenis Payments received are
allocated between repayment of the finance lease recewvable and interest income $o as to reflect a constant penodic rate of return on the Group s net
investment ouistanding in respect of the teases A profit or lass on disposal 1s recognised in the income statement upon enienng Into a finance lease
for any difference between the present value of the minimum lease payments and the carrying value of the groperty derecogmsed The net investment
In the lease 15 the gross ivestment in the lease discounted at the interest rate imphicit in the lease

(F} OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property plant and equipment are stated af cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Land and buildings are stated at fair value
with valuation gains and losses recognised in equity

Depreciation 15 charged to the iIncome statement on a straight-hine basis aver the estimated useful ives of items of property plant and equipment
and major components that are accounted for separately, at rates varying between 10% and 33 3% per annum, except for freehold property occupied
by the Group which 1s depreciated where material over its expected useful Iife

(G) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets avaitable for sale are stated at fair value which 1s determined by reference to an active market and any resuitant gain or loss 1s

recognised in the farr value reserve Where the Group has the posiive intent and abiity to hold a financial asset to maturity 1t1s stated at amortsed

cost less imparrment losses Trade recevables, loans and other recevables that have fixed or deterrminable payments that are not quated on an

acuve market are classified as loans and receivables Loans and recelvables are included at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any impairment Interest income 1s recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for shori-term receivables when the recognition

of interest would be immaterial Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impawment ai each balance sheet date Mezzanine loan investments

comgprise a loan principal which attracts a rate of interest and 1s accounted for as loans and recervables, and & profit participation element which

15 treated as an embedded derivative and classified as held for trading The embedded dervative 1s held at fair value determined by reference toa |
prudent estimate of the profit participation that will be ultsimately receivable, discounted where material Financial assets are tmpared where there

15 objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after mtial recogniton the estimated future cash flows of the investment !
have been adversely affected

{H) TRADING PROPERTIES
Trading properties are held as current assets and are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realisable value s the estimated
selling price at completion less the estimated costs of comptetion ncluding the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

(1) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade and other recervables are stated at cost less any imparrment

(J) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits Cash eguivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant fisk of changes in value Bank overdrzfts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a deduction from cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the statement of cash flows

(K) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Dervative finangial instruments utihsed by the Group are interest rate and property dervative swaps and caps and forward exchange contracts aganst
known transactions The Group goes not enter into dertvative contracts for solely speculative purposes Instruments are used for hedging purposes to
alter the risk profile of an exssting underiying exposure of the Group in hne with its risk management policies Amounts payable or receivable in respect
of interest rate swaps are recognised as adjustments to interest expense over the period of the contracts

Changes wn the far value of denvative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised directly
n equity and the ineffective portion 1$ recognised immediately in the income statement If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecasted
transaction results in the recognition of an asset or a liability then at the time the asset or Ibility 1s recognised the associated gains or losses on
the derivative that had previously been recognised in equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset or hability

Changes wn the fair value of denivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement as they arise

Hedge accounting 1s disconunued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, termsnated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting
At that ume any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging nstrument recagnised n equity 1s refained in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs

If a hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to net profit or loss for the period

Derrvatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate dervatives when their risks and characieristics are
not closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are not carried at fair value, with gains or losses reported in the tncome statement

(L) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and ather payables are stated at cost
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

1 Accounting polictes continued

(M) BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Borrowings and other financial habilities are recognised imitially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs Subsequent to initial recognition,
borrowings and other financial habilities are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised
in the income statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis

{N) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Obligations for contributions to defined contnibution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred

The Group's net obligation In respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s calcutated separately for each plan by estimating the amaunt of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periads, that benefit s discounted ta determine its present value

The calcutation s performed by an actuary using the projected unit credit method The future benefit liability 1s offset by the fair value of the pension
plan assets at the balance sheet date

The expected annual charge for the defined benefit pension costs as estimated by the actuary 1s included in the income statement and comprises
the current service cost, the interest cost on the future benefit lability and the expected return on plan assets

Adjustments between expectation and actual together with all actuarial adjustments, are recogrised n full in the year in which they arise and are
credited or debited directly to reserves

{0) REVENLE
The Group s revenue comprises rental Income, service charges and other recoverables from tenants, incame from the provision of services including
property management fees development fees and fund management fees proceeds of sales of its trading propertres and development income

Revenue from development is recogrised In the income statement in propartion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet
date Revenue Is not recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recavery of the consideration due Provision 1s made for anticipated
development losses

Rental income from investment property leased out under an operating lease 1s recognised in the ncome statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income over the Iife of the lease

Revenue from the sale of trading properties Is recognised in the income statement when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, which 15 usually at completion

Performance fees recervable from funds are recogrised in income when 1t 1s considered probable that a performance fee wall be received and that
fee can be rehably estimated The amount of the performance fee recognised is the lower of the fee that has accrued at the balance sheet date
and a prudent estimate of the fee that will be receivable at the end of the life of the fund Where material, performance fees are discounted with
any unwinding of the discount being recognised in interest Income

(P) EXPENSES
Rental payments made under operating leases are recognised In the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the tarm of the lease Lease
incentives receved are recognised in the sncome statement as an integral part of the total lease expense on a straight-ine basss over the life of the lease

Mimimurm lease payments on finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability The finance
charge s allocated to each period duning the fease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabiity
Contingent rents are charged as expenses i the periods in which they are incurred

(Q) BORROWING COSTS

Barrowing costs relating to the financing of development properties, major Improvements Lo Investment properties and trading properttes that require
substantial periods of time to bring into saleable condition are capitalised Borrowing costs are calculated by reference to the actual rate payable on
borrowings specific to a project or where a project 1s financed out of general funds, to the average rate for all borrowings Borrowing costs are
capitatised from the commencement of the project, until the date of practical completion of the project

All ather borrowing Costs are recognised in the Group income statement N the perod (n which they are incurred

(R} INCOME TAX
income tax on the profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax including tax on capital gains Income tax 1s recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity in which case it 1s recogrused In equity

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable incgme for the year, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 15 provided using the balance sheet liability method providing for tempaorary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
Iabiities far hinancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purpases The following temporary differenices are not prowvided for the
iniuial recegnition of assets and habihties that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and differences relating to investments in subsidizries to the
extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided 15 based on the expected manner of realisation
or setttement of the carrying amount of assets and liabitities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date The Group
provides deferred tax on investment properties by reference to the tax that would be due on the ulumate sale of the properties Recognition on this
basis means that where applicable, indexation allowance Is taken inio account in determining the tax base cost Where tax habilities arising on the sale
of property are able to be deferred aganst the cost of new property a deferred tax liability 1s provided, to recognise that tax may be payable should the
new property be sold in the future
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

1 Accounting policies continued

(R) INCOME TAX (continued)
A deferred tax asset 1s recognised enly to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilsed Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable thai the related tax benefit will be realised

(S) GOVERNMENT GRANTS

An unconditional government grant is recognised in the income statement as revenue when the grant becomes receivable Any other government grant
1s recognised in the balance sheet imitially as deferred income when there 1s reasonable assurance that if will be receved and that the Group will comply
with the conditions atiaching to 1t Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue i the income statement on a
systematic basis in the same pericds in which the expenses are incurred Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset

(T) ADOPTION OF STANDARDS
The Group adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretatrons during the year Their adoption did not have any material effect on
the financial performance or position of the Group

— Amendments to I1AS 12 Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets
— Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets

The following standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective

Amendments to IFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and Finanaial biabilities
— IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

- IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

— IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

— IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

— IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement

— Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of tems of Other Comprehensive Income
— IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

— 1AS 27 (as revised 1n 2011) Separate Financial Statements

— |AS 28 (asrevised in 2011) Investmenis in Associates and Joint Ventures

— amendments to 1AS 32 Offsetting Finanoal Assets and Financial Liabilities
— Annual Improvermnents to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations is unikely to have a material impact on the financial statements of the
Group in the period of invtral apphcation

(U} SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

1) Property valuations

Investment properties are carried at market value in accordance with valuations carried out by independent valuers Valuations are based on a number
of key assumptions including an estimate of future rental iIncome and the appropriate discount rate For Investment properties under development, key
judgements alse Include estimates of future development costs

Trading properties are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realisable value requires judgement in estimating the future net
realisable proceeds and costs to complete for each trading property

) Development provisions
Provisions for losses on developments are based on estimates ansing from a detailed review of the remaining costs to complete each project and
mvestrnent value at completion

1) Leases
Classification of leases between finance leases and operating leases requires a judgement to be made regarding the extent to which the nsks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee

Where operating lease premiums are received in exchange for the grant of a long leasehald interest that is classified as an operating lease the related
prafits recognised aver the term of the lease Many of the transactions giving rise to deferred lease premiums took place a number of years ago before
the requirement to spread profit recogmution, the Group has had to apply its judgement to estmate certam of the lease premium deferrals and
associated deferred tax assets

) Performance fees

Recognition of performance fees recevable from funds requires estimates to be made regarding the performance of funds over the duration of the
performance period and, where performance 1s measured against relative benchmarks that have not yei been published estimates of the expected
benchmark returns

v) Defined benefit pension schemes
The balance sheet assets and liabilities and the expected annual charge in respect of defined benetit pension plans are determined according to estimates
carried out by actuaries on the basis of assumptions agreed by the Board The key assumptions underiying these calculations are set out in Note 11
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1 Accounting policies continued

(U) SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

Vi) Taxation

The Group applies judgament in the apphcation of taxation regulations and makes estimates in calculating current mcomne tax and deferred tax assets
and liabilities including the hkely availability of future taxable profits against which deferred tax assets can be utilised

vi} Eurozone

The Group has econormic Interests both directly and through entities within the Eurozone The value and income streams from these investments may be
impacted by the outcome of the economic and political uncertainty in the Euro area As a result of imited comparable transactional evidence in certain
Eurozone markets, there is & greater than usual degree of uncertainty in respect of the figures reported by our valuers in those markets

In reaching a concluston an the value of Grosvenor s Investment In Sonae Sierra SGPS, we have considered both our strategy as a long term investor and
other refevant considerations, including the continued strong operating results the balance between stronger Brazlian and German markets and
weaker Romanian and Iberian markets improving nvestor sentiment and interest in Iberian property investment and the particular strength of several
farge dominant assets in Portugal which are not representative of the Portuguese shopping cenire sector

2 Foreign currency

The princspal exchange rates used to translate into Sterfing the results assets, habilities and cash tiows of overseas companies were as follows

Average rate Year end rate
2012 2011 2012 2011
£1 fl £1 £l
s Dollars 159 160 1.63 155
Canadian Dollars 159 158 1.62 158
Euros 1.23 115 1.23 120
Australian Dollars 1.53 155 1.57 152
Heng Kong Dollars 1231 1243 12 60 1207
Chinese Renmunty 1001 1033 10.13 978
lapanese Yen 127.28 12704 140 55 11957
Swedish Krgna 10.71 1052 1057 1065
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3 Segmental analysis

The Group’s reportable segments are the three regional Operatung Companies, Indirect Invesiments and Grosvenor Fund Management These operating
segments reflect the companents of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Group Chief Executive to allocate resources and assess performance
Not allocated represents the Group Holding Company and consolidation adjustments The accounting pehicies of the reportable segments are consistent
with the Group accounting policies detailed in Note 1

2012
Prophietary assets = Direct Proprietary assets — Indifect
Managed oy
Brtain & Asid  Gresvenor Fund Sonae  Grosvenss Fung Not
Ireland Americas Pacitic Managemens Sierra Management allocated Total
£€m fm tm £m 1] 13 im m
Income statement
Gross rental income 748 102 59 247 - - - 1356
Property outgoings
(exctuding major refurbishments) (253 ©9) 2n 47 - - - (390}
Net rental income 495 233 38 200 - - - 96 6
Fees and other income/(expenses) 115 39 10 12 - 238 27 38.7
Net gains/(losses) on trading properties 34 13 - (18 4) - - - a7
Adrmunistrative expenses {153) (14 B) {121 59 - (33 2) 80) (89.3)
Net financing costs (229 {72 13 55 - - o) (38.9)
Revenue profit/{loss) of joint ventures
(Note 22) 119 70 184 202 374 09 - 940
Group revenue profit/{loss) 381 135 98 16 374 (103) (127) 874
Net gains on revaluation
and sale of investment propertses 2653 359 15 100 - - - 3127
Major refurbishment costs (124 - - - - - - (12 3)
Net gains/(losses) on other investments - - 10 - - QD - 09
Dervative far value adjustments - 07 (15} - - - 35 13
Other (losses)/gains of jomnt ventures
(Note 22) 02 141 255 {16 2) (517) - 03 (28 8)
Profit/{loss) before tax 2908 628 363 54 (14 3) (10 4) 95 31611
Tax and non-controlling interests
In joInt ventures - 03 @7 09 (46} - - 6.7)
Profit before tax reported in the
income statement 2908 625 36 63 (189) (10 4) (99 3544
Tax expense 24 2) (18 8) 07 (GR] 1 i2 10 {46 3)
Profit after tax reported in the
Income statement 2666 437 343 D2 190) 92 85) 3081
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3 Segmental analysis continued

2012
Proprietary assats - Dikect Proprietary assets ~ Indirect
Managed by
Bntain & Asia  Grosvenoi Fund Sonae  Grosveny Fund Not
Jreland Amencas Paoht Management Sierra Management allocated Totat
£m £ 1] £m £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet (proportional basis)
Investment property 21420 6917 3459 7911 11510 37 - 5,125.4
Investmeni property
under development 928 - - - 912 - - 184.0
Trading property 3138 992 355 375 - - - 486.0
Other finanoial assets - 124 31 208 - 05 - 368
Total property assets 25486 8033 3845 8494 1,242 2 42 - 5,832.2
Net debt (3404) (2169) (113 8) {341 5) (503 2) 242 920 (1,583 6)
Deferred tax 3867) (80°5) 91 {409) (1895) 28 32 (700.7)
Other net (habilities)/assets {174 3) (26 0) 70 (50 8) (199 4) 24 1) 836 (384.0)
Net assets 1,647 2 4796 2686 416 2 3501 71 52) 3,163.9
Investment property additions 485 206 208 121 335 - - 135.5
2011
Proprietary assets — Direct Proprietary assets ~ Indirect
Managed by
Britamn & A9a Grosvenor Fund Sonae Grosvenor Fund Not
Ireland Amencas Paciiic Manragement sierra Masnagement dllocated Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m
Income statement
Gross rental income 710 274 55 230 - - - 1269
Property outgoings
(excluding major refurbishments) (214) (6 8) (22) (54) - - - (35 8)
Net rental income 496 206 33 176 - - - Gl1
Fees and other income/{expenses) 43 54 16 16 02 281 09) 407
Net losses on trading properties ©0) (02} - 63) - - - {12 5)
Administrative expenses (121 (147) (107) (84) - 298) (141 (89 8)
Net financing {costs)/income (255) (33) an (77) - 01 15) (390}
Revenue profit/(loss) of joint venteres
(Note 22) 61 50 193 163 458 - 22 903
Group revenue profit/(loss) 164 128 124 131 450 (16) (183) 808
Net gains on revaluation
and sale of Investment properties 2856 298 25 65 - - - 3244
Major refurbishment costs (42 - - - - - - (42)
Net losses on other Investments (51 - 02 - - o 21 71
Impairment of goodwill - - - c7) - - - o7
Derivative fair value adjustments - {56} Q5 (14) - - 64) (129
Other gamns/{losses) of jont ventures
{Note 22) - 124 191 (103} 607} - - (395
Profit/(loss) before tax 2927 494 347 72 (147 13 (26 8} 3408
Tax and non-controlling interests
In joint ventures - - (26) 22 210 - - (25 8)
Profit before tax reported in the
Income statement 2927 494 321 50 357 a7 (26 8) 3150
Tax expense {46 4) (24 1) {16) B0 - 09 69 69 1)
Profit after tax reported in the
income statement 2463 253 305 20 {357 26) {199) (2459)
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3 Segmental analysis continued
2011

Proprigtary assets - Diret

Prophietary assets — Indrect

Managed by
Britain & Asia Grosvenor Fund Sonae Grosvenar Fund Not
Irglgnd Amencas Pacific Management Serra Management allecated Total
£m £m m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet (proportional basis)
Investment property 1913 4 6827 3550 891 4 13113 49 - 51587
Investment property
under development 832 - - - 1190 - - 2022
Trading property 2868 531 257 866 - - - 452 2
Other finanoial assets - 90 46 126 - 03 - 265
Total property assets 2,283 4 744 8 3853 9%0 6 1,4303 52 - 58396
Net debt (414 1) (187 4) (160 6) (441 1) (6237 285 02 (1798 6)
Deferred tax (363 2) (68 3) (129 (366 (206 1) 17 49 {6801)
Other net (labilities)/assets (211 8) (21 4) 284 04 (1936 7) 219) 260 (3978)
Net assets 12543 4677 2406 5125 403 8 135 307 29631
Investment property additions 573 657 11 877 114 2 04 - 3264

4 Revenue profit

The Group uses revenue profit as its primary measure of underlying operating performance

profit before tax 1s set out below

The calculation of revenue profit and its reconciliation to

2012 2011
Share of jolnt Share of jont
ventures veniures
Group {Note 22} Total Group (Mote 22} Total
£m £m £m £m £m &m

Gross rental Income 1356 173.5 3091 12690 1823 3092
Property cutgoings (excluding major refurbishments) {390) (46.0) (850} (35 8) (48 3) 841
Net rental income (before major refurbishments) 96 6 127.5 2241 911 1340 2251
Fees and other income 387 183 570 407 141 54 8
(Loss)/profit on trading properties 137 18 3 46 (12 5) 149 24
Administrative expenses (89.3) (27.8) {u71) (89 8) (307 (1205)
Net financing costs (excluding derivative fair value adjustments) (38 9) 42 3) (81 2) {390) {42 0) (810)
Revenue (loss)/profit (6 6) 94.0 874 {95) 90 3 808
Reconcthation of revenue profit to profit before tax
Revenue (loss)/profit {6 6) 94.0 874 el 903 808
Joint veniures

- Revenue profit - {94.0) (94.0) - (90 3} ©03)

— Equity accounted profit - 58.5 585 - 250 250
Net gains on revaluation and sale

of Investment properties 3127 - 3127 3244 - 3244
Major refurbishment costs 124 - (12 4) (42 - 42
Net gains/(losses) on other investments 09 — 09 {71) — 1)
Impairment of goodwill - - - 07 - {07}
Derivative fair value adjustments 13 - 13 (129) - (129
Profit before tax 2959 58.5 3544 2900 250 3150
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5 Revenue
2012 2011
£m £m
Rental income 135 6 1269
fncome from trading and development properties 789 201
Service charge income 137 75
Other income 387 407
266.9 195 2
6 Gross rental iIncome
2012 2013
£m £m
Gross lease payments receivable 1324 1257
Amortisation of lease incentives 09 14
Amortisation of deferred lease premiums 23 26
1356 1269

Investment properties are leased out under operating leases The majenty of operating lease terms fall in the range between six months and 20 years

Total contingent rents included in gross rental income amounted ta Enil (2011 £0 1m)

7 Property outgoings

2012 2011
£m £m
Service charge mcome 13.7 75
Service charge expenses (14 4) @&
Net service charge expenses (0.7) 08
Major refurbishment cosis 1z 4) (42
Other property operating expenses (38 3) (35 2)
Total net property outgoings (51 4) 400
QOperating expenses associated with unlet properties totalled £1 4m (2012 £1 6m)
8 Other income
2012 2011
£im Em
Fund management and asset management fees 264 337
Project management fees 23 30
Other income 100 40
387 407
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9 Administrative expenses

2012 2011
£m &m
staff costs 616 606
Office costs 16 3 146
Auditor’'s remuneration — audit services 13 13
- other services 05 04
Other professional fees 19 126
Allocation of costs to Grosvenor Trusts (16 0) (15 8)
Other admenistrative expenses 137 161
893 898
All of the Group s Operating Companies were audited by Deloitte LLP and other member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited £0 5m
(2011 £0 5m) of the total audit fee 15 estimated to relaie to the audit of the Group and £0 8m (2011 £0 8m) to the audit of the Group s subsidiaries
The Company's audit fees (£0 1m) were harne by another Group company (2011 £0 m) Ameunts paid to other accountancy firms in 2012 totalled
£15m (2011 £18m)
10 Employee information
2012 201
£m tm
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 504 563
Social security contributions 47 39
Other staft costs 5.9 12
Pension costs
Contributions to defined contribution plans 2.6 31
Net cost of defined benefit plans (Note 11) 4.8 26
774 77
In¢luded in
Administrative expenses 6l.6 606
Property operating expenses 98 78
Development costs 6.0 87
774 771
Employee numbers
At end ot year Average
2012 201k 2012 201!
Number Number Number Number
Britan & Ireland 241 242 241 244
Americas 66 63 65 63
Asia Pacific 62 62 62 53
Fund Management 117 133 125 134
Indirect 2 2 2 9
Holding Company and shared services 44 43 43 43
532 945 538 846
The Company employs ol staff 2011 nil}
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11 Retirement henefit schemes

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES

The Group operates a number of defined cantnibution retirement benefit schemes The Group contributes a percentage of salary into defined contribution
schemes to fund the benefits The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of independent pensian
providers The anly obligation of the Group with respect to the defined contnibution schemes 15 to make the specified contributions

The total cast of defined contnbution penston schemes charged to the income statement was £2 6rm (2011 £3 1m)

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes in Britain & Ireland the U5A and Canada Benefits in the scheme in the USA were frozen in 2007
and the scheme tn Canada was closed 10 new entrants in 2008 The scheme in Australia was closed as at 31 December 2011, at which point it had £3 7m
of scheme liabilities and €3 7m of scheme assets (comprised of other assets) The discount rate applied to the scheme in Australia as at 31 December
2011 was 4 3%

The defined benefit schemes are funded and are administered by member and employer nominated trustees Indegendent qualfied actuaries complete
valuations of the schemes at least every three years and in accordance with their recommendations annual contributions are paid to the schemes so as
to secure the benefits set out in the rules

The Bntan & Ireland scheme 15 a multi-employer scheme because it provides pensions for both the Group and employees of cther entities owned

by the Shareholders The Group accounts for its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation scheme assets and cost of this scheme, based

on the proportion of the accrued liabilities that relate to the Group s employees Changes in the Group’s proportionate share of the assets and habilities
of this scheme anising during the year are treated as actuarial gains and losses

Actuanal valuations were last carried out at the following dates

Britain & ireland 31 December 2011
UsaA 31 December 2012
Canada 31 Decernber 2010

All the valuations have been updated to 31 December 2012 The results of these valuations together with the key assumptions used are set out below

in addition to the defined benefit schemes set out above the Group operates unfunded defined benefit schemes in Britain & Ireland and the USA
to satisfy pension commigments not catered for by the funded schemes

The Group has agreed with the Trustees of the Britain & Ireland scheme to make contnbutiens tn addition to payments in respect of the continuing
accrual of benefits, of £3 2m per annum from 2013 until 2018 to fund the scheme deficit The level of contributions will be reviewed following the next
triennial vafuation due as at 31 December 2014

with effect from 1 January 2C13 the Group will adopt the amendments to 14S 19 Employee Benefits One of the consequences will be that the interest
expense in respect of the defined berefit pension schemes wilk be calculated on the net deficit rather than separate income and expense amounis for
the scheme assets and %iabilittes Accordingly, there s no need for an assumption for the return on scheme assets at 31 December 2012

The amounts recogmsed in the income statement in respect of defined benefit schemes are

2012 2011
£m £n
Current service cost 48 52
Interest cast 75 92
Expected return on scheme assets (74) 88
Settlements and curtaiiments (0.1) (30}
48 26

The amounts included in the balance sheet arising from the Group’s obligations in respect of defined benefit schemes are
2012 2011
£m £m
Present value of unfunded obligations (15.7) (15 2)
Present value of funded obhigations (157.0) (162 6)
Present value of total defined benefit obhgations (172.7) (177 8)
Fair value of scheme assets 138 5 1406
Defined benefit pension deftci (342 (372)

The net deficit anses in the following regions

Britain & Ireland 132 (15 2)
usA (12.1) (14 O)
Canada &9 (80
(34.2) (372
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11 Retirement benefit schemes continued
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations are-

2012 2011
£m £m
At 1 January 177.8 1715
Current service cost 48 52
Past service Cost - 01
Interest cost 75 92
Settlements and curtasdiments {0.1) 30
Actuarial {gains)/losses 61 23
Benefits paid 94 (72)
Exchange movements (1.8) Q3
At 31 December 1727 1778
Anatysis of the scheme habilities:
2012 2011
£&m fm
Britain & Ireland 1197 1206
usA 225 237
Canada 305 298
At 31 December 1727 1741
Movements in fair value of scheme assets were:
2012 201
£m £m
At 1 January 1406 1344
Expected return on scheme assets 74 88
Actuarial lgsses (3.0 oy
Contributions by the empioyer 37 149
Benefits paid 93) 1
Exchange movements (09) (03
At 31 December 1385 1406
Analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rates of return
2012
Equmes Bonds Other Total
€m £m £m £m
Britain & Ireland 845 205 14 106 4
usA 18 26 - 10.4
Canada 84 59 74 217
1007 290 88 1385
2011
Equinies Bonds Qther Total
% fm % £m % fm tm
Britain & Ireland 68 824 37 214 30 16 054
Usa 92 71 50 23 34 03 97
Canada 83 87 30 58 20 73 218
982 295 92 1369
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11 Retirement benefit schemes continued
2012

Britain &
Irelanct usa Canada
Discount rate 45% 38% 4.31%
Expected rate of salary increase 47% nfa 35%
Expected rate of future pensien increase 32% 2.5% 3.3%
Inflation 32% 2.5% 2.3%
2011
Bricain &
Ireland UsA Canada
Discount rate 4 8% 4 3% 4 5%
Expected return on scheme assets 52% 70% 4 4%
Expected rate of salary increase 48% n/a 3 5%
Expected rate of future pension increase 33% 30% 32%
Inflation 33% 30% 23%
Male Female
2012 2011 2012 2011
Life expectancy of a 65-year-old today
Britain & Ireland 258 57 272 270
LUSA 192 191 21.0 210
Canada 197 196 221 220
Life expectancy of a 65-year-old in 20 years
Britain & ireland 281 280 291 290
LSA 191 191 210 210
Canada 212 211 229 228
The sensitivity to the assumptiens above of the total defined benefit obligation and approximate income statement charge ts set out below
Total defined Approxmate
benefit obhgation charge in 2013
£m £m
Based on the assumptions above 1727 66
Approximate impact of
Increase in discount rate by 0 25% {79) 08
Increase in inflation rate by O 25% 78 07
Increase (n ife expectancy by one year at 65 51 03
The hustory of experience gains and losses Is as follows
012 201 2010 2009 2008
£m Em £m £m £Em
Present value of defined benefit obl:gation (1727) {1778) (171 5) (152 4) (120 9}
Farr value of scheme assets 138.5 1406 1344 1152 914
Deficit in the schemes (34.2) (372 37D (372) (29 5)
Experience agjustments on scheme assets
Amount of {loss)/gan (30} (101) 65 137 (279}
Percentage cof scheme assets 2.2% 72% 48% i19% 30 5%
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Amount of gain/loss) 61 a7 7D (257) 72
Percentage of the present value of scheme habilities 35% 04% 41% 16 9% 6 0%
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12 Directors’ remuneration details

2012

201t

£000 £000

Aggregate remuneraiion
Emoluments 1,229 1,230
Performance-related bonus 545 365
Long-term incentive scheme 363 275
2,137 1.870

The total amounts payable under long-term incentive schemes comprise all amounts to which Directors became unconditionally entitled during

the year induding aggregate amounts that vested as a consequence of Directors retiring

The amounts above include for the highest paid Director emeluments of £545 000 (2011 £631000) performance-related bonus of £345 000

(2011 £223,000) and long-term incentive plans of £226,000 (2011 £130,000)

Retirement benefits accrued to two Directors The highest paid Director accrued benefits under the defined benefit scheme and an unfunded defined
benefit scheme The other Director accrued benefits under an arrangement combining defined benefit and money purchase benefits untl Apnl 2012
when he became a deferred member of the defined benefit scheme The total annual accrued pension under the defined benefit pension schemes was
£61,000 (2011 £51,000) and for the highest paid Directar was £57,000 (2011 £47,000) Total contributions in respect of money purchase pension

benefits were £9,000 (2011 £51 0C0) and for the highest paid Director were £ril (2011 £nil)

13 Net losses on trading properties

2012 2011
£&m &m
Devetopment costs (100) (10 8)
Proceeds from sale of trading properties 789 200
Carrying value of trading properties sold (76 9) (151
Provision for impairment of trading praperties 57 6N
Uplift on tradmg properties completed and transferred to investment property - 01
(13.7) (125)
The carrying value of trading properties sold includes £1 1m of capitalised imterest (2011 £nil)
14 Net gains/(losses) on other investments
2012 201
im £m
Loss on disposal of interests in joint ventures - (55
Impairment of joint ventures - (26)
Gain on disposal of other fixed assets 09 10
09 (71)
15 Net gains on revaluation and sale of investment property
2012 201l
im £m
Valuation gains on investment property 2991 2671
valuation losses on investment property (14 0) 67)
valuation losses on redevelopment properties - 09)
Net valuation gains on Investment property 285.1 2595
Profit on disposal of investment property 21.6 649
3127 3244
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16 Net financing costs

2012 2011

£m fm

Dividend iIncome - 01
Interest income 40 54
Other financial mcome 18 37
Financial income 5.8 91
Gross tnterest expense (Including dividends on preference shares) (47.0)} 472
Interest capitalised 7.6 32
Commitment and other financing costs (55 59
Financial expenses (44 9) (499
Fair value adjustments of interest rate swaps and foreign exchange contraces 13 (129)
Fair value adjustments of embedded derivatives 02 17
Total fair value adjustments 1.5 {112
Net financing costs (376} (519)

The average rate of mnterest capitalised in the year was 6 9% (2011 7 0%)

The far value adjustments above include interest rate swaps which relate to cash flow hedges that are not designated as effective The movements in
fair value of these derivatives arise from underlying market movements and changes in time o maturity

17 Income tax expense

Recognised in the income statement

2012 2011
£m €m
Current tax expense

UK corporation tax at 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 11 77
Overseas tax 138 62
Adjustment for prior years (71) 08
178 147

Deferred tax expense
Ornigination and reversal of temporary differences 283 567
Benefit of tax gains/(fosses) recognised 0.1 {05
Adjustment for prior years 0.1 (18
285 544
Total tncome tax expenses In the income statement 463 691
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17 Income tax expense continued
Deferred tax recognised in other comprehensive income

2012 201
m £m
Revaluation of property plant and equipment 03 08
Fair value adjustments on financial instruments treated as cash flow hedges 08 04
Fair value adjustments on available for sale finanoial assets - 07
Actuanal gams/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 15 27
Foreign exchange movements - 19
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive iIncome 2.6 11
Reconcihation of effective tax rate
Profit before taxation 3544 3150
Less share of profit of joint ventures (58 5) (250
Add profi of jont ventures where the tax charge 1s directly attributable to the Group 280 214
Adjusted Group profit before taxation 3239 3114
Tax on adjusted Group profit at standard UK corporation tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 794 825
Higher tax rates on overseas earnings 126 60
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 48 55
Gther items attracting ng tax rekef or kability 79) 20
Other timing differences (o) 25
Reduction n tax rate (325) (28 4)
Adjustments in respect of over provision (n prior years 1) 1o
Total income tax expense 1n the income statement 46.3 691
Effective tax rate based on adjusted Group profit 14 3% 22 2%
Effective tax rate excluding the rate change impact on deferred tax 24 3% 31 3%

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE TAX CHARGES
The Budget on 21 March 2012 announced that the UK corporate tax rate would decrease from 269 to 24% from 1 Aprik 2012 (rather than 25% as
previously enacted i 2011) The Finance Act 2012 enacted a further reduction to 23% from 1 April 2013

A current tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) has heen applied to the year ended 31 December 2012 In the UK a deferred tax rate of 23% (2011 253%) has
been applied to opening balances and movements in deferred tax in the year ended 31 December 2012

Subsequent annual rate reductions {(such as the recent Autumn Statement which announced the UK corporation tax rate will reduce from 23% to 21%
from 1 April 2Q014) will require the restatement of deferred tax balances and this is likely to reduce the effective tax rate of the Group when compared to
the statutory tax rate In 2012 the restatement of deferred tax balances has reduced the effecive tax rate of the Group from 24 3% to 14 3%

{2011 31 3% to 22 2%) and the overall impact of the rate change 1s a reduction in the tax charge of £32 5m (2011 £28 4m)

18 Property assets

The tablte below analyses the Group's Interests in property assets on a propartional basis including the Group’s share of property assets i joint
ventures and associates

202 2011

Note ’m £€m

Investment property - Group 19 2,968.2 27295
— Share of joint ventures 22 2,157 2 24292

Investment properties under development — Group 19 92.8 832
= Share of joint ventures 22 91.2 1190

Trading properties - Group 26 294 8 2452
— Share of joint ventures 22 191 2 2070

Other financial assets* — Group 23 36.8 265
Total property assets 58322 58396

*Other financial assets included in property assets relate to equity and debt investments in property companies
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19 Investment property

Completed property Under development
Freehold 1 easehold Total Freehold Leasehold Total Total
fm im fm im fm £m £m
At1January 2011 7760 16889 24649 36 574 610 2,525.9
Acquisitions 506 246 752 0t - 01 75.3
Costs capitalised 14 &7 81 - 248 248 329
Disposals 40D (44 9) (850) - - - (85.0)
Revaluation gains 308 2284 2592 (09 - (01>} 258 3
Release of deferred costs (16) ©n an - - - a7
Transfer from redevelopment projecis 18 - 18 (i8) - {18) -
Transfer from trading properties L7 - 17 - - - 1.7
Exchange movements 15 38 53 - - - 5.3
At 31 December 2011 8221 19074 27295 10 822 832 2,812.7
Acquisitions 238 144 382 - - - 38.2
Costs capitalised 36 123 159 - 250 250 409
Disposals 247 {59 4) (84 1) - - - (84.1)
Revaluation gains 429 2433 2862 - - - 286.2
Transfer from redevelopment projects - 153 153 - 153) (15 3) -
Transfer from trading properties 01 - 01 - - - 01
Exchange movements (28 8) a1y (329 - on o (33.0)
At 31 December 2012 8390 21292 29682 10 918 928 3,061 0

Investrment properties were valued at 31 December 2012 by independent external valuers on the basis of market value in accerdance with generally

accepted international valuation standards Valuations were performed as follows

£m
Britain & Ireland Freehold DTZ Chartered Surveyors 6.2
Freehgld CB Richard Ellis Chartered Surveyors 64.0
Long feasehold DTZ Debenham Tte Leung, Chartered Surveyors 2,164.5
Americas Freehold Cushman & Wakefield Le Page Chartered Surveyors 266 9
Freehold Altus Group Research valuation and advisory 209.8
Asia Pacific Freehold Tanizawa 50G0 Apprassal Co Ltd 203
Long leasehold Daiwa Real Estate Appraisal Co Ltd 134
Long leasehold Savills valuation & Professional Services Limited 43.1
Indirect Investments Freehold lones Lang LaSalle Chartered Surveyors 113.1
Freehold pirectors valuation 125.1
Freehold Cushman & Wakefteld, Chartered Surveyors 346
30610
The historical cost of the Group's investment properties was £1,247 2Zm {2011 £1 161 1m}
At 31 December 2012, investment properties with a carrying amount of £1 590 2m were pledged as security for bank leans (2011 £1,4674m)
Inctuded in the above are investment properties available for sale of £170 5m (2011 £11 2my}
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20 Other property, plant and equipment

2012
Computer  Fixtures, ithings
Land and Leasehold and ¥ and motor
buildings ENProvements equigment veincles Total
£€m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At January 2012 327 64 77 94 562
Additions - 02 63 09 7.4
Disposals 07 - 3 o4 (14)
Revaluation gamns 36 - - - 1.6
At 31 December 2012 356 66 137 Q9 658
Depreciation
At1 January 2012 on (58 (45 (52) (15 6)
Depreciation charge for the year - 03 7 (10) 20)
Dispasals - - 03 01 o4
At 31 December 2012 0N 61 @9 61} (17.2)
carrying amount
At 1 January 2012 326 06 32 42 406
At 31 Decemnber 2012 355 05 88 18 48 6
2011
Computer  Fixtures fitungs
Land and Leasehold ang T and motor
budings IMprovements equipment vehicles Total
£€m im £&m €m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2011 289 68 55 90 502
Additions - 02 26 09 37
Disposals - 06 04 05 15
Revaluation gams 38 - - - 38
At 31 December 2011 27 64 77 94 562
Depreciation
At 1 fanuary 2011 oy 60} 43) @2 (14 6)
Deprectation charge for the year - 03 06} 04 23
Disposals - 05 04 04 13
At 31 December 2011 oy (58} 45) (52 {156)
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2011 288 08 12 48 356
At 31 December 2011 326 06 32 42 406
Land and buildings are freehold and were valued at 31 December 2012 by independent valuers DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Chartered Surveyors
on the basis of market value for existing use n accordance with the Apprasal and Valuatwon Manual of the Rovyal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
The historical cost of the Group s revalued land and bulldings above at 31 December 2012 was £12 5m (2011 £13 6m)
The carrying value of freehold land and buildings includes capitalised mterest of £l (2011 Enil}
At 31 December 2012 land and buldings with a carrying value of £nil were pledged as security for bank loans {2011 £nil)
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21 Investments in subsidiaries

Company
Shares
at cost
£m
At 1January 2012 and 31 December 2012 1,358.4

At 31 December 2012 the Group had the following principal nvestments 1n subsidiaries

INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANIES

Grosvenor Estate Holdings™*

Grosvenor Investmants UK ted

Grosvenor Fund Management Limited

Grosvenor Limited

Grosvenor Americas Corporatton (Canada)

Grosvenor Amercas USA Inc (USA)

Grosvenor International SA (Luxembourg)®

Grosvenor Internatienal Investments SARL (Luxembourg)
Grosvenor Continental Europe Holdings SA (Luxembourg)
Grosvenor First European Property Investments SA (Luxembourg)*
Grosvenor Asia Pacific Limited (Hong Kong)

Grosvenor Australia Investments Pty Limited (Australia)

FINANCING
Grosvenor Group Finance Company™
Grosvenar LK Finance Pic

REGULATED ENTITIES

Grosvenor Austrahia Nominges Pty Limited (Australia)
Grosvenor Fund Management Inc {US)

Grosvenor Fund Management Japan Ltd (Japan)
Grosvenor Investment Management Ltd

*Unlimited company

"100% of preference shares are also owned

*Ordinary and non-voting preference shares are wholly owned All of the floating rate guaranteed class B voting preferred redeemable shares which carry approximately

36% of the total voting rights are publcly held
77 5% ownegt

All the above companies except Grosvenor Estate Holdings are indirectly owned Al companies are wholly owned and ncorporated in Great Britain

except where indicated Except as disclosed above all interests are in the form of ordinary shares
The above represent the Group s material subsidiary undertakings A full hst of all subsidiary undertakings 1s avatlable on request
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22 Investments 1n joint ventures

2012
Proprietary assets = Direct Proprigtary assats — Indirect
Mznaged by
Britan & Asia Grosvenor Fund Sonae Grogvengr Fund Not
Ireland Americas Pacific Management sierra Management allocated Total
Em £m £m £m £m em £m £m
Share of profit from
joint ventures
Gross rental mcome 08 175 149 375 1026 02 - 1735
Property OUtg0INEs 05 (60} 31 (t02) 261) b - (460}
Net rental income 03 115 18 273 765 01 - 1275
Fees and other income/{expenses) 03 - - {05) 186 ob - 183
Net gain/(losses) on trading properties 130 1) 94 90 (130) - - 183
Adrmunistrative expenses 02) @2 03 (37 (22 6) 08 - (27 8)
Net tinancing costs {15) 42 25 {119) (221 oy - (42 3)
Revenue profit/(loss) 19 70 184 202 374 09 - 940
Net gains/(losses) on revaluation
and sale of investment properties - 141 255 (150) (517) - - {271)
Net losses on other investments o - - 04 - - 03 (0 8)
Impairment of goodwill - - - 9 - - - (09
Derivative fair value adjustments o1 - - 01 - - - -
Profit/(loss} before tax n7 211 439 40 (143) 09 03) 652
Current tax - ()] 23 (23 90 - - (13 9}
Deferred tax - - 04) 31 49 - — 76
Non-controlling interest - - - 01 05 - - 04
nz 208 4] 2 49 (18 9) o9 03) 585
Share of assets and liabilities
Non-current assets
— Investment properties - 2150 269t 518 4 11510 37 - 2,1572
— Investment properties
under development - - - - 912 - - 912
- other D2 - - 10 543 a1 - 556
Current assets
- cash 69 25 44 313 10i9 42 - 1612
- trading properties 1310 i76 355 71 - - - 1912
- other 11 08 31z 12 650 10 - 1203
Non-current habilities 43 8 62 4) (1397) (2783 {945 8) 22 - 1,472 2)
Current liabiities (372) {199) (2200 (443 (176 4) 08 - (300 6)
Net assets 682 153 6 1885 246 4 3412 60 - 1,0039
Borrowings included in habiities {43 4) (78 Q) {1371) (288 5) (6152} 2D - (1,164 3)

Included in Sonae Sierra are investment properes and investment properties under development of £765m to which the uncertainty explained in
Note l{u)vii relate Net gains/(losses) on revaluation and sale of investment properties 1 Sonae Sierra comprises gains of £25 9m and losses of £77 6m
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22 Investments 1n joint ventures continued

2011
Proprietary assets — Direct Proprigtary assets — Indirect
Managed by
Britain & Asia  Grosvenor Fund Sonae  Grasvenorfund Not
treland Americas Pacihic Management Sierra Management allocated Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m fm £m
Share of profit from
Joint ventures
Gross rental income 10 162 130 4 4 1108 02 - 1823
Property outgoings {05) (54) (28 (102) (293) on - (48 3)
Net renial income 05 108 102 312 812 01 - 1340
Fees and other (expenses)/income - (1 01 04 147 - - 141
Net gain/(losses) on trading properties &7 on 16 09 42 - - 146
Administrative expenses - (02) 05 36) (241) on 22 (307
Net financing costs (an (44 210 126) (218) - - (42 0)
Revenue profit/(loss) 61 50 193 163 458 - (22) 903
Net gans/{losses) on revaluation
and sale of Investment properties - 126 191 85 (202 - - 30
Net gains on other investments - - - 01 - - - 01
Impairment of goodwil! — - - {04 {405) - - 409
Dervative fair value adjustments - 02 - 15) - - - 1n
Praofit/(loss) before tax 61 174 384 60 (149) - (22 508
Current tax - - 22 a7 92 - - (161)
Deferred tax - - o4 26 12 - - 10
Non-controlling interest - - - on 106 - - (107)
61 174 38 38 (359 - 22) 250
Share of assets and habilities
Non-current assets
— invastment properties - 2295 2604 6231 13113 49 - 24292
— Investment propertres
under development - - - - 1190 - - 1190
- other 01 - - 189 451 03) - 678
Current assets
— gash 59 31 208 323 647 08 - 1276
- trading properties 1478 99 257 236 - - - 2070
- gther 81 13 194 74 677 - - 1039
Non-current liabilities (173) 84 4) (1396) (361 2} (1,1253) 27) - (L730 5)
Current habilties (102 ) 49 (78) (409) (932) 04 01 (249 2)
Net assets 425 1545 1789 3032 3933 23 01 1074 8
Borrowings included in liabilibes 841 (84 8 (1373) (360 4) 6390 {2 6) ~ (1,358 2)
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22 Investments 1n joint ventures continued
At 31 December 2012 the Group had the foltowing principal interests in joint ventures which are accounted for on the basis explained in Note 1

Group share
Country of Effective of net assets
Principal actvities Incorporation/regisiration nterest £m
Britain & Ireland
GC Bankside LLP Property development England and Wales 50 0% 293
GC Campden HIll LLP Property development England and Wales 50 0% 108
Barkhill Limited Property development Republic of lreland 50 0% 58
The Grouss Residential investment Partnership Property development Scotland 318% 76
Alpha Place Developments LLP Property development England and Wales 330% 149
Americas
leint ventures with 8BCAF Inc Property nvestment United States of America 50 0%/25 0% 1187
Joint ventures with the Getty Farmily Trust Property investment United States of America 50 0% 71
Art Hill Management Property investment Umited States of America 489% 59
loint ventures with Maple Leaf Property investment United States of America 510% 156
loint ventures with JBC Companies Property development United States of America 50 0% 61
Asia Pacific
Seatonmere Limited Property Investment Hong Kong 50 0% 1656
Paramount Shine Limited Property development Hong kong 50 0% 09
GT3 Tokutel Mokuter Kaisya Property investment lapan 50 0% 59
Grasvenar Park Partners Property develcpment Cayman islands 50 0% 101
Grosvenar Resident:al Development Partnership Property develgpment China 10 0% 60
Indirect Investments
Grosvenor Shopping Centre Fund Property investment England and Wales 23 4% 272
Grosvenor London Office Fund Property investment England and Wales 24 2% 830
Grosvenor Residential tnvestment Fund Property investment England and Wales 50 0% 133
Grosvenor Liverpool Fund Property investment England and Wales 19 6% 601
GEMOA Ing Property investment United States of america 20 0% 127
Shmael US Real Estate Fund Property investment United States of America 10 0% 14
Grosvenor Residential Investment Partners Property nvestment United States of America 25 0% 92
US Healthcare Venture Property investment Urited States of America 50% 17
Grosvenor Vega — China Retar! Fund Property mvestment China 70% 71
Grosvenor Diamond Capital — Stable Residential Fund  Property investment lapan 4 0% 13
Grosvenor Capital Advisars Partnership Property investment lapan 33 7%/18 8% 116
Grosvenor Office Retad Fund Property investment Japan 76% 38
10 Investments Limited Property investment England and Wales 90 1% 81
Sonae Sierra SGPS SA Property investment
and development Portugal 50 0%* 3412

*Certain investments in joint ventures in Continental Eurgpe are controlled by Grosvenor First Eurapean Property Investments SA (GFEPI) which 1s 77 5% owned by the

Group The effective interest above includes the interests of the non-controlling investors in GFEPI

The financial statements inctude, on an equity accounted basis, the results and financial position of the Group s terests m UK hirited partnerships
Accordingly advantage has been taken of the exemptions provided by Regulaticn 7 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008, which dispenses

with the requirement for those parinerships to file accounts with Companies House
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23 Other financial assets

2012 2011
m im
Non-current assets
Equity shares 132 175
Frnance lease recewvables 61 69
Mezzanine loans 92 75
Other financial assets 165 50
Non-current portion of currency swaps 65 -
515 369
Current assets
Mezzanine loans 3.2 32
Current portion of currency swaps 66 -
9.8 32
Included in the above are property related financial assets of £36 8m (2011 £26 5m)
Principal financial assets at 31 December 2012
Equity shares
Country of Eftective
Panopal actmities ncorporation mnterest
Asia Standard International Group Limited Property investment and development Hong Kong 2 3%
(hsted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange)
ISPT Grosvenor Internatwonal Property Trust Property investment vehicle Australia 999%
Finance lease receivables
2012 2011
£m £m
Finance lease recewvable 5.4 55
Unguaranteed residual value 07 14
61 69
Finance lease receivables in respect of rents on leasehoid properties are recevable as follows
Minemurm Ungarned
lease payments tinance iIncame Principal
£m £m £em
Less than one year 07 07 -
Between one and five years 28 28 -
More than five years 909 855 54
944 a9 g 54
MEZZANINE LOANS

Mezzanmine toans are loans provided to residential developers in the USA and Canada A return s earned comprising a fixed rate interest and a share

of the profits on completion of the development
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24 Intangble assets

2012
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
fm Em im
Cost
ALl January 2012 86 17 103
Exchange movements 02 oy (03)
At 31 December 2012 a4 16 10.0
Amortisation/impairment
At 1 January 2012 45) 17 62)
Exchange movements 01 [¢3] 02
At 31 December 2012 (44) (16) (6.0)
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2012 41 - 41
At 31 December 2012 40 - 40
2011
Qther
intangible
Goodwill as5els Total
im £m m
Cost
At January 2011 89 17 106
Exchange movements (o)) - 03)
At 31 Decemnber 2011 86 17 103
Amortisation/impairment
At 1 January 2011 (40 a7 (57
Impairment o7 - 07
Exchange movements 02 - 02
At 31 December 2011 45) an 62
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2011 49 - 49
At 31 December 2011 41 - 41
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25 Deferred tax assets and habilities

RECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items

2012

2011

Assets Uabilities Net Assets uatihnes Net

£m £m &m £m im £m
Investment property — contingent gans 16.3 (452 &) (436 3) 269 (552 6) {5257)
Investment property — deferred gains 52.6 (122.9) (70 3) 458 - 458
Other property, plant and equ:pment 01 (9 4) {93) 01 19 (118
Other financial assets - (0.1) o1 04 (05 [(sB)]
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 58 (13) 45 59 09 50
Employee benefits 16.5 (5.6) 10.9 160 (38 122
Provisions 1.5 - 15 10 - 10
Other items 71 82 (11) 55 67 12
Tax value and loss carry-forwards recognised 34 - 34 08 - 08
Tax assets/(liabilities) 103 3 (600.1) (496 B) 103 4 (576 4) 473 0)

At 31 December 2012, no deferred tax was provided in respect of unremitted earnings of overseas substdiaries bacause the Group 15 able to control
the timing of the reversal of temporary differences and 15 satisfied that it s probable they will not reverse in the foreseeable future At 31 December
2012 the total of these temporary differences was £435 8m (2011 £416 2m} and the potential tax effect £25 9m (2011 £25 8m) The temporary
differences at 31 December 2012 represent only the unremtted earmings of those overseas subsidiaries where remittance of those earnings would still
result in a tax lability, principally as a result of dividend withholding taxes levied by the overseas tax jurisdictions in which these subsidiaries operate

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

2012 2011
&m fm
Tax losses 472 385
Movement in temporary differences during the year
Balance at Balance at
1 January Recogmised Recognised Exthange 31 December
e inIincome nequity movement Drsposals 012
fm £m im £m im £m
Investment property — contingent gains (5257) 862 03 06 29 (436.3)
Investment property — deferred gains 46 8 (121 4) - 43 - (70.3)
Other property plant and equipment (11 8) 25 - - - (9.3)
Other financial assets on - - - - (0.1)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 50 05 08) ©2 - 4.5
Employee benefits 122 03 15) on - 109
Provisions 10 05 - - - 1.5
Other items a2 03 - o2 - (L.1)
Tax value and loss carry-forwards recognised 08 26 - - - 14
473 0) (28 5) (26) 44 29 {496 8)
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26 Trading properties

2012 2011
£€m £m
At 1 January 245.2 1387
Additions 131.6 1190
Capitahsed interast 4.3 16
Disposals (76 9) (151)
Provision for impairment 5.7 ©67)
Transfer to investment properties {0.1) un
Transfer from joint ventures - 14
Exchange movements 36) (20)
At 31 Dacember 294.8 245 2
At 31 December 2012 trading properties with a carrying amount of £41 2m were pledged as security for bank loans (2011 £51 6m)
27 Trade and other receivables
Group Company
212 201 2012 2011
fm im £m £m
Trade receivables 298 208 - -
Recewables due from subsidiaries - - 1379 1744
Recewables due from jomnt ventures 806 678 - -
Other recevables 651 613 - -
Prepayments 54 43 - -
Accrued income 194 43 - _
2003 158 5 1379 174 4
Inclucted in the above are recelvables due after more than one year totaling £3 6m (2011 £Q1m)
28 Cash and cash equivalents
2012 2011
£m fm
Bank balances 115.5 694
Cash deposits 1229 1681
Cash and cash equivalents 238 4 2375
Bank overdrafts - oD
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 2384 2374

The amount of cash and cash equivalents not avasable for use by the Group totals £80 7m (2011 £26 5m) of which €mil (2011 £1 2m) has been pledged

as collateral
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29 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

2042

2011

£m £m

Non-current hathties
Secured bank loans 2435 3145
Unsecured bank loans 510 501
Secured bond Issues 202.0 2021
Unsecured bond 1ssues 2675 1775
Finance lease lhabilities 13 14
Lean from non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 11 14
Preference shares - 298
769 4 776 8

Current labilities

Current portion of secured bank loans 20.2 265
Current portion of unsecured bank loans 02z -
Current porton of currency swaps - 21
Preference shares 29.1 -
495 286

The bank loans and secured bonds are secured over investment properties with a carrying value of £1,590 2m (2011 £1,467 4m) land and buildings with
acarrying value of £nil (2011 £nil) and trading properties with a carrying value of £41 2m (2011 £51 6m) Included insecured bond 1ssues 1s £2 Om (2011

£2 2m) of net un-amartised premium The preference shares are 1ssued by a subsidiary undertaking (see Note 21)

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
Finance lease hahilities are payable as follows

2

201

Minimum Minmum

lease lease
payments Interest Principal payments Interest Principal
£m £m £m im m £m
Less than one year 03 0.3 - 03 03 -
Between one and five years 13 1.3 - 12 iz -
More than five years 739 726 13 27 713 14
755 742 1.3 42 728 14
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30 Financial instruments

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The capital structure of the Group comprises debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 29, cash and cash equivalents disclosed m Nete 28
and equity, comprising issued share capital reserves and retamned earmings as disclosed tn Notes 36 and 37

The Group manages its capital to optimise the allocation of equity between the Operating Companies and Indwect Investments and to enable them to
meet their short, medium and long-term targets internal geaning and interest cover limits are set for the Group and each Operating Company Group

gearing at the year end 15 18 4% (2011 199%)
Categories of financial instruments and their far values
2012

Financial Total
Loans and Heid for  Avatlable for sale assets at carmymg Fair
recevables trading securities amortised cost amount value
£m £m fm £im £m £m
Financial assets
Equity shares - - 132 - 13.2 132
Finance lease recewvable 61 - - - 6.1 94
Mezzanine loans (current and non-current) I22 02 - - 12.4 12,4
Other financial assets - - 165 - 16.5 165
Trade and other recevables 806 - - 549 1755 1755
Tax recewvable - - - 56 56 56
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 2384 2384 238 4
Total financial assets 989 02 297 3389 4677 4710
Financizl Total
hatilities at carryng Fair
amortised cost amount value
£m £m £m
Financial habilities
Bank overdrafts - - -
Fixed rate loans
Sterling unsecured bond 2019 (52 5) {52 5) (65 2)
Sterhng unsecured bond 2022 (60 1) (60 1) (50 8)
Sterling secured bond 2026 (202 0) (202.0) (234 3)
Sterling unsecured bond 2031 (955) (95 5} 847
Sterling secured mortgage 2034 (500) (50.0) (50 0)
Sterling unsecured bond 2037 301 (30.1) (25.6)
sterling unsecured bond 2041 {30 6) (30 6} {26 9)
Us Dollars (46 %) (46.5) (50 5)
Canadian Dollars (36 5) (36 5} (40.4)
Japanese Yen B4 (8.4} 8.9)
Total fixed rate loans 6122 (612.2) (636 9)
Floating rate loans
us Dollars (84 0) (84.0) (840)
Canadian Dallars (33) 33 (33
fures (399 (39.5) (395)
Australian Dollars (35 9) (35 5) (35 5}
Total floating rate loans (162 3) (162.3) (162 3)
Finance lease habilities {13 (13) (1.3}
Loans from non-controlling interests in subsidiaries “4n 4.1) (4.1}
Preference shares 291 (29 1) (291}
Tax payable 177 177 azn
Trade and other payables (1107 (80 )] (110 7)
Total financial habilities (9374) (9374) (962 1)
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30 Financial instruments continued

2012
Total
Held for carrying Falr
trading amaunt value
m £m £m
Dervatives
Interest rate swaps
Us Dollars Tm (7.0) (7.0)
Hong Kong Dollars 15) (15) (1.5)
Euros 02 ©2 0.2)
Australian Dollars 2 12) 12
Total interest rate swaps 99 99 9.9)
Currency swaps
US Dollars 02 0.2 02
Japanese Yen 18 1.8 18
Euros 105 105 10.5
Austrahan Doflars 06 06 0.6
Total currency swaps 131 13.1 13.1
Total derivatives 32 32 32

Currency swaps are against Sterling unless stated otherwise

The table below prowides an analysis of financial mstruments that are measured at farr vatue subsequent to imtaal recognition grouped according to the

degree to which the far value 1s derwved from observable data

Levell Level 2 Level3 Total
£ fm £m £m

Available-for-sale financial assets
£quity shares 31 10.1 - 132
Other 152 13 - 165
Financial assets held for trading
Mezzamine loan investments - - 02 0.2
Dervatives - 131 - 13.1
Total finanaial assets 183 4.5 02 43.0
Financial hiabthties held for trading
Derwatives - 99 - 99
Total financial habilities - o9 - (99

Level 1 fair values derived from quoted prices in active markets for igentical assets/latilities
Level 2 fair values derived from observable inputs other than quoted prices
Level 3 fair values derived from valuation techrugues that include inputs that are not based on observable data

The far values of financial assets and hiabilities are determined as follows

— Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estmated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived

from quoted mterest rates

— The tarr value of financial assets and hiabilties with standard terms and conditions and traded on active markets is determined with reference to

quoted market prices

— The farr value of other financial assets and liabrlities 1s determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysts using prices from observable current market transactions
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30 Financial instruments continued

2011
Finangal Total
toans and Held for  Avalable for sale assets at carrying Fair
recevables trading SBCUngs amortised cost amount value
fmn fm £m £m £m £m
Financial assets.
Equity shares - - 175 - 175 175
Finance lease recevable 69 - - - 69 94
Mezzanine loan investments 90 17 - - 107 107
Other financial assets - - 50 - 50 50
Trade and other recevables 678 - - 821 1499 1499
Income tax receivable - - - 120 120 120
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 2375 2375 2375
Total financial assets 837 17 225 3316 4395 4420
Financil Total
labilities a1 carrying Fair
amortised ¢St amaunt value
£m £m im
Financial habilities:
Overdraft 1) 01 (/)]
Fixed rate loans
Sterling secured mortgage 2034 (500} (500 {80 8)
Sterling secured bond 2026 (2021) (202 1) (2330)
Sterling unsecured bond 2031 (929) (92 9) {84 6)
Sterling unsecured bond 2041 (300) (300) (274)
Sterling unsecured bond 2019 (52 5) (52 5) {65 5)
Sterling fixed rate 27 27 27
US Dollars (491) (491 (529)
Canadian Dollars (383) (38 3) 430)
Total fixed rate loans (517 6) (517 6) (5899)
Floating rate loans
Sterling (54) (54) (54)
US Dollars 879 (879) (879)
Canadian Dollars (24) (24) @24
Hong Kong Dollars (65) 6 5) (65)
lapanese Yen 132 (132} (132
Euros (65 4) 65 4) 65 4)
Australian Dollars 633 633) 633)
Total floating rate loans (244 1) (244 1) (244 1)
Finance lease liabilities {14) (14) (14)
Loans from non-controdling interests in subsidiaries (14) 14 (ra
Preference shares {298) 29 8) (29 8)
Income tax payable (157 {i57) (157)
Trade and other payables 791 (791) (791)
Total financial habiities (8892) (8892) (9615)
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2011
Total
Held for carrying Farr
trading amount value
£m £m £m
Derivatives
Interest rate swaps
US Dollars 71 @B 70
lapanese Yen on on on
Euros 08 (06 06)
Austrahan Dollars 12 (12} 12
Total interest rate swaps (o)} (90} (CR)}
Currency swaps
Us Dollars 22 22 22
Hong Kong Dollars 05 (05 05
lapanese Yen oo ao Q)
Chinese Renminbt/US Dollars 19 19 (19
Euros 41 41 41
Australian Dollars 06 06 06
Total currency swaps 21 @n 21
Total derivatives 1y (111} 11y

Currency swaps are aganst Sterhing unless stated otherwise

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at far value subseguent to imitial recogmition, grouped according to the

degree to which the far value 15 derived from observable data

2011

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m m £m £m

Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity shares 46 129 - 175
Dther 50 - - 50
Financial assets held for trading
Mezzanine loan investments - - 17 17
Dervatives - 41 - 41
Total financial assets 96 70 17 283
Finanaal habilities held for trading
Dervatives - {152) - (15 2)
Total financial habilities - 152) - (152)

Level 1 fair values denved from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets/labilities

Level 2 fair values derived from abservable inputs other than quated prices

Level 3 fair valizes derved from valuation techriques that include inputs that are not based on observable data

The fair values of financial assets and habdities are determined as follows

- Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived

from quoted interest rates

— The fair value of financial assets and habilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active markets 1s determined with reference to

quoted market prices

~ The fair value of other financial assets and liabdities 1s determined (n accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis using prices from chservable current market transactions
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30 Financal instruments continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has & decentralised treasury management operating structure, co-ordinated through a Group treasury function which monitors and
manages the financal f1sks relatng to the Group s aperations and seeks to maximise the efficency of borrowings and cash deposits throughout
the Group Treasury policies, approved by the Board, are

— to manage wholly owned treasury operations in a co-ordinated manner, debt for joint venwres and funds 1s raised at joint venture and fund
level but 1s managed within the co-ordinated approach

10 ensure sufficent commuitted loan facdities to support anticipated business requirements as they arse

to ensure that the Group s debt can be supported from mantainable cash flow through clear internal guidelines,

- 10 manage Interest rate exposure with a combination of fixed rate debt and interest rate swaps so that a rmimimum of 60% of borrowings
are at fixed interest rates for the next three years

not to hedge long-term net asset positions held in foreign currencies and
— to invest shori-term cash with approved institutions within lumits agreed by the Board

Transactions in financial nstcuments including dervatives are either governed by specific delegations to Operating Company boards or have prior
Board appraval The Group does rot enter nto any treasury positions for purely speculative purposes Qetailed treasury reports are produced on
a monthly basis with consolidated treasury risk reports presented to the Shareholders and the Board Risks include market risk (interest rates,
currency and pricing) credit nsk and hquidity risk
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INTEREST RATE RISK

Exposure to interest rate movements 1s controlled through the use of a mixture of floating and fixed rate debt and interest rate denvatives, 10 achieve
a balanced nterest rate profile to ensure that a minimum level of borrawings are at fixed interest rates for the next three years The interest rate profile

1s reviewed by the Group on a monthly basis

The Group s exposure to interest fates on financial assets and financial liabilities 1s analysed below

2012
Effective Floating Fixed interes! rate Non-
nterest nterest interest
rate rate «<1yBar 1-5 years »5years bearing Total
% £m £m m £m £€m £€m
Financial assets.
Equity shares - - - - - 132 13.2
Finance lease recewvable 101 - - - 61 - 61
Mezzanine toans (Current and non-current) 82 - 32 92 - - 12.4
Other financial assets 51 50 - 01 0t 13 16.5
Trade and other receivables
(excluding prepayments and accrued income) 71 16 - - 126 1513 175.5
Tax receivable - - - - - 56 5.6
Cash and cash equivalents 07 1269 625 - - 490 238.4
Total financial assets 1435 657 93 88 2304 4677
Financial habilities,
Fixed rate loans
Sterling unsecured bond 2019 84 - - - {52 5) - (52.5)
Sterling unsecured bond 2022 34 - - - (60 1) - {60.1)
Sterling secured bond 2026 65 - - - (202 Q) - (202.0)
Sterling unsecured bond 2031 56 - - - 5 5) - (95.5)
Sterling secured mortgage 2034 104 - - - (500) - (50.0)
Sterling unsecured bond 2037 50 - - - 301) - (30.1)
Sterhing unsecured bond 2041 61 - - - (30 8) - (30.6)
Us Dotlars fixed rate 102 - (05) (303) (157) - (46 5)
Canadian Dollars fixed rate 61 - {10 (138 217 - (36.5)
Japanese Yen fixed rate 17 - - - 8 4) - (8.4)
Total fixed rate loans - 5 (44 1) (566 6) - (612.2)
Floating rate loans fixed through interest rate swaps
US Doilars 27 - (02 (523} (68) - (58.3)
Hong Kong Dollars 06 - 19 - - - (1.5)
Euro 48 - - (175) - - (17.5)
Austrahian Dollars 41 - (137) (230 - - 367
Total floating rate loans fixed
through interest rate swaps - (154) 928} (58} - (114 0)
Floating rate loans
US Dollars floating rate 31 (327) (32.7)
Canadian Dollars floating rate 34 (33 (3.3)
Euro floatng rate 28 {222 222
Total floatng rate loans (58 2) (58.2)
Currency swaps - - 66 65 - - 13.1
Finance lease lizhilities 112 - - - 13) - {1.3)
Loan from joint ventures - - - - - @y 4.1
Preference Shares 06 (291 - - - - (29.1)
Tax payable nfa - - - - a7 zn
Trade and other payables (excluding deferred
income and accrued expenses) n/a - - - - (1107) e 7
Total financial hambimes (873 (103) (1304 57137 {132 5) (924.2)
The total average cost of debt for the year ended 31 December 2012 was 6 13% (2011 6 039}
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2011
Effective Floating Feed interest rate Non-
nterest ingergst interesi
rate fae <1 year 1-5 years >S5 years beanng Total
% Im £m m fm 3y m
Financial assets
Equity shares - - - - - 175 175
Finance lease receivables 133 - - - 69 - 69
Mezzanine loan investments 92 - 15 75 - 17 107
Other financial assets 81 50 - - - - 50
Trade and other recevables 43 367 286 - - 846 1499
Income tax receivable - - — - - 120 120
Cash and cash equivalents 11 1960 380 - - 35 2375
Total financial assets 2377 681 75 69 193 4395
Financial habilities:
Bank overdrafts 06 {01 - - - - o1
Fixed rate loans
Sterling secured mortgage 2034 104 - - - (500) - {50 O
Sterling secured bond 2026 65 - - - (202 1) - (2021)
Sterling unsecured bond 2041 61 - - - (300) - (300
Sterling unsecured bond 2031 56 - - - (929 - 929
Sterling unsecured bond 2019 84 - - - (525) - (52 5)
Sterling fixed rate 60 - - @7 - - 27
us Dollars 93 - 09 (316) (170) - 49y
Canadian Dollars 61 - (10 (14 4) (229) - (383
Total fixed rate loans - {15) (487) (467 4) - (517 6)
Floating rate loans fixed through interest rate swaps
US Dollars 28 - 02 (54 8} 62 - {60 6)
Japanese Yen 31 - (133 - - - {133
Euro 21 - - 159) - - (199)
Australian Dollars 58 - - (645) - - (64 5}
Total floating rate loans fixed
through nterest rate swaps - (131 (1390 62 - (158 3)
Floating rate lpans
Sterling floating rate 32 (54 (54)
US Dollars floating rate 31 (34 4) (34 4)
Canadian Dollars ftoating rate 490 24 24
Hong Xong Dollars floating rate 21 65 65)
Euro floating rate 36 461) 461)
Total floating rate loans 94 8) 94 8)
Currency swaps - - - - - 1 @
Finance lease labilities 127 - - - {14) - 14
Loans from non-controfling interests
in subsidiaries 60 - - 08 (06) - 14
Preference Shares 15 {29 8) - - - - (29 8)
Income tax payable - - - - - (157) 157
Trade and other payables - - - - - 791 {791)
Total financial habilities (1247) (14 6) (188 5) (475 6) 969) (5003)
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY
The sensitivity analysis below 1s based an the exposure to interest rates at the balance sheet date for floating rate labilities and cash balances,
it 15 assumed the lrability or asset at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year

If interest rates had been 0 5% higher and all other variables were held constant the impact on the Group’s equity would be

2012 2011

£m £m

Increasef{decrease) in results for the year - interest charge 08 07
— mark to market of interest rate swaps 34 25
—tax charge (1.0} {09

Total increase in profit and equity 3.2 23

Stmilarly, if interest rates had been O 5% lower, then Group profit and equity would have increased by £3 6m {2011 £2 3m)

As part of the Group s interest rate risk management, interest rate swaps exchanging flaating for fixed (nterest with anotional principal of £70 7m
(2011 £2879m) and a fair value kability of £7 0m {2011 £14 4m) were designated for cashflow hedge accounting at 31 December 2012 These hedges
were highly effective durning the year

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Investments outside Britain & Ireland are held for the long term so st 1s the Group s policy not to hedge the net investment in these regions Within each
region there 1s a certain amount of natural currency hedging as debt s drawn in local currency to finance local operations Shori-term cash flows
hetween currencies are hedged by the use of foreign exchange derivatives

At the end of the year other than that arising on its eguity in non-UK Operabing Companies the Group has no matenat foreign exchange currency risk as
there are no material financial instruments denomnated in non-functional currencies

EQUITY PRICE RISK
The Group 15 exposed to equity price risks arising from its eguity investments disclosed in Note 23 Equity investments designated as avallable-for-sale
are held for strategic rather than trading purposes

EQUITY PRICE SENSITIVITY
The sensitivity analysis below 1s based on the exposure ta equity price risks at the balance sheet date

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower other equity reserves would increase/decrease by £2 5m (2011 increase/decrease by €1 8m) as a result of
changes in fair value of available-for-sale shares

The Group s sensttiaty to equity prices has not changed significantly from the prior year
CREDIT RISK

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group The Group 1s exposed to
credit nisk in respect of its surplus cash deposits, trade recevables, mezzanine loan iInvestments ang loans to Jont ventures

Surplus cash 1s depesited with major finanial instizutions and in money market funds with credit ratings at or above aspeafied level Limits are set to
restrict the total amount of funds that can be deposited with any single counterparty

At the year end deposits were invested as follows
Standard & Poor’s credit rating of institution

Tota! cash and cash
equivalents at 31 December

2012 2011

£m [14:]

AAA 89.1 521
Al+ - -
AA - 05
AA- 698 1052
A+ 233 323
A 260 58
A- 29.4 376
Other 08 -
238.4 2375
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Trade recevables consist of amounts due from a farge number of tenants, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas Credit checks
are carried out before commencement of tenancies and before entering joint venture partnership agreements and continuing credit evaluation seeks
to ensure any recevables are provtded for as required Trade recewvables are small relative toturnover and therefore do not present a significant risk
to the Group Trade recewvables at the year end totalled £29 8m of which £13 3m was outstanding at 1 March 2013

Mezzanmine loans represent loans to developers on which Grosvenor earns mterest and a share of the development profit Grosvenor makes lpans
to established developers with a track record of stable performance and carrtes out due diligence before commutting funds In the magonty of loans,
Grosvenor receives a second charge on the development property and has a guarantee regarding the pringipal and interest

The carrying amount of financial assets, excluding equity investments, recorded in the financil statements, net of any allowances for losses
represents the Group s maximum expasure to credit risk on thase financial assets without taking account of the value of any collateral obtamed

LIQUIDITY RISK

Grosvenor obtams financing fram a number of sources, ncluding secured lending at project level together with secured and unsecured borrowing at
the corporate level To ensure suffictent cash 1s available to meet operating plans cash flow projections are maintained at Operating Company level
and are reviewed by the Group on a monthly basis In addition to facilities at Operating Company and project level committed borrowing facilities
are mamtained in the Holdmg Company at levels deemed appropriate by the Group Board

At 31 December 2012, the Group had the following drawn and undrawn committed borrowing facilittes available

Drawn facilities Undrawn facilities.
2012 2011 2012 2011
m im £m im
Expiring in less than one year 82.5 222 198.3 924
Expiring from one to two years 220 ne7 - 1977
Expiring from two to five years 144 4 1855 5251 3862
Expining after more than five years 564 6 476 2 — 513
Total Bl135 8006 723.4 7276

Borrowing limits are set for each Operating Company Each Operating Company and the Group produces on a monthly basis a medium term cash
forecast under an expected and stressed scenario the latter designed to simulate an extreme financial and market crash The Operating Companies
and the Group seek o maintan sufficient liquidity to sustam such a crash for at least two years

The Group also momitorssts resience to potential falls in property market values Resilience is defined in the glossary

The maturity profile of the antiopated future cash flows including interest, relating to the Group s non-derivative financial habiities, on an undiscounted

basis (which therefore differs from both carrying vatue and fair value) is as follows

2012
Loans from
Fixed Floating Finance lease non controling
rateloans raletoans liabiities interests Other Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Due within one year 404 925 03 - 128 4 2616
From one to two years 461 16 4 03 - - 628
From two to three years 719 782 03 - - 150.4
From three to four years 365 176 03 - - 54 4
Fram four tg five years 448 a1 03 - - 452
After five years 9129 56 740 41 - 996 6
11526 2104 755 41 128 4 1,571 0
2011
Loans from
Fixed Floaung Finance lease non controlling
rate lpans rate loans labrnues Inigrests Other Total
£m im Em £m im £m
Due within one year 347 310 03 - 759 1419
From one 1o two years 347 1111 03 - 189 1650
From two to three years 420 188 03 - - 611
From three to four years 739 1029 03 - - 1771
From four to five vears 321 134 03 08 - 456
After five years 8223 60 727 06 - 9016
10397 2832 742 14 948 14933
Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 WWW grosvenor com 131



ACCOUNtS

Notes to the financial statements
continued

30 Financial instruments continued
The matunity profite of the Group s financial derivatives using undiscounted cash flows, 1s as follows

2012 2011
Payable Recetvahle Payable Recewable
im £m £m £m
Due within one year {(60) 1.7 (75) 33
From one to two years (36) 0.9 (60) 24
From two to three years (30) 0.9 (50 22
From three to four years (22) 0.8 (44) 23
From four to five years 19 D9 (33) 18
After five years (35) 22 (10 2) 74
(20 2) 7.4 (364) 194
31 Trade and other payables
Group
2012 2011
Em £m
Current habilities
Trade payables 155 133
Payables due to Joint ventures 12 02
Other payables 66 2 a67
Accrued expenses 503 587
Deferred income 207 44
1539 1233
Non-current liabilities
Payables due to joint ventures 278 18 8
Other payables - 01
Deferred income 2008 185 4
228.6 2043
Deferred income includes £203 4m in respect of deferred lease premium profits (2011 £1873m)
32 Prowvisions
Development loss provision
2012 2011
£m £m
At 1 January 34 35
Recognised in the year 19 -
Utilised in the year 14) on
At 31 December 39 34
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33 Operating lease commitments

LEASES AS LESSEE
The amount of lease rentals charged to the income statement during the year comprised
2012 2011
£m £m
Land and builldings 52 50
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows
R 2011
m &m
Less than one year 61 61
Between one and five years 66 106
More than five years 31 11
158 178
LEASES AS LESSOR
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are as follows
2012 2011
£m £m
Less than one year 918 1056
Between one and five years 249 4 2411
More than five years 1,0238 1,3354
1,365 0 1,682 1
34 Capital commitments
2012 2011
£m £m
Investment properties contracted but not provided 582 834
Development properties contracted but not provided 150.4 1203
2086 2037

Included n the above 1s Grosvenor's share of joint venture and associate capital commitments of £83 9m (2011 £58 3m)

35 Contingent liabilities

In connection with the demerger of wheatsheaf Investments Limited {formerly Deva Group Limited) tn 1999 the Company has provided guarantees

up to a maximum of £4 4m (2011 £8 8m)

Certain Group companies have given performance undertakings to third-parties in respect of various contractuzl pbiigations entered into in the

ordinary course of business
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36 Share capital

2012 2011

Number Number
of shares £m of shares £m

Allocated, called up and fully paid

Ordinary Shares of £1 5,684,877 5.7 5684 877 57
Non-Voting Qrdinary Shares of £1 45,479,016 455 45 479 016 455
‘A Preference Shares of £1 5,684,877 5.7 5,684,877 57
‘B’ Preference Shares of £1 45,589,624 56 82,089,624 821
102,438,394 102.5 138938 394 1390

RIGHTS OF CLASSES OF SHARES

Profits determined by the Directors as available for distribution are to be apphed first in paying a fixed non-cumulative dvidend of 12% per annum on the
amounts paid up on the A’ Preference Shares, secondly in paying a floating coupon on the amounts patd up or deemed paid up on the C Preference Shares

The balance of profits avallable for distnbution are payabte to the holders of the ordinary shares and non-voting ordinary shares in proportion to the

amounts pard up on their shares Holders of the ‘B Preference Shares are not entitled to a distribution of profits No *C Preference Shares have been 1ssued

0On a return of the Company s assets to Shareholders the assets are to be apphed first i repaying to the holders of the A Preferences Shares

the amounts paid up on their shares secondly repaying to the holders of the ‘B Preference Shares and the holders of the C Preference Shares the
amounts paid up or deemed paid up on therr shares The balance of the assets 1s payable to the halders of the ordinary shares and non-voting ordinary
shares in proportion ta the amounts paid up on their shares up to an amount of £10bn Thereafter the balance of assets s payable to the holders of the
‘B Preference Shares, ‘C Preference Shares ordinary shares and non-voting ordinary shares in proportion to the amounts paid up on their shares

Holders of the B’ Preference Shares and non-voting ordinary shares are not entitled to vote at general meetings of the members of the Company

except on resolutions varying or abrogating any of the special nghts or privileges attaching to their shares
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37 Reconciliation of share capital and reserves

(a) Group
Far Non
Share Skare Translanon Other valve Revaluaton Retained controling Total
Capltal premuum reserve reserves reserve reserve earnings Totat nterest equity
m £m fm im Em Em £m £€m im £m
At 1January 2011 1649 283 3866 1039 (140 97 19696 26493 1266  2,7759
Profit for the year - - - - - - 2508 2508 49 245.9
Revaluation movement - - - - - 38 - 3.8 - 38
Fair value adjustments - - - {03) 37 - - (4.0) 02 {42
Deferred tax - - - 04 07 ] 08 (1.1) - (11}
Pension actuaral losses - - - - - - {124) {12.4) - (12 4)
Dvidends - — - - - - - - 62 62
Non-controliing shares issued
by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 03 03
Non-controlhng shares acqeired
by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - {16) (1 6}
Redemption of Preference Shares 259 - - 259 - - (259) (259) - (259}
Exchange - - on - - - - on 50 .7
Other movements I Joint ventures - - - - - - (45) (4.5) 12) G7)
Balance at 31 December 2011 1390 283 3859 1291 (184) 127 21787 2,855.3 1078 2,963.1
Profit for the year - - - - - - 326 jze (45) 308.1
Revaluation movement - - - - - 36 - 3.6 - 36
Farr value adjustments - - - 48 18 - - 3.0 03 33
Deferred tax - - - (08 - 03 (15) 2e) - (26)
Pension actuarial losses - -~ - - - - 31 31 - 31
Dividends - - - - - - 05 (0.5) 84) (89)
Transfer between reserves - - (43) 04 - - 47 - - -
Non-cantrolling shares issued
by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 06 0.6
Non-controlling shares acquired
by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 27 27
Redemption of Preference Shares (36 5) - - 365 - - (36 %) (36 5) - (36 5)
Exchange - - 60 5} - - - - (60 5) (78) (68 3)
Other movements In joint ventures - - - - - - - - 11 11
At 31 December 2012 1025 283 3211 1692 (202 160 24606 3,0775 864 31639
Other reserves comprise net interest rate hedging losses of £11 Om and capital redemption reserve of £180 2m
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37 Reconcihation of share capital and reserves continued
(b) Company

Merger Caputal

Share Sharg capital redemption Retained Total

capllal premium reserve reserve earmngs equity

im £m m im £m £m

At1.lanuary 2011 1649 283 10470 176 2009 1,558 7
Redemption of Preference Shares 259) - - 259 (259) (259)

At 31 December 2011 1390 283 10470 1435 1750 1,532 8
Redemption of Preference Shares (365 - - 365 (36 5) (36.5)

At 31 December 2012 1025 283 10470 1800 1385 1,496 3

38 Notes to the conschdated statement of cash flows

(a} Reconciliation of profit from operations including share of profit from jamt ventures to operating profit before changes in working capstal

and provisions

2012

£m £€m
Operating activities
Profit from operations including share of profit from joint ventures 392.0 3669
Adjustments for
Depreciation 20 23
Amortisation of capitalised lease incentives 09 14
Amortisation of deferred lease premiums (2.3) 26
Recognition of income from operating lease ncentives 09 03
Net losses on other nvestments 09 71
Net gains on revaluation and sale of investment property (3127) (324 4)
Share of prafit of joint ventures (58 5) (250}
Impairment of goodwll - 07
Foreign exchange - 30
uplift on trading properties completed and transferred to investment property - on
Operating profit before changes in working capital and provisions 196 296
(b) Analysis of net debt
Other

1 January non cash Exchange 31 December

012 Cash flow movenents movements 2012

Em tm fm £em £m

Cash at bank and in hand 694 486 - (2 5) 115 5

Short-term depasits ard short-term liguid investiments 168 1 (42 4) - (2 8} 1229

Bank overdraft on o1 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents 2374 63 - {5 3) 2384
Borrowings due within one year (28 6) 43 26 6) 14 (49.5)
Borrowings due after more than one year (776 8) (30 6) %0 120 (769.4)
Total borrowings (805 4) (26 3) (08 134 {818.9)
Net debt (568 0} (200) 06 81 (580 5)

Other non-cash movements include net fair value adjustments on Interest rate and currency swaps
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39 Related party transactions

Grosvenor Group Limited 1s wholly owned by Trusts and members of the Grosvenor Family headed by the 6th Duke of Westminster During 2012 the

Group entered into the following transactions with the Grosvenor Trusts and members of the Grosvenor Family

2012 200
[4:1) £m
Rent and service charge income 0.3 03
Rent and service charge expenses (15) (10
Development management fees 1.6 08
Management and administration fees 15.8 148
During 2012 the Group entered mto the followng transactions with other related parties
2012 2011
£om £m
Development and asset management fees receved from joint ventures 187 282
Other fees recewved fram joint ventures 24 2%
Other fees paid to joint ventures (0 8) ©3
Insurance premiums payable to a related company (137 (48)
At the end of the year the following amounts were due from/{to) related parties
2012 2011
£&m £im
Amounts due from joint ventures 750 699
Amounts due to joint ventures (41) 14
Amounts due to a related company 02} (191

As explained in Note 35 the Company has provided guarantees up 1o a maximum of £4 4m to Wheatsheaf investments Limited, which 1s owned
by the Grosvenor Trusts In 2012 £36 5 (2011 £259m)was paid by Grosvenor Estate Holdings, a subsidiary of the Company to shareholders of the

Company in order to redeem preference shares of the Company At the year end the Cornpany had a batance recevable from Grosvenor Estate Haldings

of £1379m (2011 £174 4m)

Total compensation patd to key management personnel during the year was £5 0m (2013 £71m), including short-term benefits of £4 2m (201F £3 9m),

post employment benefits of £0 lm (2011 £0 2m) long-term employee benefits of £0 7m (2011 £1 4m) and compensation for loss of affice of £nil

(2011 £16m)
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2012

2011

us$m USgm
Total revenue 423.5 36
Gross rental income 215 2 202 6
Property outgongs (81 6) 39
Net rental tncome 1336 1387
Other income 614 650
Adminustrative expenses (141 7} (143 4)
Net losses on trading preperties {217) (20 0)
Net losses on other investments 14 (113}
Net gains on revaiuation and sale of investment property 4962 5179
Impairment of goodwill - (1)
Share of profit of joint ventures 928 400
Gain from operations including share of joint ventures 6220 585 8
Dividend income - 02
Financial income 92 145
Financial expenses 712 (797)
Fair value adjustments 24 a7y
Net financing costs (59 6) (829)
profit before tax 5624 5029
Current tax expense (28 3) (235)
Deferred tax expense (452) {86 8)
Profit for the year 488.9 3926
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 4960 4004
Non-controling interest (71) (78)
Profit far the year 4889 3926
The above statement prepared under IFRS accounting standards, Is translated at the average exchange rate for the relevant year
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Group
2012 200

ussm usgm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property 49757 43712
Other property, plant and equipment 790 631
nvestments In joint ventures 1,6318 1,670 3
Other financial assets 837 573
Intangible assets 6.5 64
Deferred tax assets 1679 1607
Total non-current assets 6944 6 6,3290
Current assets
Trading properties 479.2 3811
Trade and other recewvables 325.6 246 4
Other financial assets 15.9 50
Income tax receivable 91 186
Cash and cash equivalents 3875 3691
Total current assets 1,2173 10202
TOTAL ASSETS 8,161.9 73492
LIABILITIES
Non-current iabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (1,250 6} {1,207 2)
Trade and other payables (371 6) (3175)
Empioyee benefits (55 6) {578)
Deferred tax habilities (975 5) (895 8)
Total non-current habslities (2,653.3) (2478 3)
Current liabilities
Overdrafts - (02
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (80 5) (44 4)
Trade and other payables (250.1) {191 6)
Income tax payahle (28 8) (24 4)
Provisions (6.3) (53)
Tota! current habilities (365 7) (2659)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (3,015.0} (2744 2)
NET ASSETS 5,142.9 4,605 0
Equity
Issued capital 166.6 2160
Share premium 46.0 440
Reserves 790 2 7915
Retaned earnings 3,999.7 33860
Sharehelders’ funds 5,0025 4,4375
Non-controlting interest 140.4 1675
TOTAL EQUITY 51429 46050
The abaove statement, prepared under IFRS accounting standards s transfated at the closing exchange rate for the relevant year
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Accounts

Consolidated income statement presented in Euros

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012

2011

im €m
Total revenue 3284 224 8
Gross rental ncome 166 8 146 2
Property outgoings (63.2) 461)
Net rental income 1036 1001
Other income 476 469
Administrative expenses (109.9) (103 4)
Net losses on trading propertres 169 (14 4)
Net losses on other investments 11 82
Net gains on revaluation and sale of investment property 3848 3736
Impairment of goodwill - (o))
Share of profit of joint ventures 720 288
Gatn from eperations including share of joint ventures 4823 4226
Dwvidend incomea - 01
Financial income 71 105
Financial expenses (552) (575)
Farr value adjustments 1.9 (12 9)
Net financing costs (46 2) (59 8)
Profit before tax 4361 3628
Current tax expense (219) (16 9}
Deferred tax expense (35.0) 62 7)
Profit for the year 3792 2832
Attnbutable to:
Equity hotders of the parent 3847 2888
Non-controling interest (5.5) (56)
Profit for the year 3792 2832
The above statement, prepared under IFRS accounting standards, 1s translated at the average exchange rate for the relevant year
Grosvenor Annual Report 2012 www Erosvenor com 140




Accounts

Consolidated balance sheet presented in Euros

as at 31 December 2012

Group
2012 01
€m €m

ASSETS
Non-current assets
investment property 7742 33674
Other property, plant and equipment 600 486
Investments In joiNt ventures 1,2378 1,286 8
Qther financial assets 635 4472
Intangible assets 49 49
Deferred tax assets 1274 123 8
Total non-current assats 5,2678 48757
Current assefs
Trading properties 3635 2936
Trade and cther recewables 2470 1897
Other financgial assets 12.1 38
Income tax recevable 69 144
Cash and cash equvalents 2939 2843
Total current assets 9234 7858
TOTAL ASSETS 6,191 2 5,6615
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabdities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (948 7) {930 0)
Trade and other payables (281.9) (244 6)
Employee benefits (42.2) (44 5)
Deferred tax habilities (7399) (6901}
Total nen-current habilities (2,012 7) (1,909 2)
Current liabilities
Overdrafts - oy
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (61 0) 342
Trade and other payables (189 8) {1476)
Income tax payable (218) (189)
Pravisions {4 8) 41)
Total current Labilities (277 4) (2049)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (2,290 1) (2,141
NET ASSETS 3,9011 35474
Equrty
Issued capital 126 4 166 4
Share premum 349 339
Reserves 599.4 6098
Retained earnings 30319 2,608 2
Shareholders’ funds 3,794 6 34183
Non-controlling interest 1065 1291
TOTAL EQUITY 39011 3,5474
The above statement, prepared under IFRS accounting standards s translated at the closing exchange rate for the relevant year
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Accounts

Ten-year summary

Income statement

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2008

2010

201

2012

fm £m fm im £m im £ fm fm £m
Net rental Income 1011 513 509 652 6l4 683 874 737 869 842
Cther income 104 299 529 457 370 ELY! 540 407 38.7
Administrative expenses (415) (467 (53 3) (75 8) (815) 827 (849 (86 2) {89 8) (89.3)
Net gains/{losses) on trading properties 65 96 (73) (768 (354) (1066) 14 57 (125 137
Net gains/(losses) on other investments 33 229 - 03 126 (120) (128 (15) (71) 0.9
Net gains/(losses) on revaluation and sale
of investment properties 372 198 8 246 8 5187 4139 2677) 876 292 4 3244 312.7
imparment of goodwill - - (33 02 - - - - 07 -
Share of profiz/(loss) from joint ventures 223 1238 1216 1450 1200 (2097) (1344 1037 250 58.5
Profit/(foss) before net financing
costs and tax 1289 3701 3853 5205 5367 (573 4) (198 2) 4304 3669 392.0
Net financing costs (372 (28 Q) (72 20 8) 127 (205 378 (35 6) (519) (37 6)
Profit/(loss) before tax 917 3421 3681 5087 5240 (5939 (2358 3948 3150 354.4
Revenue profit - 435 456 (1079} 734 F67 622 64 2 808 874
Balance sheet
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 2012
£m fm f2y ) fm fm im m im fm £m
Total property assets including share
of joint ventures 27288 3,2373 37277 45924 59633 61728 52219 54600 58396 5,832.2
Investment property 2,850 5 11,8091 20074 23500 29216 27858 22791 25259 28127 3,061.0
Investment in JoINt veniures 2224 6946 8194 1,050 1 11560 10933 8596 10633 10748 1,003.9
Other financial assets 856 583 710 500 554 466 387 426 369 515
Other nen-current assets 239 1001 1327 1138 124 6 338 1334 1449 4 1481 1559
23824 26621 30305 35639 42576 40595 33108 37762 40725 4,2723
Trading properties 944 441 345 487 1471 164 2 1423 1387 2452 294.8
Cash and cash equivalents 2040 264 2 3855 455 4 3236 915 5052 2694 2375 238 4
Gther net current (habilities)/assets 84 14 (34 2) 427 (287) 577 (223 54 5 313 40.2
306 8 3097 3858 546 8 4420 3134 6252 462 6 5140 5734
Borrowtngs (including current) (6876) (6145} (5754) (6595} (6714) (7859} (7754 (7387) (8055} (8189)
Deferred tax (315) (3179) (450 6) (555 2) (604 4) (5193) (4315) {5221) (5764) (6001)
QOther non-current lablities (79 (1301 (203 8) (3292 (3603) (2312) (1858  {2021) (2415) (262 8)
(7270) (10625) (1,2298) {15439 (16361} (15364) (1.3927) (1,4629) (16234) (1,6818)
Net Assets 19622 19093 21865 25668 30635 28365 25433 27759 29631 3,1639
Share capital and share premium _ 2339 2339 2339 233¢ 2299 229¢% 3068 1932 1673 13¢ 8
Reserves 1,6145 1,561 4 1,8577 21840 2,6585 24204 20800 24561 26880 2946.7
Shareholders’ funds L8484 17923 20916 24179 28884 265031 23868 26493 2853 3,077%
Non-controlling interest 138 1140 949 1489 1751 1862 1565 126 6 1078 86.4
Total equity 19622 19093 21865 25668 30635 28365 25433 27759 29631 3,1639
International Financial Reporting Standards were adopted with effect from 1 January 2004 Figures for 2003 are presented under UK GAAP
Revenue profit was reparied on a statutory basis from 2004
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Grosvenor Group Limited

Grosvenor offices
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Lyon

73 rue de Ya Republique
69002 Lyon

France

Tel +33(0)4 724044 67

Luxembourg

46a Avenue John F Kennedy

1855 Luxembourg
Luxembourg
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San Francisco

One Calforruia Street
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Taicang Road
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PRC
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Fax +86 21 5382 3431
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111 46 Stockholm
Sweden
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Fax +468 4071311
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Fax +81(0) 3 55755301
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Fax +1 604 684 5041
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Tel +1202 2931235
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Grosvenor Group Limited

Glossary

Area
All figures given are for the gross area

Assets under management

The total investment i property assets managed by
the Group ncluding the future costs of committed
developments

BREEAM
Building Research Establishment Eqvicanmental
Assessment Method for bulldings

Co-Investment
Where Grosvenor invests equity In joint venture or fund
vehicles alongside third-parties

Condominium

A torm of real property where a specified part of real
estate (usually a multi-famuly property) 15 indmidually
owned while use of and access to commaon facilities are
controlled by an asseciation of owners.

Core*
A fund which 15 considered 1o be a low-risk fund that
nvests in stabilised income-producing assets

Core plus*
A fund that invests in a core-style asset but adopts a more
aggressive management style

Currency

Financial informaten 1s presented n Sterling, with the
exception of the Proprietary assets — direct reports on
pages 22-55, where It ts presented in the principal
currency of the respective Operating Company

Development exposure

Grosvenor s share of development propert:es including its
share of the future development commitment asa
percentage of property assets including the future
development commitment

Development pipelne

The development pregramme including proposed projects
that are not yet commutted but are hkety

to proceed

Development property
A property that 15 being developed for future use as an
Investment property

Economic property interest
Grosvencr s equity interest in properties (or debt) after
deducting the share attnbutable to minority investors

ERV (estimated rental value)

The estimated market rentat value of the tatal fettable
space In a property calculated by the Groups valuers.
This wall usualty be different fram the rent being paid

Finance lease
A lease that 1ransfers substantially alt the risks and
rewards of ownership from the lessor t the lessee

Financia! capacity
whoily-owned unrestricted cash and undrawn
temmitted faciliies

Grosvenor-managed
A property or ather investment that 1s managed by
the Group

Pre-let
Alpase signed with a tenant prior o the completion
of a development

Ground-rented

Property where the freeholder grants a long lease

to the tenant vsually in exchange for an up-front premium
{for the magor par: of the value} and a lower ground rent
payment for the duration of the lease

Property assets

Investments n property and property-related instruments
- compnses investment properties development
properties trading properues, mezzanne lgans and equity
imestments 1n property companies

Group
Grosvenor Group Limited and s subsidiary urdertakngs

Head lease
The lease for an Investment proverty unger which the
Group Is a lessee

Holding Company
Grosvenor Group Limited

IFRS
Internatoral Finangial Reporting Stancard(s)

Indirect investments
Proprietary investments managed by Grasvenor Fund
Management or third-party managers

Interest rate swap

A tontractual agreement with a counterparty

{usually a bank) 1o exchange an interest obligation for an
alternatve interest obligation for 3 predetermined perniod
of tme (usually used 1o canvert fleating rate interest
obligaton to fixed rate obligations)

Investment property
A property that 15 held for the purposes of earning rental
ncome or for capital appreciation or doth

Joint venture
An eatity in which the Group invests and which it jointiy
canteols with the other investars

LEED?

Leadership in Energy and Envircnmental Design a
programme that provides third-party venfication of green
buildings.

London estate

Grosvenor s portfolio of office retal and residential
properties in the Mayfair and Belgrawia areas of London s
West End

Mark to market adjpstment
An accounting adjustment to adjust the book valye of an
asset or liability to its market value

Market value

Market valtue 15 the amount for which an interest in

an assel could be exchanged between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arms length transaction For
invesiment properties 1t 1s determined by independent
external valuers

Mezzanine lending

Lend ing te property develgpers that 15 subordinated
to senior lending in return for a profit share in the
completed development

Funds under management
The totz) value of properues managed by Grosvenar

Future development commitment
The expected costs to complete the deve'opment
programme [0 which we are committed

Gearing

Total short- and long-term borrowings including bank
overdrafts less cash and cash deposits, as a percentage
of Shareholders funds.

Occupancy rate
Occupancy rates gven In the Review section are the
average actupancy by floar area for the relevant year

Operating Companies
Grosvenor s regional investment and devetopment
businesses and Gresvenor Fund Management

Passing rent
The annual rental income recevable which may be more
or less than the ERV

Gross rental income
Totat ncame from renzs from the Groups properties

*Detinitsans abbreviated from detinitions used by
INREV (the European Association for Investors in
Non-listed Real Estate Vehicles)
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Performance fees

Fees that are payable in the event that the performance
of the underhang investment exceeds a pregetermined
benchmark

Property derrvative
Einancial Insruments whose price is denved
by reference to a property returns index

Proportional
The 1otal of the Groups wholly-owned and its share
of jontly-owned property assets or ret debt

Proprietary

Relating to Grosvenor s share of investments ¥ property
assets Proprietary assets are direct or indirect see
structure diagram on page 2

Rack-rented
Referning 1o property that 15 rented out at full market rent

Resilience

The extent towhich market values of property assets
on a proportional basis can fall before Group financial
covenants are breached

Revenue profit

Prohit before tax excluding profits on the sale of
investment properties gains or losses on other non-
current investments revaluation movements, major
refurbishment costs and denvatve fair value adjustments
Sea also Note 4 to the financial statements.

Reverslonary yietd

The anticipated yield to which running yvield will rise
(or fall) once the rent reaches ERV calculated as ERV
asa percentage of the value of investrment properties

Running yield
Passing rent as a percentage of the value of investment
properties

Separate acoount chient
A private real estate portfobo managed by Grosvenor Fund
Management on behalf of a third-party

Third-party
The non-Grasvenor share of investments
managed by Grosvenor

Total return

Tetal retura on property assets (s revenue prefit before
financial experses but after major refurbishments, plus the
net gain on revaluation and sale of investment properties
and other tevestments and including fair value adustments
and exchange movements recogn'sed in reserves, as a
percentage of average property assets {before current year
revaluations) and cash Jont ventures angd associates are
treated proportionally for the purposes of this calcuiation

Trading property
property held as a current asset in the bajance sheet that
15 being developed with a wiew 10 subsequent resale

Value-add
Above-market MLrease In value as a Tesutt of acuve
managerment (e g change of use or refurbishment)

welghted average cost of capital
The weghted average cost of debt and the notional cost of
equity Used as a benchmark for total return performance
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